Public Document Pack
{gl Tameside

Metropolitan Borough

ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE - AUDENSHAW - DENTON - DROYLSDEN - DUKINFIELD - HYDE - LONGDENDALE - MOSSLEY - STALYBRIDGE

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Day: Thursday
Date: 21 September 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Lesser Hall 2 - Dukinfield Town Hall
Item AGENDA Page
No. No
GENERAL BUSINESS

1. 10.00AM APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

3. MINUTES 1-8

The Minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 29
June 2017 to be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

ITEM FOR CONSULTATION
4. 10.05AM INTERMEDIATE CARE IN TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP 9-42

To consider the attached report of the Deputy Director of Commissioning.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION / DECISION

5. 10.15AM TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP CARE TOGETHER ECONOMY -
FINANCIAL MONITORING

a) 2017/18 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT AT 31 JULY 2017 43 - 60
b) 2017/19 BETTER CARE FUND PLAN 61-72

To consider the attached report of the First Deputy (Performance and Finance)
/ Executive Member (Adult Social Care & Wellbeing) / Executive Member
(Healthy and Working) / Executive Member (Children and Families) / Director
Of Finance — Single Commission.

6. 10.25AM CARE TOGETHER UPDATE 73 -82
To consider the attached report of the Programme Director (Care Together).

7. 10.30AM INFLUENZA UPDATE AND SYSTEM RESPONSE 83 - 88
To consider the attached report of the Director of Population Health.

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Linda Walker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for
absence should be notified.



Item AGENDA Page

No. No
ITEMS FOR NOTING / INFORMATION

8. 10.35AM TAMESIDE HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT 89-108

To consider the attached report of the Head of Employment and Skills. The
Board will also receive an accompanying presentation from Mat Ainsworth,
Assistant Director — Employment (Policy, Strategy and Delivery), Greater
Manchester Combined Authority.

9. 10.45AM MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 109 - 124
To consider the attached report of the Director of Population Health.
10. 10.55AM VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL ENTERPRISE SECTOR

a) TAMESIDE STATE OF THE VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL 125-198
ENTERPRISE SECTOR RESEARCH 2017

To consider the attached report of the Deputy Chief Executive, Action
Together.

b) COMPACT: RELATIONSHIP WITH PEOPLE, COMMUNITIES AND THE 199 -202
VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY, FAITH AND SOCIAL ENTERPRISE SECTOR

To consider the attached report of the Director of Population Health / Chief
Executive Officer, Action Together.

11. 11.05AM GREATER MANCHESTER CANCER PLAN

a) STOCKTAKE FOR TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP 203 - 234
To consider the attached report of the Director of Population Health.

b) GREATER MANCHESTER TOBACCO STRATEGY 235 - 250
To consider the attached report of the Director of Population Health.

12. 11.15AM HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PLAN 2017/18 251 - 254
To receive the attached report of the Director of Population Health.

13. URGENT ITEMS

To consider any additional items the Chair is of the opinion shall be dealt with
as a matter of urgency.

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will take
place on Thursday 25 January 2018.

From: Democratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Linda Walker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for
absence should be notified.



Agenda Iltem 3

TAMESIDE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
29 June 2017

Commenced: 10.00 am Terminated: 12.00 pm

PRESENT: Councillor Brenda Warrington (in the Chair) — Executive Member (Adult
Social Care & Wellbeing)
Councillor Peter Robinson — Executive Member (Children and Families)
Stephanie Butterworth — Director of Children’s and Adults
Angela Hardman — Director of Population Health
Claire Ousey — Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust
Steven Pleasant — Chief Executive, Tameside MBC, and Accountable
Officer for Tameside and Glossop CC
Christina Greenhough — Clinical Vice Chair & Lead for Mental Health, CCG
Dean Howard, Divisional Commander, Greater Manchester Police
Paul Starling — Borough Commander, GM Fire and Rescue Service
Mark Tweedie — Chief Executive, Tameside Sports Trust
Clare Watson — Director of Commissioning
Giles Wilmore — Tameside Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

IN ATTENDANCE: Kathy Roe — Director of Finance
Debbie Watson — Interim Assistant Director of Population Health
Jessica Williams — Programme Director (Care Together)
Jacqui Dorman — Public Health Intelligence Manager
Gideon Smith — Consultant in Public Health Medicine

APOLOGIES: Councillor K Quinn, Executive Leader, Tameside MBC
Alan Dow — Chair, Tameside and Glossop CCG
David Niven — Independent Chair, Tameside Safeguarding Children’s Board
Tony Powell — Deputy Chief Executive, New Charter
Councillor Gerald P Cooney — Executive Member (Healthy and Working)
Julie Price — Department of Work and Pensions
Liz Windsor-Welsh — Action Together

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest submitted by members of the Board.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 9 March 2017 were approved as a correct
record.

3. CARE TOGETHER 2016/17 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT

The Director of Finance, Single Commission, presented a jointly prepared report of the Tameside
and Glossop Care Together constituent organisations on the consolidated financial position of the
economy for 2016/17. A summary of the Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation
Trust was also included within the report to ensure Members had an awareness of the overall
financial position of the whole Care Together economy.

The report also provided details of the savings realised in 2016/17 together with the significant

level of savings required in 2017/18 to ensure control totals were delivered and financial
sustainability was achieved on a recurrent basis thereafter. It was acknowledged that the delivery

Page 1



of additional savings beyond 2017/18 would also be required, the details of which would be
reported to future meetings.

It was noted that all three constituent organisations had met financial controls in 2016/17 and in
summary:

e The Clinical Commissioning Group had delivered a 1% surplus. The movement detailed in
the position summary was in line with latest guidance on treatment of national system risk
reserve and was explained in more detail in the report.

e The net deficit at outturn relating to the three Council services included with the Integrated
Care Foundation Trust would be financed from Council reserves. The significant deficit
primary arose within Children’s Services and was due to exceptional additional demand
during the year.

e The Integrated Care Foundation Trust had an authorised deficit of £17.3m for 2016/17.
The actual normalised deficit was £13.3m so exceeding the target by almost £4m.

The Director of Finance emphasised that whilst the financial controls had been met across the
economy, this had only been possible because of non-recurrent actions. On a recurrent basis
there remained an underlying deficit across the economy which increased risk in future years.

In conclusion, the Director of Finance made reference to the Better Care Fund where the total
spend had been in line with budgets and was reported to NHS England via the Health and
Wellbeing Board and the monitoring statement was attached at Appendix A.

RESOLVED

(i) That the financial 2016/17 consolidated financial position of the economy be noted.

(i) That the significant level of savings delivered in 2016/17 and required during 2017/18,
as detailed in section 4 of the report, to achieve confirmed control totals and the
financial sustainability of the economy on a recurrent basis thereafter, be
acknowledged.

(iii) That the significant amount of financial risk associated with the achievement of
financial control totals during this period be acknowledged.

(iv)  That the 2016/17 quarter 4 Better Care Fund monitoring statement be noted.

4, IMPLEMENTING CARE TOGETHER: KEY PROPOSED DELIVERABLES OVER NEXT
12-18 MONTHS

Consideration was given to a report of the Programme Director (Care Together) providing the
Board with an update on progress on the implementation of the Care Together Programme and
included developments since the last presentation in March 2017.

It was explained that of the full £23.226m transformational funding award, £7.9m had been
allocated within 2017/18. Transformational programmes were now being implemented at pace
across the economy and expenditure profiles were being examined to understand the potential
benefits in year. It was noted that the transformational funding award did not include any capital
for IM&T and Estates. The Programme Management Office was continuing to liaise with the
Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership and NHS Improvement to understand the
potential for funding bids.

Reference was made to operational progress and the implementation of a new senior management
structure identifying the direction from operational commissioning to strategic, place based public
sector commissioning and correlation with the life course, as outlined and approved in the Health
and Wellbeing Board strategy. The next steps to achieve strategic commissioning included the
alignment of clinical leadership to the life course, review of commissioning governance structures,
identifying the process to develop a longer term outcomes based contract with the Integrated Care
Foundation Trust and the development of high level milestones to ensure delivery of progress.

Page 2



Updated and comprehensive governance structures would be presented at the next Health and
Wellbeing Board following discussion and, where appropriate, decision by the statutory bodies.

Work continued to determine the full remit for the Integrated Care Foundation Trust and to align
services accordingly. As well as the transformation and transaction of Integrated Neighbourhoods,
discussions regarding mental health, how to optimise working with a variety of voluntary,
community and faith sector groups and potentially, the alignment of primary care, were being
discussed.

The Programme Director also provided an update on the recruitment process to move to a
substantive Programme Management Office which had not happened as quickly as envisaged. In
order to maintain focus and maintenance of the project management functions, a contract
extension with Pricewaterhouse Coopers, who had created the Programme Management Office
governance and assurance system, had been approved by the Single Commissioning Board in
May 2017, in order to continue impetus and mitigate any risk of slippage in financial savings
targets.

In addition, the Board received an accompanying presentation from the Programme Director (Care
Together) and the Director of Strategy (Integrated Care Foundation Trust) outlining the high level
deliverables of the programme within 2017/18 and into 2018/19 including the strategic and
operation aspects and the approach and implementation plan for social prescribing across
Tameside and Glossop.

RESOLVED

(i) That the recent developments of the Care Together Programme, including the move
from design to implementation phase of the programme, be noted.

(i) That the high level deliverables of the programme within 2017/18 and into 2018/19,
including the strategic and operational aspects, be noted.

(iii) That the approach and implementation plan for social prescribing across Tameside
and Glossop be noted.

(iv)  That a further update be submitted to a future meeting.

5. TRENDS IN LIFE EXPECTANCY AND MORTALITY RATES - UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report and accompanying presentation of the Director of Population
Health analysing the most recent mortality data, outlining changes in the calculation of Healthy Life
Expectancy. At the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting in January 2017, members agreed that
while the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy were upheld, that a refresh and alignment
with the recently developed Locality Plan into a Population Health Implementation Plan for
Tameside would be developed. The findings in the report aimed to inform the refresh.

Premature mortality and life expectancy were significant indicators of the health of the population
and generally areas with higher life expectancy and lower rates of premature mortality contained
populations that were both socially and economically advantaged. For Tameside and Glossop,
residents here experienced some of the worst health and mortality outcomes in England and
currently ranked 137 out of 150 local authorities for premature death.

Changes in the calculation of life expectancy meant that the current Tameside and Glossop
Locality Plan ambition would need to be reviewed. Current projections of Healthy Life Expectancy
based on the new method for calculation suggested that the Locality Plan ambition to reach North
West average by 2020 would not be achieved, nor reaching the England average by 2025. These
projections were based on mortality since 2009.

The key issues from the review were outlined as follows:

Page 3



e New methodology for calculating Healthy Life Expectancy meant that the current Tameside
and Glossop locality plan ambition would need to be revised.

e Recent mortality trends highlighted the importance of tackling premature mortality for
cardiovascular disease, respiratory and liver disease.

e The Tameside and Glossop RightCare Programme highlighted the importance of tackling
cardiovascular disease and respiratory conditions.

e Current Tameside Health and Wellbeing Board ‘Turning the Curve’ priorities on smoking,
physical activity and blood pressure would impact on cardiovascular and respiratory
disease.

e The updated Tameside Alcohol Strategy would contribute to reducing alcohol harm,
cardiovascular and liver disease.

The challenges for improving life expectancy were highlighted and discussed as follows:

e Reducing deaths in people aged 15 years to 64 years; this would mean a reduction in male
deaths of at least 51 each year and 21 less deaths for females.

e Targeting females in particular around lifestyle issues.

¢ Finding the missing thousands from the disease register. People with a condition would
then get the appropriate care and interventions that would help them live longer and
manage their condition better.

e Using risk stratification data to ensure that people in the risk groups 20% to 69% had
access to the relevant services and interventions that would allow them to improve their
outcomes.

e A focus on the wider determinants of health, housing, strengthening communities, health
and work, mental health and wellbeing.

Care Together continued to be the key vehicle for realisation of the Locality Plan ambition to
increase healthy life expectancy at pace. Reference was made to the local challenges and
responses for improving life expectancy highlighted in the review were summarised in the report.

RESOLVED

(i) That the content of the report be noted.

(i) That the recommendations for future action be agreed.

(iii) That a refresh of the Locality Plan to ensure a local Population Health
Implementation Plan be endorsed and presented to a future meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.

6. GREATER MANCHESTER POPULATION HEALTH PLAN - STOCKTAKE FOR
TAMESIDE

Consideration was given to a report of the Executive Member (Healthy and Working) and the
Director of Population Health providing the Board with a local stocktake against the 20 strategic
objectives in the Greater Manchester Population Plan outlining local initiatives to deliver on the
ambitions in the plan together with local challenges. The report also gave an update on the review
of the current public health system across Greater Manchester.

The Greater Manchester Population Health Plan was intended to enable residents to ‘start well,
live well and age well’ and the lead happier and healthier lives. It covered the most crucial area for
health and social care reform and put strong focus on prevention and how better health and
wellbeing helped with work prospects and economy. The Plan would complement the individual
work in the ten localities in the city region and highlighted where issues could be tackled more
effectively by working together from a Greater Manchester stance. A Tameside stocktake against
the 20 priorities list in the Greater Manchester Population Health Plan, together with challenges,
was attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

Page 4



A review of the current public health system had been underway since November 2016 with the
aim of developing a set of propositions for creating a unified population health system for Greater
Manchester. Directors of Public Health, local authority Chief Executives, Treasurers,
Commissioners and other key stakeholders across the system had been actively involved in this
process. The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership had used the findings from
the review and the understanding of local system changes to inform the development of the
proposals towards a unified health system for Greater Manchester. The summary findings from
the review and outline proposals were attached at Appendix 2 to the report.

In terms of the implications for Tameside, population health place based leadership in Tameside
and Glossop would be about ensuring the development of a culture of ‘population health is
everyone’s business’. This would create opportunities for Health and Wellbeing Board members to
champion and influence the health and wellbeing of their populations.

The population health transformation work would be integrated into the wider governance
arrangements overseeing the delivery of the Locality Plan under Taking Charge Together. The
overall stewardship of local population health would continue to sit with the Tameside Health and
Wellbeing Board, and the Director of Population Health, in their statutory role, would continue to
have overall accountability for public health leadership. This would ensure that the overarching
principles of subsidiarity was applied and continued to enable and support local decision making
on priority setting and public sector reform.

In conclusion, it was noted that the proposals had recently gone through Greater Manchester’s
internal governance with the intention of aligning the commissioning proposals with the outcomes
of the current commissioning review taking place across Greater Manchester. A detailed delivery
and transition plan would be developed, alongside an engagement and communications plan to
support the transition. The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership would work
with colleagues across the system and from the various sectors to co-design the approach to
delivery.

RESOLVED

(i) That the attached stocktake against the strategic objectives in the Greater
Manchester Population Plan be noted.

(i) That the update on the review of the current public health system across Greater
Manchester be noted.

(iii)  That actions needed to implement the Greater Manchester Population Health Plan be
included in the refresh of the Locality / Population Implementation Plan to be
presented at a future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

7. SYSTEMS OUTCOME FRAMEWORK

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public Health and accompanying
presentation detailing a System Outcomes Framework concentrating on high level outcomes to be
achieved across the whole system. The main objective was to increase healthy life expectancy
and reducing inequalities in the local population. Rather than focusing on progress targets, the
Tameside and Glossop Systems Outcomes Framework would set the context for the whole system
concentrating on high level outcomes covering the full spectrum from housing to health. It would
be the principle / umbrella intelligence tool and would be used in the wider context along with other
national and local intelligence to build a picture of health and wellbeing outcomes across Tameside
and Glossop and would:

e Provide a consistent approach for both commissioning and service provision;

e Support the refocusing of resources to achieve the ambition for the local population and
support new and innovative ways of working

e Ensure accountability across the system;

e Provide guidance and direction; and

Page 5



e Pull together relevant information from a range of sources.

The Board discussed the proposed framework outlined in the report including three system
outcomes and seven system themes and provided their initial thoughts on the framework. The
indicators included were being developed and partners were asked to provide their comments to
assist in refining the framework to ensure the system had the best outcome descriptors to drive
transformation for population health improvement.

RESOLVED

(i) That the Systems Outcomes Framework be adopted as the principle intelligence tool
for measuring economy progress towards improving healthy life expectancy.

(i) That partners provide any further comments to assist in refining the framework with
a definitive version being presented to a future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing
Board.

8. STRATEGIC APPROACH TO SUBSTANCE MISUSE

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public Health proposing a reporting
relationship to the Health and Wellbeing Board for the Tameside Strategic Alcohol and Drugs
Group and adoption of a new Tameside Alcohol Strategy — ‘Rethinking Drinking’.

To provide local system leadership and enable a collaborative approach to meeting the challenges
of substance misuse, members of the Tameside Strategic Alcohol and Drugs Group had worked
together for the past year. It was initially thought that the Group would best report to the Healthy
Lives Model of Care work stream of Care Together, but with the move to an implementation phase
for the Integrated Care Foundation Trust it was proposed that its system wide strategic remit was
most appropriately located with the Health and Wellbeing Board. The draft Terms of Reference
were attached to the report at Appendix 1.

The Tameside Strategic Alcohol and Drugs Group had drafted and consulted on a new strategy
document: ‘Rethinking Drinking’ — A Strategy for Tameside attached to the report at Appendix 4.
The Strategy emphasised that the level of alcohol related harm in Tameside was significant and
considerably worse than the national average, that this harm was felt across all areas of the public
sector and impacted on all sections of society. The Strategy outlined the local impact, how the
Strategic Alcohol and Drugs Group would work to reduce alcohol related harm in Tameside and
key focuses and priorities.

In addition, the Strategic Drugs and Alcohol Group prepared an annual Action Plan to guide its
work to reduce the local impact of substance misuse. The Action Plan for 2016/17 had a strong
emphasis on service transformation to reflect the establishment of a new service provider. The
Action Plan for 2017/18, attached to the report at Appendix 3, was developed through a
stakeholder workshop held in November 2016 and reflected four strategic priorities.

In conclusion, it was explained that at its meeting in May 2017 the Tameside and Glossop Single
Commissioning Board adopted a recommendation to transfer the contract for the local Drug and
Alcohol Recovery Service from Lifeline to CGL (Change, Grow, Live) from 1 June 2017. This was
prompted by a request from Lifeline and CGL based on an agreement that had been reached
between them following changes in the circumstances of Lifeline. In view of concerns raised by
members of the Single Commissioning Board, the comments of the Section 151 Officer, the short
notice of the change, the limited knowledge of the new provider and the absence of a tender
process, an enhanced financial and performance monitoring framework was requested to support
assurance and consideration of whether a re-tender was necessary.

In order to be assured of the capability and competence of CGL as an organisation and their ability

to achieve and deliver the contractual obligations, a full organisational questionnaire was submitted
by CGL, identical to the document provided by tendering organisations during the original service

Page 6



tender in 2015. CGL passed all sections of the document including element on organisational
information, financial details, insurance, equal opportunities, health and safety, clinical safety and
governance, business contingency and safeguarding. The terms of the novated contract were the
same as that agreed with Lifeline in 2015, and would run until July 2025.

RESOLVED
(i) That the Terms of Reference for the Tameside Strategic Alcohol and Drugs Group be
adopted.

(i) That the ‘Rethinking Drinking’ — Tameside Alcohol Strategy be adopted.

(iii) That the Tameside Strategic Alcohol and Drugs Group Action Plan 2017/18 be noted.

(iv) That the contract novation for the substance misuse service from Lifeline to CGL
(Change, Grow, Live) be noted.

9. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PLAN 2017/18

Consideration was given to report of the Director of Public Health, Business Intelligence and

Performance outlining the forward plan 2017/18 designed to cover both the statutory

responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the key projects identified as priorities.

RESOLVED

That the content of the forward plan 2017/18 be noted.

10. URGENT ITEMS

The Chair advised that there were no urgent items for consideration at this meeting.

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will take place on Thursday 21
September 2017 commencing at 10.00 am.

CHAIR

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Date: 21 September 2017
Executive Member / Alison Lewin, Deputy Director of Commissioning

Reporting Officer:
Subject: INTERMEDIATE CARE IN TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

Report Summary: The vision for intermediate care in Tameside & Glossop is for
the support to be delivered at home wherever possible. The
model should include an element of bed-based care, have
clear links with the Integrated Neighbourhoods (including the
Extensivists), a robust model for hospital discharge planning,
and be able to offer a response to urgent care requests.

The outcomes expected from a model of intermediate care are:
e Maximising independence;
e Preventing unnecessary hospital admissions;

e Preventing unnecessary admissions to long term
residential care;

e Following hospital admissions, optimising discharges to
usual place of residence.

This report sets out the work undertaken to date, a proposed
model for Intermediate Care for Tameside and Glossop, and
details of the consultation process approved by the Single
Commissioning Board on 22" August.

Also attached to this report are copies of the consultation
documents.

Recommendations: Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to note the decision
taken by the Single Commissioning Board on 22" August 2017
to approve the model outlined in the attached report, and agree
to consult with option 2 as the preferred option for the Single
Commission and Integrated Care Foundation Trust. The
consultation process commenced on 23 August and will run
for 12 weeks until 15" November 2017.

Links to Health and The proposals align with the living and ageing well elements of
Wellbeing Strategy: the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
Policy Implications: This report outlines a clear intention to include a programme of

engagement and formal consultation to ensure the patient and
public implications are understood and taken into account.
The report includes a full Equality Impact Assessment.

The Care Together programme is focused on the
transformation of the health and social care economy to
improve healthy life expectancy, reduce health inequalities and
deliver financial sustainability. This work is a critical part of the
programme

Page 9



Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Risk Management :

Access to Information :

Finance officer support was confirmed for the proposals
presented to Single Commissioning Board on 22 August 2017.

Budget Allocation (if | £ 1.983 million (via GM
Investment Decision) Transformation Funding)

CCG or TMBC Budget | CCG

Allocation

Integrated Section 75

Commissioning Fund

Section — S75, Aligned, In-

Collaboration

Decision Body - SCB, | SCB

Executive Cabinet, CCG

Governing Body

Value For Money | Expected savings to be
Implications - e.g. | realised of £ 0.453 million in
Savings Deliverable, | 2017/18 (part year effect) and
Expenditure Avoidance, | £ 0.686 million on a recurrent
Benchmark Comparisons | basis from 2018/19.

Additional Comments

The flexible bed base proposal has been subject to a
stringent business case and has been supported by the
Project Management Office gateway review process (Stage 2
complete).

It is essential that appropriate legal advice is sought in
respect of the public consultation prior to inclusion of the
report at the next Single Commissioning Board meeting.

An open and transparent consultation process is required to
attract maximum public engagement in order to ensure the
public sector equality duty has been complied with. This
should be reflected in the Equality Impact Assessment, which
decision makers must have due regard to before making any
decision. What needs to be considered is that Option 1 is
unlikely to be a viable option as it is not affordable. Therefore
is unlikely to be legal. By including in the consultation it will be
responded to as a viable option so there needs to be clear
communication as to why it is not.

This programme will be managed via the Care Together
Programme Management Office and therefore the risks will be
reported and monitored via this process

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected
by contacting Alison Lewin, by:

_ﬂTelephone: 07979 713019
"“#3 e-mail: alison.lewin@nhs.net

Page 10


mailto:alison.lewin@nhs.net

1.1

1.2

e O o o

2.1

2.2

3.1

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

The development of a system wide strategy for Intermediate Care for Tameside and Glossop
is required to enhance the delivery of intermediate care in the locality.

The vision is for the support to be delivered at home wherever possible. The model should
include an element of bed-based care, have clear links with the Integrated Neighbourhoods
(including the Extensivists), a robust model for hospital discharge planning, and be able to
offer a response to urgent care requests.

The outcomes expected from a model of intermediate care are:

Maximising independence

Preventing unnecessary hospital admissions

Preventing unnecessary admissions to long term residential care

Following hospital admissions, optimising discharges to usual place of residence

This report sets out the work undertaken to date, a proposed model for Intermediate Care for
Tameside and Glossop, and details of the recommended consultation process.

PROPOSED TIMESCALE AND MILESTONES

Attached to this report at Appendix 1 is the proposed timeline for the project, including the
consultation, resulting in the presentation of a final model to the Single Commissioning Board
in December 2017.

The Single Commission will engage and consult on the proposed Intermediate Care model
described in section 6 of this report. The outcome of the consultation will inform the model
presented to the Single Commissioning Board in December.

DEFINITION OF INTERMEDIATE CARE

The definition of Intermediate Care included in the National Audit of Intermediate Care 2017
(developed with the assistance of the Plain English Campaign) is set out below. This is the
definition which will be used in any communication, engagement and consultation work
referred to in this report and associated strategy documents. *

What is intermediate care?

Intermediate care services are provided to patients, usually older people, after leaving
hospital or when they are at risk of being sent to hospital. The services offer a link between
hospitals and where people normally live, and between different areas of the health and
social care system —community services, hospitals, GPs and social care.

What are the aims of intermediate care?
There are three main aims of intermediate care and they are to:

* Help people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily;
» Help people be as independent as possible after a stay in hospital; and
* Prevent people from having to move into a residential home until they really need to.

Where is intermediate care delivered?
Intermediate care services can be provided to people in different places, for example, in a
community hospital, residential home or in people’s own homes.

1 http://www.nhsbenchmarking.nhs.uk/CubeCore/.uploads/NAIC/NAIC%202017/NAIC2017overview.pdf

Page 11


http://www.nhsbenchmarking.nhs.uk/CubeCore/.uploads/NAIC/NAIC%202017/NAIC2017overview.pdf

41

4.2

4.3

How is intermediate care delivered?

A variety of different professionals can deliver this type of specialised care, from nurses and
therapists to social workers. The person or team providing the care plan will depend on the
individual’s needs at that time.

CASE FOR CHANGE

A number of factors and service reviews have led to the identification of Intermediate Care as
a priority for the Tameside and Glossop locality and the development of the model outlined in
this report.

Intermediate Care — Halfway Home: The Department of Health’'s 2009 intermediate care
guidance, Halfway Home? defined intermediate care as follows: Intermediate care is a range
of integrated services to promote faster recovery from illness, prevent unnecessary acute
hospital admission and premature admission to long-term residential care, support timely
discharge from hospital and maximise independent living. The initial guidance set out
definitions of intermediate care, service models, responsibilities for provision and charges
and planning. The definition included services that met the following criteria:

e They are targeted at people who would otherwise face unnecessarily prolonged hospital
stays or inappropriate admission to acute inpatient care, long term residential care or
continuing NHS in-patient care.

e They are provided on the basis of a comprehensive assessment, resulting in a
structured individual care plan that involves active therapy, treatment or opportunity for
recovery.

e They have a planned outcome of maximising independence and typically enabling
patients and service users to resume living at home.

e They are time-limited, normally no longer than six weeks and frequently as little as one
to two weeks or less.

e They involve cross-professional working, with a single assessment framework, single
professional records and shared protocols.

The local intermediate care offer described in this report embraces the philosophy of the
Halfway Home guidance, with a focus on delivering care and the required wrap-around
support to maximise independence.

National Audit for Intermediate Care 2015: The results of the National Audit for
Intermediate Care from 2015 (based on 2013-14 data from providers and commissioners
across the locality) identified the following in relation to the Tameside & Glossop intermediate
care model (summary / selection of key indicators):

e An above average investment in intermediate care per 100,000 weighted population (4"
highest of the 47 localities which participated);

e Above average beds commissioned per 100,000 weighted population (12t highest);

e Above average investment in bed based care compared with national average (£3.9m
against a national average of £2.3m);

e A positive response was provided to 6 of the 13 quality standards;

e A negative response to the commissioning of integrated home and bed based
intermediate care services.

The analysis of this report led to the early identification of Intermediate Care as a priority for
the developing Care Together programme. A number of developments have taken place,

2

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130124050747/http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod _consum_dh/groups/d

h_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@pg/documents/digitalasset/dh _103154.pdf

Page 12


http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130124050747/http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@pg/documents/digitalasset/dh_103154.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130124050747/http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@pg/documents/digitalasset/dh_103154.pdf

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.1

informed in part by this review, which are included in the current model of intermediate care.
The National Audit for Intermediate Care is taking place in 2017. The Single Commission
and Integrated Care Foundation Trust are participating in the audit to support the ongoing
review of the locality’s intermediate care system.

Tameside & Glossop NHS Foundation Trust Contingency Planning Team (CPT) Final
Report September 20153: Price Waterhouse Cooper were appointed by Monitor to carry
out a review of the Tameside and Glossop locality and produced a report which states that
improving the way services are currently delivered, through an innovative, more joined-up
approach across Tameside and Glossop, will improve the care patients receive and put
Tameside NHS Foundation Trust back on to a sound clinical and financial footing. The
Contingency Planning Team worked with a range of stakeholders across the locality to
develop proposals for a model of care which included a new Urgent Integrated Care Service.
Intermediate Care is described as a key element of the Urgent Integrated Care Service (now
developed and implemented as IUCT and Home First). One of the features included in the
Contingency Planning Team report is that the Urgent Integrated Care Service would be
increasingly delivered in people’s own homes.

A report presented to the Single Commissioning Board in August 2017 included a range of
other reports and analyses which support the case for change and the development of the
model outlined in this paper.

STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT AND ENGAGEMENT

An Intermediate Care strategy was developed, outlining national guidance, local expectations
of intermediate care, and the action taken over the past 2 years as part of the Care Together
programme to refine the Tameside and Glossop locality model. This document outlined the
expectations from the Single Commission for the delivery of intermediate care at home
wherever possible, therefore requiring a clear model of community based care and an
appropriate level of bed based intermediate care.

The Single Commission reviewed the outputs from previous consultation and engagement on
intermediate care and the wider Care Together model to inform the model of Intermediate
Care. This includes information extracted from the engagement events facilitated by Action
Together and the Glossop Volunteer Centre, and information from Care Together
engagement events facilitated by the NHS Benchmark Consulting team during 2014/15.

The Commissioning Directorate supported a range of pre-consultation engagement events in
early summer 2017 to inform the final proposal for a model of intermediate care for Tameside
and Glossop.

Details of the engagement activities referred to in this report are included in the paper
presented to the Single Commissioning Board in August 2017.

PROPOSED MODEL FOR INTERMEDIATE CARE IN TAMESIDE & GLOSSOP

The proposals for Intermediate Care set out in this report have been prepared jointly by
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust and the Single Commission
and have been designed to support delivery of the Commissioning Strategy for Intermediate
care services. The strategy document describes the aim to support rehabilitation and
recuperation, maximising people’s ability to function independently, and enabling them to
continue living at home in all but most challenging cases. With a requirement for:

3

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment _data/file/461261/Final CPT _report.pdf

Page 13


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/461261/Final_CPT_report.pdf

6.2

e Home-based intermediate tier services, offering intensive packages of care to people in
their own homes (including residential and nursing homes) provided by an integrated
team providing both health and social care input based on individual need.

e Community intermediate care beds where it is deemed that service users, although
medically fit, have a higher level of need and require a period of 24-hour care whilst
undergoing intensive short term rehabilitation packages.

e An ability to care for clients with all levels of dementia, in an appropriate setting.

Home First: One of the key principles within the Tameside and Glossop Care Together
approach to integrated care is that wherever it is possible for a person to have their care
requirements met within their own place of residence, the system will be responsive to
meeting this need in a timely manner. This principle is embodied in this proposal for an
intermediate care model. In order to be responsive to people’s needs and deliver against this
principle Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust has implemented the
“‘Home First” service model. This model will provide a response to meet an urgent/crisis
health and/or social care need. Home first is fundamental to the intermediate care offer and
is a key interface between the Integrated Neighbourhoods, community services and the
acute setting, ensuring people are supported in the environment that is suited to their own
care needs and most likely to achieve positive outcomes. This supports the intermediate
care aims of:

e Helping people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily;
e Helping people be as independent as possible after a stay in hospital; and
e Preventing people from having to move into a residential home until they really need to.

The Home first model comprises of two key elements:

Admission Avoidance Discharge to Assess

People are supported to safely remain at home
therefore avoiding admission to bed-based care

- Where additional support is required that goes

Where acute hospital care is no longer required
then a period of 'step down' support may be
required which can be safely provided in either
the person's home or a community bed-based

beyond that which can safely be provided at home
then a period of 'step up' care may be required in a
community bed-based service

- Where additional support is required which goes
beyond that which can safely be provided within a
community bed-based service then a period of 'step-
up' care may be required within an acute hospital bed

6.3

service

- Where additional support and assessment is
required which cannot safely be provided at
home then a period of 'step down' support may
be required within a community bed-based
service

- People are supported to return home, and the
assessments required to maintain them at
home occur within this environment

The Home First offer will ensure that people are supported through the most appropriate
pathway with “home” always being the default position. However, it is recognised that not all
individuals’ intermediate care needs can be managed safely in their own home. In some
cases there is a need for an alternative community based bed, for a short period of time, to

Page 14



6.4

6.5

6.6

enable the appropriate interventions to be undertaken with the individual to enable them to
return home, whether this be following an admission to the Hospital or to avoid the need for
an admission in the first place.

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust has identified four core interfaces
where services are provided to patients which make up the Intermediate Care model:

Integrated Neighbourhood services;

Intermediate / Specialist Community Based Services;
Community Bed Setting;

Acute Hospital Setting.

Integrated Neighbourhood Services: The Integrated Care Foundation Trust and the
Commissioners are working collaboratively through the Care Together programme to
develop five Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, which will be Multi-disciplinary teams
comprising Primary care (including GP services and pharmacists), community services such
as district nursing and therapy services, social care, Mental Health services and the
voluntary/community sector. The vision of these Neighbourhood Teams is to provide place
based care to support neighbourhoods to deliver high quality and connected services which
look after the whole neighbourhood population, to support self-care in order to improve
outcomes, prosperity and wellbeing. The services will aim to:

Optimise self-care and family/carers support;

Help people live as independently as possible;

Improve condition management;

Co-ordinate delivery of services from all providers;

Provide seamless support during periods of crisis and the transition to / from hospital

based care;

Ensure a multi-disciplinary case management approach;

e Use risk stratification data to identify those who may benefit from care co-ordination and
put this into place;

¢ Reduce the need for crisis interventions.

In respect of intermediate care model the Integrated Neighbourhoods through the GP, social
care services and community teams will provide a co-ordinated care and support service to
people who live in their neighbourhood area who have intermediate care needs, long-term
conditions, other ongoing care and support needs, or who are most at risk of unplanned
admissions to hospital. The multi-disciplinary team will also link with the intermediate
tier/specialist and urgent care services to provide additional care input where required, to
step-up services to avoid a hospital admission or social care placement, or support people
returning to their place of residence following an acute admission, with the aim of supporting
people to be as independent as possible.

The Integrated Neighbourhood Teams will also include social prescribing navigators to help
patients and carers to identify non-medical, voluntary and community services that will
benefit their overall health and well-being, these might include social or physical
services/clubs to encourage social inclusion and physical independence.

Intermediate / Specialist Community Based Services: The Integrated Care Foundation
Trust has identified a range of more specialist community based services that are available
which provide a link between acute services and the Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.
These form a core element of the out of hospital intermediate care offer. The Intermediate
Tier services will provide short term intensive interventions to people who require higher
intensity or more specialist care than is available within the Neighbourhood services, and
provide care to meet the specific aims of the intermediate care strategy of:

Page 15



6.7

e Helping people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily;
e Helping people be as independent as possible after a stay in hospital.

Intermediate Tier services will be provided following a referral from a Neighbourhood service
or from the acute setting, to support early discharge from hospital care, or to enable people
to remain in their own home for treatment. Risk stratification data will in some cases identify
those who may benefit from additional care input based on individual needs. The
Intermediate Tier will take a proactive approach to care for people who have ongoing health
and care needs, or are at a high risk of experiencing worsening health or unplanned
admissions, and will in some circumstances accept self-referrals. The Intermediate Tier
services which will provide services for the intermediate care offer include:

e A new Extensivist service has commenced to work with those individuals living with
complex ongoing health and care needs, to improve their health and wellbeing and
reduce demand on services by ensuring that their care is managed more effectively.
This will offer a fundamentally different way of organising care around an individual’s
needs, including medical, social, psychological, functional, pharmaceutical and self-care.
This will be staffed by specialist Extensivist consultants or GPs, who will work with a
cohort of high risk patients identified through risk stratification.

e 7 day Community IV therapy service to provide IV therapy in the home setting.

¢ Digital Health Service — a new innovative service which provides Care Homes and the
Community Response Service with access via SKYPE to an Advanced Nurse
Practitioner for clinical consultation and advice.

e Reablement which is a social care service which provides time limited care to
intermediate care patients.

e  Community Therapy services

e Integrated Urgent Care Team made up of therapists (physio and occupational), nurses,
social workers and other care and support staff. The team works between the hospital
and the community, supporting people or who are experiencing some difficulties within
their own home or who have been discharged from hospital, intermediate care or other
health and social care environments. The team will have a key role in responding to
people with urgent care needs. Ongoing support will then be provided for up to 72 hours
to allow for close working with the Neighbourhood Teams, who will manage their
ongoing care and support needs where possible.

e Community Social Care services provided by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
and Derbyshire County Council that will assess and provide care to patients to ensure
they are able to remain independent for as long as possible and to delay placements into
long term residential care. Social care is a fundamental part of the Integrated Care
model in Tameside and Glossop. Progress is being made with proposals for Tameside
MBC social care staff to transfer to the Integrated Care Foundation Trust in due course.
Closer alignment of services is also planned with Derbyshire County Council for Glossop
residents.

The intermediate tier services will focus on ensuring that people have access to specialised
care in the community, to avoid unnecessary admissions, and will have a key role in helping
coordinate care around an individual’s needs, to allow them to return to their normal place of
residence as quickly and easily as possible.

Community Bed Setting - Overview: The health and social care economy is currently
commissioning community based beds from a range of sources from across the local
economy. This includes intermediate care beds, spot beds and an arrangement for
discharge to assess beds. In order to improve the community bed offer locally a revised
model is being proposed in this report. The key principle of the flexible community bed base
model is that support will be delivered through location-based community beds providing
general nursing whilst encouraging independence and reablement, alongside in-reach from
specialist teams such as therapy services, primary care and mental health. This will ensure
individual centred management plans based on care needs that support people’s transition

Page 16



6.8

6.9

back home effectively and ensure a smooth transfer of care, when necessary, to the
Integrated Neighbourhood. A flexible community bed-base is key to effective intermediate
care as it supports an individual's needs that cannot be met through home based
intermediate care. By providing an enabling environment for further assessment,
rehabilitation, completion of treatment and/or recuperation, it will prevent unnecessary
admissions to hospital (through step up) or into long term care, and facilitate timely discharge
to assess for those people not able to be assessed at home but do not require acute hospital
based care. When home is not an option for the provision of care for an individual, the
flexible community beds base will offer:

Step down capacity for discharge to assess (including complex assessments);

Step up capacity to avoid acute admission;

Intermediate Care Capacity;

Recuperation beds that offer an opportunity to re-stabilise prior to undertaking
rehabilitation;

e Specialist assessment and rehabilitation for people with dementia.

The model will provide community beds for individuals with dementia who are at risk of being
admitted to hospital or remaining in a hospital bed because they are awaiting assessments.
At present there is no local provision to meet this requirement outside of the acute settings
meaning that these individuals remain in hospital for longer than is necessary.

The Integrated Care Foundation Trust is the provider of all intermediate care beds for
Tameside and Glossop as of 1 July 2017, and currently provides community beds from two
locations: 64 beds in the Stamford Unit at Darnton House?, which is a 3-floor 96 bedded
purpose-built nursing home adjacent to the Tameside Hospital site (the Trust currently uses
two floors, one for intermediate care and one for discharge to assess) and 36 intermediate
care beds in Shire Hill Hospital located in Glossop.

Acute Hospital Setting: The Acute element of the Intermediate Care model forms part of
the “Home First” service that responds the urgent/crisis health and/or social care need for
patients. The Home First model is described in detail above, through the Integrated Urgent
Care Team and the discharge to assess team, which ensures patients are supported through
the most appropriate pathway with “home” always being the goal.

Community Bed Model — the proposal: All intermediate care models recognise the need
for a bed-based offer. The National Audit of Intermediate Care 2014 showed that whilst
locally we spend more than the national average on intermediate care, (beds and community
based service) the balance is weighted toward beds with 79% more intermediate care beds
than the national average. The Integrated Care Foundation Trust believes that the
intermediate care model proposed in this paper redresses the balance to align more closely
to the national average and restates the focus of intermediate care away from a purely bed
based offer with the embedding of the ‘home first’ principles.

If Tameside and Glossop intermediate care beds were in line with the national average for
our population we assessed that we would need 65 beds.

4 Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust registered from 1st July
2016 with the CQC the location of The Stamford Unit at Darnton House. This was to provide
a community in-patient facility as part its intermediate care services. Services in the Stamford
Unit at Darnton House are accessed via agreed Trust patient pathways and it operates as
community wards for medically stable patients who are having their discharge planned and
enabled. They form part of services provided by the Trust as a provider of commissioned
Acute and Community services for the population of Tameside and Glossop within the
Integrated Care Foundation Trust.

Page 17



6.10

The Integrated Care Foundation Trust is the provider of all intermediate care beds for
Tameside and Glossop as of 1 July 2017, and currently provides community beds from two
locations: 64 beds in the Stamford Unit at Darnton House and 36 intermediate care beds in
Shire Hill Hospital located in Glossop. Therefore a total of 100 community beds in the
system, 68 of which are currently ‘intermediate care’ beds.

Alongside the ongoing development and delivery of the Integrated Neighbourhoods and
intermediate tier services, and the implementation of the Home First model (which ensures
delivery of robust intermediate care services in the home setting) this paper proposes that all
the community beds should be located in a single location in order to utilise the resource
flexibly to meet the needs of people in Tameside and Glossop, and fully deliver the service
model for intermediate care beds. Offering these services from a single site provides the
opportunity for a more holistic, flexible and skilled workforce. Staffing resource would be
focussed on one site so able to work across and with a wide range of conditions, providing
resilience and responsiveness.

Options for delivery of bed based intermediate care: In order to deliver the proposed
model, a number of options have been considered. The Single Commission and Integrated
Care Foundation Trust identified 3 options for the delivery of a flexible community bed base.
All options should be considered alongside the ongoing development and delivery of the
Home Frist model, Integrated Neighbourhoods, the Intermediate / Specialist Community
Based Services, and acute hospital based elements of intermediate care.

Option 1: Maintain current arrangements
Delivery of bed based intermediate care from the Stamford Unit at Darnton House (32 beds)
and Shire Hill in Glossop (36 beds).

The view of the Single Commission and Integrated Care Foundation Trust is that this is not a
sustainable model going forwards. As described in the report, the economy is not functioning
to its optimum: people are in acute beds that do not need to be, they are in these beds for
longer than they need to be, and they are unable to access the services they require at the
time they need them. The current arrangements are fragmented — beds are delivered across
2 sites — Shire Hill and the Stamford Unit at Darnton House. At present staff are working
from a number of bases, with the expectation that community and neighbourhood staff travel
across the locality, diluting the capacity and time that could be inputted with individuals to
maximise the potential for returning home promptly. This option does not deliver the vision of
a single location for bed based intermediate care.

Option 2: Use of available 96 bedded unit

Transfer of all bed-based intermediate care to a single location in the Stamford Unit at
Darnton House. This is the preferred option from the assessment carried out by the Single
Commission and Integrated Care Foundation Trust for the following reasons:

o  Whilst the aim of the home first model is to use the community beds flexibly to meet the
demand at any point in time, the notional intermediate care bed figure proposed is 64
beds.

e Patient Environment - The Stamford Unit is 100% en-suite single room accommodation
with significant communal space on each of the three wards which has been
demonstrated to encourage social interaction and independence. Additionally one floor
of the Stamford Unit in the Darnton Building has been designed as dementia friendly
with access to outside space and wandering routes, which will enable the Trust to
provide community beds for patients with Dementia.

e Accessibility — the Stamford Unit is located in a central location and is co-located close
to the Tameside Hospital site and therefore has strong public transport links, ample
parking and is easily accessible for patients and relatives. Additionally easy access and
short journey times for health care professionals and support services into Darnton
Building will enable development of in-reach into the unit as proposed in the model.

Page 18



6.11

71

7.2

7.3

e Recruitment and Retention — recruitment and retention of nursing and support staff at
the Shire Hill hospital site is an ongoing risk due to the remote location at the edge of the
conurbation and lack of public transport access.

e Single location — option 2 supports the delivery of bed based intermediate care from a
single location to enable the flexible use of community beds to support the Home First
model and enable the approaches to Discharge to Assess and Intermediate Care to be
flexed depending on the demands in the system at any point in time.

e Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust registered from 1 July
2016 with the Care Quality Commission the location of The Stamford Unit at Darnton
House.

e This option meets the national definition of ‘intermediate care’ from a combination of
home and bed-based services and is in line with the recommendations of the
Contingency Planning Team report from 2015 (referred to in section 4).

Option 3: Stimulation of the Local Market to Develop Single / Multi Site

Engagement with local providers to develop capacity within existing care homes, or the
development of capacity in new homes is an option. Whilst the benefits of a larger scheme
would not be realised, it is possible that in the longer term, once the Integrated
Neighbourhoods and Home First models have fully embedded, that there could be a benefit
to developing capacity at a neighbourhood level. The maturity of the wider economy may
mean that fewer community beds are required, and that services could be developed at a
neighbourhood level to meet need.

This option relies on their being the engagement from providers to invest locally in increasing
capacity. Should this be available there would be a lead in time to any new building, which
would again require a short term solution until additional bed capacity is developed. There
are a number of providers who have indicated their interest in working on developments with
the Single Commission so this is something that is possible to negotiate. While the current
capacity has been estimated, it is difficult to commit at this time to the capacity that may be
required in the economy in 2-3 years’ time, which is the information a provider would need in
order for providers to invest in new capacity.

Proposal: The proposal is that the Single Commission with the Integrated Care Foundation
Trust enter into a formal consultation programme, based on the 3 options outlined above,
stating the case for the current preferred option as Option 2.

FINANCIAL MODEL

The Care Together Project Management Office are supporting the locality’s ‘Savings
Assurance’ programme by ensuring a consistent approach is applied to all projects, using a
gateway approach to scope and approve projects via the Finance Economy Workstream and
Locality Executive Group.

Financial Summary of Current Position: The recurrent funding available for the provision
of intermediate care inpatient services within Tameside and Glossop equated to ¢ £8.7m per
annum, with a total spend if we “did nothing” of £9.75m due to overspends on agency spend
due to recruitment pressures. Spot beds were funded in 2016/17 non-recurrently, this
equated to £0.75m.

Financial Summary of Proposal — Flexible Community Beds: The proposal requires
funding for £8.26m for the provision of 96 flexible community beds at Darnton house. This
delivers a saving on a recurrent basis of £0.69m against recurrent budget from 1 April 2018.

CONSULTATION

Page 19



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

10.

10.1

The proposals included in section 6 include the intention to bring together a community bed
provision on a single site that can be flexed and responsive to meet clinical demands, whilst
supporting the principles of ‘home first’. This is a level of change to service delivery which
requires a period of formal consultation.

The consultation offers local people the opportunity to comment on the proposals and
options which have been developed and considered by the Single Commission and the
Integrated Care Foundation Trust. The options for consultation, the details of which can be
seen in section 6.11, are:

e Option 1: Maintain current status.

e Option 2: Use of available 96 bed facility and co-location of all intermediate and
community beds as ‘flexible bed base’ model (Stamford Unit, Darnton House).

e Option 3: Stimulation of the market to develop a single / multi-location base.

The consultation is in the form of a standard questionnaire with an introduction to explain the
reason for the changes followed by a series of questions. There are free format text boxes to
allow people to provide any comments, views and suggestions they wish to be taken into
account.

The consultation is available on the CCG website at:
http://www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/get-involved/intermediate-care-consultation

In order to encourage as many people as possible to express their views contact has been
made with a range of organisations with a request to make their service users, groups and
members aware. Due to the identification of an impact on certain Protected Characteristic
Groups, this work will include some focused discussions with representatives from
stakeholder groups representing over 65s, those with dementia, carers, and people with
disabilities. The link to the on-line consultation along with a word document version for
printing in paper format will be provided.

Staff in the Integrated Care Foundation Trust, Tameside MBC and Derbyshire CC will be
made fully aware of the consultation and will be encouraged to complete the survey so that
their perspective can be included in the evaluation.

A programme of consultation will commence on 23 August, and will run for 12 weeks until 15
November 2017.

ALIGNMENT WITH REVIEW OF ESTATES

The Single Commission and Integrated Care Foundation Trust are working together, via the
Strategic Estates Group, on a review of the ‘Neighbourhood Assets’ to ensure alignment
between any proposals arising from the intermediate care strategy and the plans for the
estate in the locality.

QUALITY AND EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Detailed Quality and Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken to support the
proposals included in this document, which will be used to support the consultation process.
These can be seen in the Single Commissioning Board paper via the Clinical Commissioning
Group website.

Page 20


http://www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/get-involved/intermediate-care-consultation

11. RECOMMENDATION

11.1 As set out on the front of the report

Page 21



Appendix 1

Timetable for Intermediate Care Model Development & Consultation

Draft initial strategy

Ongoing
development of
strategy & model

Pre-consultation
engagement

Paper to PRG &
SCB - draft strategy
& plan

Produce consultation
documents/model

Consultation and
engagement

Produce final
proposal

Final proposal to
SCB

Page 22



Review of Intermediate
Care provision in
Tameside and Glossop

(OPTIONS FOR THE DELIVERY OF BED BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE)

5 ®

Ve.
= 1

L8



INTRODUCTION

NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is committed to ensuring the best possible
health care is provided for residents in Tameside and Glossop. However we face significant challenges in
providing quality services that meet the needs of a growing older population and the increasing number

of people with long-term health conditions that need care. In order to meet the health care needs of our
population for the future and within the budgets available, the CCG and its partners have reviewed ways to
deliver our services. This consultation focuses on how we continue providing a high quality, responsive and
accessible Intermediate Care service in Tameside and Glossop in light of increased demand.

WHAT IS INTERMEDIATE CARE?

Intermediate Care services are provided to patients, usually older people, after leaving hospital or when they
are at risk of being sent to hospital. The services offer a link between hospitals and where people normally
live, and between different areas of the health and social care system — community services, hospitals, GPs
and social care.

The main aims of Intermediate Care are to:

. Help people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily;
. Help people be as independent as possible after a stay in hospital; and
. Prevent people from having to move into a residential home until they really need to.

HOW AND WHERE IS INTERMEDIATE CARE DELIVERED?

Intermediate Care can be provided to people in different places, for example:

* inacommunity hospital,
e residential home; or
e inpeople’s own homes. We have invested heavily in this in recent years.

We've also introduced the following services as part of our Intermediate Care offer:

e Digital Health Service providing Care Homes and the Community Response Service with rapid access to
an Advanced Nurse practitioner for advice via SKYPE.

e  An Extensive Gare Service (including additional doctors called Extensivists) to work with individuals living
with complex ongoing health and care needs.

e Intravenous Therapy service now provided in the home.

A variety of different professionals can deliver this type of specialised care, from nurses and therapists to
social workers. The person or team providing care will depend on the individual’s needs at that time.

Page 24



HOW HAVE WE DEVELOPED THE PROPOSALS?

Engagement on developing a new model for Intermediate Care began in 2014 with specific focus groups
involving members of the public and patients. These sessions identified key issues that need addressing.

e Thereis no ‘step up’ into Intermediate Care bed based services which means patients are often admitted
direct to hospital when care could be provided in a community setting.

o Patients stay in hospital longer than necessary whilst they are being assessed to identify their ongoing
needs — which is not ideal for the hospital OR for the patient

Further engagement events have taken place more recently with patient groups from across the community
to help us understand views on the current system of Intermediate Care and people’s expectations for future
provision. The key findings from these discussions were:

e Theimportance of supporting people to live independent lives but also remain safe.

e  Recognition that a community based bed offer is needed but where possible individuals should be cared
for at home.

e The ‘step-up’ offer which avoids direct admission to hospital needs to be expanded; this can be achieved
through care at home or in a community based setting.

e Intermediate Care needs to focus on the physical needs of the individual but also take into consideration
and be able to support their wider emotional needs, including people with mental health needs.

e The environment in which Intermediate Care is delivered needs to enable individuals to interact with
others and provide physical space to help them regain their independence.

r\ co

m TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP
Tameside and Glossop que TOgeTher
Clinical Commissioning Group SINGLE COMMISSIONING FUNCTION



OUR APPROACH TO INTERMEDIATE CARE

Care Together is our plan in Tameside and Glossop to bring health and social care services together to
improve quality and access to the services you need.

A key priority of our Care Together Programme is:

e to support people at home, wherever possible and safe to do so, or in a community bed where home is
not appropriate; and

e toavoid unnecessary hospital attendances, admission and to ensure prompt and safe discharges back
into the community or home.

To enable us to achieve this ambition in regards to Intermediate Care, we have implemented the ‘Home First’

model which comprises of two key elements: avoiding hospital admissions where unnecessary and ensuring

individuals can leave hospital as soon as they are well enough to.

Our overall approach to Intermediate Care is shown below in Figure 1.1.

FIGURE 1.1: INTERMEDIATE CARE MODEL

‘Home First’ (overarching principle)

/

Other Services:

Digital Health
Extensivists

IV Therapy Team
Social Prescribing
Reablement Service
Single Point of Contact

Acute
Services
Hospital

S
S
4
&

Admissions Mental Health Services
Neighbourhood
community Bed Pharmames
Setting Glossop Community
Provides beds in the community Paramedic Service
R for those individuals needing
e‘;s?’ additional support

Intermediate/Specialist Community
Based Services
Provides short term intensive interventions to Home/
individuals who need specialist care. Community

2 7 T X K

Glossop Ashton Stalybridge Denton Hyde
and Mossley Home

Five neighbourhood tea includeﬁs ’s, pharmacists, district nurses,
social care, mental h e luntary/community services.




The ‘Home First’ model ensures that people are supported through the most appropriate pathway with care
provided in the home always being the preferred option. However, it is recognised that not all individuals’
Intermediate Care needs can be managed safely in their own home. In some cases there is a need for a
community based bed, for a short period of time, to enable the appropriate interventions to be undertaken
with the individual to enable them to return home without going into hospital (Admission Avoidance) or as
soon as they are medically fit (Discharge to Assess).

This ‘Home First’ model of care, explained in the diagram below, is a key component of our overall
Intermediate Care offer.

FIGURE 1.2: HOME FIRST MODEL OF CARE

Admission Avoidance Discharge to Assess

People are supported to safely remain at home Where acute hospital care is no longer
therefore avoiding admission to bed-based required then a period of ‘step-down’ support
care may be required which can be safely provided
in either a person’s home or community bed-
e Where additional support is required that based service
goes beyond that which can be safely
provided at home then a period of ‘step Where additional support and assessment

up’ care may be required in a community is required which cannot be safely
bed-based service. provided at home then a period of ‘step-
down’ support may be required within a
e Where additional support is required community bed-based service
which goes beyond that which can be
safely provided within a community bed- e People are supported to return home

3

based service then a period of ‘step-up, and the assessments required to
care may be required within an acu maintain them at home occur within this
hospital bed. environment

In addition to Home First model, Integrated Neighbourhood Teams have been established across five
localities including Glossop. This is an integrated team comprising of primary care (including GP services and
pharmacists), community services such as district nursing and therapy services, social care, mental health
services and the voluntary/community sector.

These Neighbourhood Teams will deliver high quality, core health and care services, tailored to the
neighbourhood population in order to best meet the specific needs of the population and to improve
outcomes. In respect of the intermediate care model, the Integrated Neighbourhoods through the GP, social
care services and community teams will provide a co-ordinated care and support service to people who live in
their neighbourhood area who have intermediate care needs. The team will also link with the intermediate tier/
specialist and urgent care services to provide additional care input where required.

If the preferred option is implemented with intermediate care provided in one central location in the Stamford
Unit, these Integrated neighbourhood and specialist services will provide Glossop with a community based
offer of care in addition to the service provided from the Stamford Unit. This includes a care offer from
community clinic locations including the Glossop Primary Care centre, GP practices, care homes, community
beds or in patients own homes. These services Wi!jlaﬁélo ?ossop patients to be safely provided with
intermediate care more locally instead of needing t0 h ing ent stay in a community bed, based on
clinical assessment.



THE OPTIONS FOR PROVIDING BED BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE SERVICES

This consultation seeks your views on three options for providing the bed based Intermediate Care services
(highlighted in yellow in the model in Figure 1.1).

Currently we provide 68 bed based Intermediate Care in two locations:
e 32 beds in the Stamford Unit in Ashton on the site of and run by Tameside Hospital (Tameside and

Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust).
e 36 Intermediate Care beds in Shire Hill in Glossop also run by Tameside Hospital.

FIGURE 1.3 CURRENT LOCATION OF COMMUNITY BASED BEDS

AP * Stamford Unit and Shire Hill <N

Stamford Unit
Shire Hill

0 0.4250.85 1.7 2.55 34

T iy A
& fight'and datab@@&rights 2017 Ordnance-Survéy. 1000
i o A

)
o J - Author: Policy & Communications

Page 28



OPTION 1: MAINTAIN CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS

This option maintains the number of beds provided at the Stamford Unit (32) within the Tameside Hospital
site and maintains the current community beds provided at Shire Hill in Glossop (36 beds). There is also
access to 32 ‘discharge to assess’ beds at the Stamford Unit.

The facilities available at each of the two locations are different and provide differing levels of care, due in
part to the location of and facilities available in the buildings.

This option requires staff to work from a number of locations, with the expectation that community and
neighbourhood staff travel across the area reducing the amount of time that can be spent with individuals
to help them return home quickly.

It is our view that this is not a sustainable model for the future.

Between April 2015 and May 2017; 847 service users stayed at Shire Hill only 40% of them lived within 5
miles of it. 84% of them lived within 5 miles of Stamford Unit.

Between March 2015 and May 2017; 1,279 service users stayed at Stamford Unit and 96% of them lived
with 5 miles of it.

In the off-peak period, during weekdays, 80% of residents in Tameside and Glossop can reach the
Stamford Unit by public transport within 45 minutes compared to 24% travelling to Shire Hill.

OPTION 2: ALL BED-BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE IN A SINGLE LOCATION AT

THE STAMFORD UNIT. (OUR PREFERRED OPTION)

All bed-based Intermediate Care would be provided at a single location in the Stamford Unit run by Tameside
Hospital on their site in Ashton. The hospital is rated Good by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). The
provision of Intermediate Care beds at Shire Hill in Glossop would cease.

This option provides 64 Intermediate Care beds in the Stamford Unit, Ashton

If we located all the Intermediate Care beds along with the ‘discharge to assess’ beds in the Stamford
Unit, we would have a dedicated building of 96 beds which could be used flexibly to accommodate daily
patient need.

27% of patients from Shire Hill were readmitted back to the hospital as their condition required greater
clinical support which cannot be provided at Shire Hill, but is more accessible from the Stamford

site. One central location will reduce transfers which fragments the care pathway and creates a poor
experience for the patient themselves and their families.

The Stamford Unit is able to provide single room accommaodation, each with their own en-suite facilities
along with significant communal space on each of the three wards. This encourages social interaction
and independence and provides space to support rehabilitation and patients’ excercises.

One floor of the Stamford Unit has been designed to be dementia friendly with access to outside space
and wandering routes, which will enable us to provide intermediate care and ‘discharge to assess’ beds
in a unit which is able to support patients with dementia.

The Stamford Unit is located in a central location in Ashton within the Tameside Hospital site. The site
has good public transport links, parking facilities, is well known and is easily accessible for patients and
relatives.

Additionally easy access and short journey times for health care professionals and support staff between
the Stamford Unit and main hospital will reduce staff travelling time, increase specialist support to all
Intermediate Care beds and enable the development of services in the unit.

OPTION 3: DEVELOP A SCHEME OF BED BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE

WITHIN LOCAL PRIVATE CARE HOMES

This option would require us to work with private care home providers to develop capacity within existing

care homes or invest locally in increasing capacity to host bed based Intermediate Care. This option would

mean that Intermediate Care beds are not located iFad)réle tion but spread out across the area where
m

capacity can be found. This option requires care h

d be willing to invest in increasing bed

spaces and if new care homes were required, a short term solution would be required whilst capacity in the
system is built.



TABLE 1.1: SUMMARY OF OPTIONS

Stamford Unit,
Ashton

Private Care Home
Provider

Shire Hill, Glossop

Current Provision

Option 1

Option 2

Option 3

HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS

We are keen to hear your views on the three options set-out above. You can provide your views by:

Completing the online survey at: www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/intermediatecare

You can pick up a paper copy at local GP’s across Tameside and Glossop.

Write to us at: NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group, Dukinfield Town Hall, King Street,
Dukinfield. SK16 4LA or email us at: tgccg.communications@nhs.net

HOW WILL WE USE YOUR COMMENTS?

The consultation will run for 12 weeks from 23 August 2017 until 15 November 2017. Once the consultation
closes, the CCG will analyse all the responses received by the closing date. This feedback from residents,
along with a range of other factors including legal and financial considerations, will be taken into account
when preparing a final proposal on which option should be implemented. It is proposed that a report will
be taken to Single Commissioning Board with our recommendations in December 2017. This report will be
available on the CCG’s website: www.tamesideandglossopccg.org

WHERE CAN | GET MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THIS CONSULTATION?

More information, including the detailed reports presented to the Tameside & Glossop Single Commissioning
Board, are available via the CCG website at: www.tamesideandglossopceg.org

e

m TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP
Tameside and Glossop que TOgeTh er

Clinical Commissioning Group SINGLE COMMISSIONING FUNCTION




TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP . m
Caretogether Tameside and Glossop

Review of Intermediate Care provision in Tameside & Glossop
(Options for the delivery of bed based Intermediate Care)

NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) are committed to
ensuring the best possible health care is provided for residents in Tameside and
Glossop. However we face significant challenges in providing quality services that
meet the needs of a growing older population and the increasing number of people
with long-term health conditions that need care. In order to meet the health care
needs of our population for the future and within the budgets available, the CCG and
its partners have reviewed ways to deliver our services. This consultation focuses on
how we continue providing a high quality, responsive and accessible Intermediate
Care service in Tameside and Glossop in light of increased demand

1. Have you ever used Intermediate Care services in Tameside & Glossop? (Please
tick one box only)

O Yes (Goto Q2) O No (Goto Q4)
2. When did you last use Intermediate Care services in Tameside & Glossop? (Please
tick one box only)

O Within the last month
Within the last six months
Within the last year

Within the last two years

O O O O

More than two years ago
3. Which Intermediate Care facility / services have you previously used? (Please tick
all that apply)
O Shire Hill
O Stamford Unit (on the site of Tameside Hospital)
O Grange View
O

Community services / Reablement e.g. you received treatment from a nurse /
physiotherapist etc in your own home

O Other (please state)

Page 31



TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP . m
Caretogether Tameside and Glossop

4. Intermediate Care helps people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily and
supports people to come out of hospital as quickly as possible. It helps people stay in
their own homes and to keep their independence for as long as possible. The
Intermediate Care offer across Tameside & Glossop will include a home-based
service, which will give a more intensive amount of care in people’s own home. This
will be provided by a joint team of social care (carers and social workers) and health
professionals (nurses and therapists).

What are your thoughts on a home based Intermediate Care service being provided
across Tameside & Glossop? (Please write your comments in the box below)

5. There are three options in our model for how bed based Intermediate Care services
could be delivered across Tameside & Glossop in the future. Please tell us what each
of these options would mean for you if they were implemented? (Please write your
comments in the box below each option)

You can access further information about the Intermediate Care service and each
option in our information document available at
www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/intermediatecare

Option 1: Maintain current arrangements

This option maintains the number of beds provided at the Stamford Unit (32) within
the Tameside Hospital site and maintains the current community beds provided at
Shire Hill in Glossop (36 beds). There is also access to 32 ‘discharge to assess’ beds
at the Stamford Unit.

e The facilities available at each of the two locations are different and provide differing
levels of care, due in part to the location of and facilities available in the buildings.

e This option requires staff to work from a number of locations, with the expectation that
community and neighbourhood staff travel across the area reducing the amount of time
that can be spent with individuals to help them return home quickly.

e Itis our view that this is not a sustainable model for the future.

o Between April 2015 and May 2017; 847 service users stayed at Shire Hill only 40% of
them lived within 5 miles of it. 84% of them lived within 5 miles of Stamford Unit.

e Between March 2015 and May 2017; 1,279 service users stayed at Stamford Unit and
96% of them lived with 5 miles of it.

Page 32


http://www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/intermediatecare

TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP . m
Caretogether Tameside and Glossop

¢ In the off-peak period, during weekdays, 80% of residents in Tameside and Glossop can
reach the Stamford Unit by public transport within 45 minutes, compared to 24% travelling
to Shire Hill.

Option 2: All bed-based intermediate care in a single location at the Stamford Unit.

This is our preferred option. All bed-based Intermediate Care would be provided at a
single location in the Stamford Unit run by Tameside Hospital on their site in Ashton.
The hospital is rated Good by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). The provision of
Intermediate Care beds at Shire Hill in Glossop would cease.

e This option provides 64 Intermediate Care beds in the Stamford Unit, Ashton

o If we located all the Intermediate Care beds along with the ‘discharge to assess’ beds in
the Stamford Unit, we would have a dedicated building of 96 beds which could be used
flexibly to accommodate daily patient need.

e 27% of patients from Shire Hill were readmitted back to the hospital as their condition
required greater clinical support which cannot be provided at Shire Hill, but is more
accessible from the Stamford site. One central location will reduce transfers which
fragments the care pathway and creates a poor experience for the patient themselves
and their families.

o The Stamford Unit is able to provide single room accommodation, each with their own en-
suite facilities along with significant communal space on each of the three wards. This
encourages social interaction and independence and provides space to support
rehabilitation and patients’ exercises.

o One floor of the Stamford Unit has been designed to be dementia friendly with access to
outside space and wandering routes, which will enable us to provide intermediate care
and ‘discharge to assess’ beds in a unit which is able to support patients with dementia.

¢ The Stamford Unit is located in a central location in Ashton close to Tameside Hospital.
The site has good public transport links, parking facilities, is well known and is easily
accessible for patients and relatives.

¢ Additionally easy access and short journey times for health care professionals and
support staff between the Stamford Unit and main hospital will reduce staff travelling time,
increase specialist support to all intermediate care beds and enable the development of
services in the unit.

Option 3: Develop a scheme of bed based Intermediate Care within local private care
homes

This option would require us to work with private care home providers to develop
capacity within existing care homes or invest locally in increasing capacity to host
bed based Intermediate Care. This option would mean that Intermediate Care beds
are not located in one single location but spread out across the area where capacity
can be found. This option requires care home providers to be willing to invest in
increasing bed spaces and if new care homes were required, a short term solution
would be required whilst capacity in the system is built.

Page 33



TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

Caretogether

INHS |

Tameside and Glossop

Clinical Commissioning Group

6. If you have an alternative option on how the Intermediate Care service could be
delivered across Tameside & Glossop in the future please tell us in the box below,
Please explain the benefits this alternative option will bring and any financial
considerations.

7. Do you have any other comments you would like to make about Intermediate Care
services in Tameside & Glossop? (Please write in the box below)

About You

8. Please tick the box that best describes your interest in this issue? (Please tick one
box only)

O

O

9. What is your home postcode? (Please state)

A user or previous user of
Intermediate Care services in
Tameside & Glossop

A family member or carer of
someone who has used or is using
Intermediate Care services in
Tameside & Glossop

A member of the public
An employee of Tameside Council
An employee of NHS Tameside &

Glossop Clinical Commissioning
Group

An employee of Tameside &
Glossop Integrated Care NHS
Foundation Trust

An employee of Derbyshire County
Council or High Peak Borough
Council

A community or voluntary group

A partner organisation

A business / private organisation

Other (please specify)

10. What best describes your gender? (Please tick one box only)

O
O

Female
Male

Page 34

O Prefer to self-describe
O Prefer not to say



TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP . m
Caretogether Tameside and Glossop

11. What is your age? (Please state)

12. Which ethnic group do you consider yourself to belong to? (Please tick one box

only)
White
O English / Welsh / Scottish / O Irish
Northern Irish / British O Gypsy or Irish Traveller

O Any other White background (Please specify)

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic Groups

O White and Black Caribbean O White and Asian
O White and Black African
O Any other Mixed / Multiple ethnic background (Please specify)

Black / African / Caribbean / Black British

O African O Caribbean
O Any other Black / African / Caribbean background (Please specify)

Asian / Asian British
O Indian O Bangladeshi
O Pakistani O Chinese
O Any other Asian background (Please specify)

Other ethnic group

O Arab
O Any other ethnic group (Please specify)

13. What is your religion? (Please tick one box only)

O Christian (including Church of England, Catholic, Protestant and all other Christian
denominations)

O Buddhist O Sikh

O Hindu O No religion

O Jewish O Any other religion, please state
O Muslim

Page 35



TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP m

Carefogether Tameside and Glossop
14. What is your sexual orientation? (Please tick one box only)
O Heterosexual / Straight O Prefer not to say
O Gay man O Prefer to self-describe

O Gay woman / lesbian

15. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability
which has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? Include problems related
to old age. (Please tick one box only)

O Yes, limited a lot O No
O Yes, limited a little

16. Do you look after, or give any help or support to family members, friends,
neighbours or others because of either, long-term physical or mental ill-health /
disability or problems due to old age? (Please tick one box only)

O Yes, 1-19 hours a week O Yes, 50+ hours a week
O Yes, 20-49 hours a week O No

17. Are you a member or ex-member of the armed forces? (Please tick one box only)
O Yes O Prefer not to say

O No

18. What is your marital status? (Please tick one box only)

O Single O Widowed
O Married / Civil Partnership O Prefer not to say
O Divorced

Page 36



REVIEW OF INTERMEDIATE CARE PROVISION IN
TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

(OPTIONS FOR THE DELIVERY OF BED BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE)

Intermediate Care services are provided to patients, usually older people, after leaving hospital or when
they are at risk of being sent to hospital. The services offer a link between hospitals and where people
normally live, and between different areas of health and social care — community services, hospitals, GPs
and social care.

Intermediate Care helps people avoid going into hospital unnecessarily, helps people be as independent
as possible after a stay in hospital, and prevents people from having to move into a residential home until
they really need to.

Intermediate Care services are provided by a variety of different professionals, from nurses and therapists
to social workers. The person or team providing care will depend on the individual’s needs at that time.

We deliver Intermediate Care in two main ways. Home First — a range of services which support people
in their own home or at a location in their local community. Intermediate Care beds — beds for people
coming out of hospital requiring a package of care which cannot be provided at home, or for people who
need a short stay away from home for extra support to prevent them needing admission to hospital.

— Q1 —— N

In Tameside and Glossop we have invested heavily in recent years in Home First services. We now need
to look at the Intermediate Care beds to ensure they are fit for purpose, provide quality care and are
affordable. Our plans for Intermediate Care beds are the focus of this consultation.

NHS

Tameside and Glossop
Clinical Commissioning Group

FIND OUT MORE AND HAVFE. YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS AT

WWW.TAMESIDEANDGLOSSOFPCCG.ORG/INTERMEDIATECARE




When developing our plans we have listened to the public and patients. Over the last two years we’ve
sought your views on how Intermediate Care should be provided.

- You said — care should be provided at home first and then via Intermediate Care beds if needed

« You said — intermediate care beds should be used to avoid admittance to hospital where
appropriate, as well as being used following discharge from hospital.

We currently provide 68 Intermediate Care beds across two sites — the Stamford Unit in Ashton next
to Tameside Hospital and Shire Hill in Glossop. Both are managed by Tameside Hospital, now called
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust (ICFT).

Our preferred option is to provide all Intermediate Care beds in one central location at the Stamford Unit
in Ashton run by the ICFT, which is rated as Good by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

Our preferred option is to provide 64 beds with the flexibility to use further beds in the Stamford Unit if
required, depending on the daily requirement for beds.

Q{Dm—ﬂ

We’re continuing to grow and develop our Home First services which will reduce the need for
Intermediate Care beds and avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital, supporting more people to stay at
or return to their home.

11

847 people have stayed in Intermediate Care beds at Shire Hill in Glossop over the last two years. 40% of
them lived within 5 miles of it. 84% of them lived within 5 miles of the Stamford Unit in Ashton.

12

80% of residents in Tameside and Glossop can reach the Stamford Unit in 45 minutes by public
transport compared to only 24% travelling to Shire Hill (weekdays, off-peak)

13

The Stamford Unit offers single room en-suite accommodation, communal space for social interaction, is
close to wider services at Tameside Hospital and is modern and up-to-date.

14

One floor of the Stamford Unit has been designed to be dementia friendly with access to outside space
and wandering routes, which will enable us to provide Intermediate Care beds for patients with dementia.

Have your say on the options for delivering bed based Intermediate Care by completing the online survey
at www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/get-involved/intermediatecare. You can pick up a paper copy
from your local GP or email TGCCG.communications@nhs.net.

27% of patients from Shire Hill were readmitted back to the hospital as their condition required greater
clinical support which cannot be provided at Shire Hill, but is more accessible from the Stamford

site. One central location will reduce transfers which fragments the care pathway and creates a poor
experience for the patient themselves and their families.

FIND OUT MORE AND HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS AT

WWW.TAMESIDEANDGLOSSUPCCG.ORG/INTERMEDIATECARE



http://www.tamesideandglossopccg.org/get-involved/intermediatecare
mailto:TGCCG.communications%40nhs.net?subject=

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

REVIEW OF INTERMEDIATE CARE PROVISION IN
TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

(OPTIONS FOR THE DELIVERY OF BED BASED INTERMEDIATE CARE)

0 Will your decision result in a reduction in the number of Intermediate Care beds across Tameside &
Glossop?

A The following table outlines the number of beds currently provided and the number of beds under each
option:

Stamford Unit, Shire Hill. Glosso Private Care Home
Ashton : p Providers

Current

Provision
Option 1
Option 2
Option 3

Why is your preferred option to have all bed-based intermediate care in a single location at Stamford
Unit?

The Stamford Unit is located in a central location in Ashton on the Tameside Hospital site. The site has
good public transport links, parking facilities, is well known and is easily accessible for patients and
relatives. Additionally it will provide easy access and short journey times for health care professionals
and support services between the Stamford Unit and main hospital increasing staff contact time with
patients, reducing staff travelling time, increasing specialist support if required which ultimately could
reduce the need for any patients to be readmitted into a hospital bed.

> 0

The Stamford Unit is able to provide single room accommodation, each with their own en-suite facilities
along with significant communal space. This encourages social interaction and independence.

One floor of the Stamford Unit has been designed to be dementia friendly with access to outside space
and wandering routes, which will enable us to provide intermediate care and ‘discharge to assess’ beds
in a unit which is able to support patients with dementia. If we located all the intermediate Care beds
along with ‘discharge to assess’ beds in the Stamford Unit, we would have a dedicated building of 96
beds which could be used flexibly to accomodate patient needs.

27% of patients from Shire Hill were readmitted back to the hospital as their condition required greater
clinical support which cannot be provided at Shire Hill, but is more accessible from the Stamford

site. One central location will reduce transfeﬁ g@:.%h §@ments the care pathway and creates a poor
experience for the patient themselves and their tamilies.




If 64 of the 96 beds at Stamford Unit are expected to be used for Intermediate Care, what will the other
32 beds be used for?

The additional 32 beds at the Stamford Unit will primarily be used as discharge to assess beds. However,
we have the flexibility to use some of these beds for Intermediate Care if the need arises, due to changes
in demand.

If Intermediate Care beds are transferred to a single location in the Stamford Unit (as per Option 2 of the
consultation), what will happen to patients currently based at Shire Hill?

Intermediate Care services from bed based facilities are usually only delivered for a maximum of 6 weeks.
This is not a ‘long stay’ option. If the location for delivery of bed based services should change as a result
of this consultation, the process will be managed very carefully to minimise the number of people who
have to be transferred / moved.

What will happen to the Shire Hill building if Option 2 of the consultation is implemented? Are there any
other services provided from here in addition to intermediate care?

If following the consultation process a decision is made to close the Intermediate Care bed service at
Shire Hill, further work would be undertaken to determine future viability of the Shire Hill site. There is a
group already working on the review of buildings across the whole of Tameside & Glossop who are aware
of this proposal and will provide support on the future use of Shire Hill should the decision be made to
relocate the bed based Intermediate Care service to the Stamford Unit.

Who will be providing the care for patients?

Under Options 1 and 2 all care will be provided by staff from Tameside Hospital (Tameside & Glossop
Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust). Under Option 3, some care could be provided by the staff
employed by the care home in in which the beds are based, but the specialist Intermediate Care will be
delivered by staff from Tameside & Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust (ICFT), who would
travel to the appropriate site (care home) to do so.

- — =~  — = — I — N~ — N — ¥ —

If you relocate the bed based Intermediate Care service as per Option 2 of the consultation, some people
may have to travel further to the Stamford Unit site. How can | get there?

Stamford Unit is situated on the ICFT site (Tameside Hospital) and is accessible via various modes of
transport including public transport. A full assessment of public transport and drive time accessibility has
been undertaken as part of the Equality Impact Assessment.

Analysis shows that:

» 847 people have stayed in intermediate care beds at Shire Hill in Glossop over the last two years. 40% of
them lived within 5 miles of it. 84% of them lived within 5 miles of the Stamford Unit in Ashton.

* 80% of residents in Tameside and Glossop can reach the Stamford Unit in 45 minutes by public
transport compared to only 24% travelling to Shire Hill (weekdays, off-peak)

FIND OUT MORE AND HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS AT

WWW.TAMESIDEANDGLOSSUPCCG.ORG/INTERMEDIATECARE




| believe there have previously been concerns about the quality of services provided at Darnton House
(the site on which Stamford Unit now sits). Is this still the case?

No, since July 2016 the Stamford Unit has been run by the ICFT (Tameside Hospital) which is rated
‘Good’ by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

s this just about closing services?

No, we are looking to balance affordability of services with quality and accessibility. We believe our
preferred option provides the best care in a modern and patient friendly environment in an accessible,
central location.

- — R — N — M N —

Will | get the same level of service that | do now?

Under our preferred option we believe the level of service will improve.

The Stamford Unit is able to provide single room accommodation, each with their own en-suite facilities
along with significant communal space. This encourages social interaction and independence.

One floor of the Stamford Unit has been designed to be dementia friendly with access to outside space
and wandering routes, which will enable us to provide intermediate care and ‘discharge to assess’ beds in
a unit which is able to support patients with dementia.

The Stamford Unit is located in a central location in Ashton on the Tameside Hospital site. The site has
good public transport links, parking facilities, is well known and is easily accessible for patients and
relatives. Additionally it will provide easy access and short journey times for health care professionals
and support services between the Stamford Unit and the main hospital as required.

A full Quality Impact Assessment has been completed as part of this process.

> 0

Why can’t you leave things as they are?

Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) are committed to ensuring the best possible
health care is provided for residents in Tameside and Glossop. However we face significant challenges in
providing quality services that meet the needs of a growing older population and the increasing number
of people with long-term health conditions that need care. In order to meet the health care needs of our
population for the future and within the budgets available, the CCG and its partners have reviewed ways
to deliver our services. We believe that there is a better way of delivering the Intermediate Care service,
which is more affordable and will result in better service for patients. We feel that maintaining services as
they are currently does not provide this.

FIND OUT MORE AND HAVFE. YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS AT

WWW.TAMESIDEANDGLOSSOFPCCG.ORG/INTERMEDIATECARE




> 0

How will my views to the consultation help you make a decision?

Your views are very important to us in making a decision on how Intermediate Care services will be
delivered across Tameside & Glossop in future. The consultation will run for 12 weeks from 23 August
2017 until 15 November 2017. Once the consultation closes, the CCG will analyse all the responses
received by the closing date. This feedback from residents, along with a range of other factors including
legal and financial considerations, will be taken into account when preparing a final proposal on which
option should be implemented.

- —

How have you calculated how long it takes for people to travel to the locations where Intermediate Care is
provided in Tameside & Glossop (i.e. Shire Hill and Stamford Unit on the site of Tameside hospital)?

A Basemap’s TRACC software was used to calculate travel times to both Shire Hill and Stamford Unit on
the site of Tameside hospital (Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust) using public
transport at both peak and off peak time periods. This covers all major public transport options across
Tameside and Glossop including bus, train and tram.

TRACC was also used to calculate drive times at both peak and off peak time periods, and walk times.

Full details of this public transport, drive time and walk time analysis (including maps) is included in the
Equality Impact Assessment.

Eal

When will the final decision be made?

It is proposed that a report will be taken to Single Commissioning Board with our recommendations in
December 2017. This report will be available on the CCG’s website at www.tamesideandglossopccg.org

AAAAAAA

MMMMMMMM

4 ® A

OOOOOOOOO m

Caretogeiner  mmeits na ciosson Have YOUR say

FIND OUT MORE AND HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE PROPOSALS AT

WWW.TAMESIDEANDGLOSSUPCCG.ORG/INTERMEDIATECARE



http://www.tamesideandglossopccg.org

Agenda Item 5a

Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Date: 21 September 2017

Executive Member / Reporting  Councillor Jim Fitzpatrick — First Deputy (Performance and
Officer: Finance)

Councillor Brenda Warrington — Executive Member (Adult
Social Care & Wellbeing)

Councillor Gerald P. Cooney — Executive Member (Healthy
& Working)

Councillor Peter Robinson — Executive Member (Children &
Families)

Kathy Roe — Director Of Finance — Single Commission

Subject: TAMESIDE & GLOSSOP CARE TOGETHER ECONOMY
— 2017/18 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL MONITORING
STATEMENT AT 31 JULY 2017 AND PROJECTED
OUTTURN TO 31 MARCH 2018

TAMESIDE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 2017-19
BETTER CARE FUND PLAN

Report Summary: This is a jointly prepared report of the Tameside & Glossop
Care Together constituent organisations on the
consolidated financial position of the Economy.

The report provides a 2017/2018 financial year update on
the month 4 financial position (at 31 July 2017) and the
projected outturn (at 31 March 2018).

A summary of the Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care
NHS Foundation Trust financial position is also included
within the report. This is to ensure members have an
awareness of the overall financial position of the whole Care
Together economy and to highlight the increased risk of
achieving financial sustainability in the short term whilst also
acknowledging the value required to bridge the financial gap
next year and through to 2020/21.

The report also provides details of the Tameside Health and
Wellbeing Board Better Care Fund Plan submission for the
period 2017-19. It should be acknowledged that the
associated Better Care Fund resources are included within
the Integrated Commissioning Fund of the economy which
is reported on a monthly basis to the Single Commissioning
Board.

Recommendations: Health and Wellbeing Board Members are recommended :

1. To note the 2017/2018 consolidated financial
position of the economy at 31 July 2017 and the
projected outturn position at 31 March 2018.

2. To acknowledge the significant level of savings
required during 2017/2018 to achieve confirmed
control totals and the financial sustainability of the
economy on a recurrent basis thereafter.

Page 43



Links to Community Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer))

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

3. To acknowledge the significant amount of financial
risk associated with the achievement of financial
control totals during this period.

4. To approve the 2017-19 Better Care Fund Plan
Submission (Appendix A)

The Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area
Agreement are key documents outlining the aims of the
Council and its partners to improve the borough of
Tameside (agreed in consultation with local residents).
Within health the CCG’s Commissioning Strategy and
Primary Care Strategy are similarly aligned to these
principles and objectives.

The Care Together resource allocations detailed within this
report supports the strategic plan to integrate health and
social care services across the Tameside and Glossop
economy.

This report provides the consolidated financial position
statement of the 2017/18 Care Together Economy for the
period ending 31 July 2017 (Month 4 — 2017/18) together
with a projection to 31 March 2018 for each of the three
partner organisations.

The report explains that there is a clear urgency to
implement associated strategies to ensure the projected
funding gap is addressed and closed on a recurrent basis
across the whole economy.

A risk share arrangement is in place between the Council
and CCG relating to the residual balance of net expenditure
compared to the budget allocation at 31 March 2018, the
details of which are provided within the report.

It should be noted that the Integrated Commissioning Fund
for the parther Commissioner organisations will be bound by
the terms within the Section 75 agreement and associated
Financial Framework agreement which has been duly
approved by both the Council and CCG.

Health and Wellbeing members should also note that the
Better Care Fund allocations within Appendix A are
included within the Section 75 funding allocation of the
Integrated Commissioning Fund as this is a revenue funding
allocation. The Disabled Facilities Grant allocation however
is excluded as it is a capital funding allocation.

There is a need to deliver a balanced budget.
Consequently, there are significant changes required to
achieve this and reduce the current levels of spend which
previously have been bailed out. This requires new models
of working and relentless focus on budgets without
compromising patient care and safety. Many of the new
models are intended to achieve this rather than simply look
to cut out waste.

Page 44



Access to Information :

Any background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting :

Stephen Wilde, Finance Business Partner, Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council

_ﬂTelephone:O161 342 3726

"3 e-mail: stephen.wilde@tameside.gov.uk

Tracey Simpson, Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Tameside
and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group

&3 Telephone:0161 304 5449

i~ e-mail: tracey.simpson@nhs.net

David Warhurst, Associate Director Of Finance, Tameside
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

ETelephone:0161 922 4624

3% o-mail: David.Warhurst@tgh.nhs.uk

Page 45


mailto:stephen.wilde@tameside.gov.uk
mailto:tracey.simpson@nhs.net
mailto:David.Warhurst@tgh.nhs.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

Caretogether

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Financial Position
Financial Monitoring Statements

Period Ending 31st July 2017 [Month 4]

abed

Tintwistle

D
Kathy Roe
lan Duncan /

o (_I DukinfieldS
Claire Yarwood e

’ . dfjeld et
Denton* r .-$adﬁe-lg‘h St John's
North East * 2 Hadfield f
5 ¥South -
enton } te N\ inti
West y Godley, amesley /. \

Denton / It

South ) A

: "
Hyde\Werneth

Tameside and Glossop i@ Tﬂ.l ! IESlde Ta "‘Bsi;": and :’5:?::'509
Clinical Commissioning Group eats Feundation Trese



Contents

Care Together Economy Revenue Financial Position

Tameside CCG Financial Position

Tameside MBC Financial Position

Tameside Integrated FT Financial Position

Health Economy Efficiency

Performance Data

Key risks and actions

Deep Dive

Appendices

6
~N w N =



Care Together Economy Revenue Financial Position . Overall Risk Rting - Medium

Revenue Financial Position

Financial Position: Key Headlines:
YTD Position Forecast Position Forecast Position

~foo0s | foo0s | = 2017/18 Projected year end position across

Slngle Commission 164 050 165 82 -1, 842 486 27 497 597 11, 370 099 Az the economy is currently: £11,370k Deficit
ICFT 887 9115 288 24506 -24,506

= Movement in forecast year end position is:
Total Economy 155223 156,777]  -2,130f 461,675 473,045 -11,370 mm £435k Adverse

YTD Position across the economy is currently:
Previous |Movement £2,130k Deficit

. . . Single Commission - Risk Share [ /)l + Non Rec repayable contributions between
A: Section 75 Services 93,686 94,545 -858 266,514/ 270,838 4324 TG 1.000] ° 80:20Risk share arrangement between CCG/
B: Alignedgrvices 59,179 60,466  -1,286 18584 192537  -6,68 [twec 5370 |MBCas per contributions to ICF
= U b D D D D =/ e £500k upper threshold on CCG contribution to
C: In Collefdration Services 11,184 10,881 303 33,860 34,222 -363 Total -11,370| TMBC & £2m cap on TMBC contribution to CCG

Rev=nue Forecast Position

Forecast detail - £m’s Financial Summary — Forecast Position

= The CCG are reporting that all financial control totals will be met,
however there is significant risk attached to the QIPP programme
which is forecast £5.6m shortfall to plan

= The ICFT are still working to a deficit of £24.5m for 2017/18. This
Pr— is yet to be agreed by NHSI. Trust efficiencies of £10.4m are
required in order to meet this control total.

= Under terms of the Integrated Commissioning Fund financial
framework, a non-recurrent contribution of cE5m can be
accessed from council reserves towards the finance position of

Mg Sep Ot Nov  De  Jan - the CCG in 17/18. This would need to be repaid within a 4 year

mmmm Forecast Actuals Plan Gap still to close periOd.




Tameside & Glossop CCG Financial Position

Revenue Financial Position

Financial Position: Key Headlines:
YTD Position Forecast Position Forecast Position

Organisation Budget Variance Budget Variance Previous  Movement Sy 2017/18 Projected d iti
8 8 8 Month in Month rojected year end position across

the economy is currently: £5.605m Deficit

Acute 66,408 66,372 35 203,014 202,983 31 |- 457 488 (i.e. QIPP savings still to be delivered to
Mental Health 9,843 9,997 - 154 29,483 30,398 - 914 - 978 64 meet financial control totals)

Primary Care 27,892 27,184 708 85,150 85,135 15 57 - )

Continuing Care 4,556 6,421 - 1,864 13,671 17,206 - 3534 - 3217 - 318 .

Movement in forecast year end position is:

i 14 141 27,4 27,548 - - 161
Community 9,146 9,005 ,455 ,548 93 6 68 £255k Favourable
Other 10,170 9,141 1,030 20,684 16,188 4,496 4,756 - 260
QlPP - 5,605 - 5,605 - 5,860 255

CCG Runilok Costs 2,017 1833 5,197 5,197 = YTD Position across the CCG is currently:

m-m BT T BT £80k Favourable. Monthly profile of
budgets is currently under review
st a2er] - | 7wl 717 - - 5860 255
Revenue Forecast Position

Forecast detail - £m’s Financial Summary - Forecast Position

= £3.5m projected overspend on continuing care causing significant
pressures

= Impact of all cross year benefits/pressures included in M4
position

= Reporting that financial control totals will be met, but significant

risk attached to this:
» Deliver a surplus of 1% against opening allocation (£3,496k), plus carry
forward of £3,678k from 16/17

»>Achieve a £23,900k QIPP target.
»Keep 0.5% of allocation uncommitted to fund a national system risk reserve

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar »>Demonstrate growth in Mental Health spend of 2%
orecastActuas N »Remain within the running costs allocation




Tameside & Glossop CCG Financial Position

Highlights Key Risks

Mental Health

Primary Care

Continuing Care

CCG Running
Costs

Overspend at Christies, Salford & South Manchester, offset
by underspend at Central Manchester, Stockport & Pennine
£200k released to QIPP at M4 relating to reduced elective
activity

£914k overspend relates to OOA ,managed by individualised
commissioning and within scope of CHC recovery plan
Meeting MHIS with 3.15% increase in spend (2% target)

£170k QIPP realised in YTD position - Repeat Prescribing,
COPD Pathway, DNP/Grey/Red list items
£56k cross year benefit reflected in position

Underlying forecast stable since significant pressures at M3
Adverse movement of £313k relates to cross year pressure
Recovery Plan progressing and new system being procured

Contract variation with ICFT for flexible community beds
following termination of Grange View contract.
£68k cross year benefit from non-medical prescribing

Variance figures relate to treatment of reserves
Negative reserve of £1m to clear over and above the
outstanding QIPP still to be delivered

£10.3m (43%) of targeted savings banked at M4
£1m reduction in planned savings since M3 (red schemes)
Expected savings stable due to increase in banked schemes

QIPP savings of £526k released at M4
On track to remain within running cost allocation

Increasing C&V spend in independent sector (diagnostics &
MSK) caused by shift in activity from ICFT

Change in charging arrangement for stroke

Profile of plans may understate pressures

Work ongoing to look at investment required in order to
meet commitments around the five year forward view for
mental health

Paul Bauman letter — benefit of unplanned drug price
reductions to be held centrally
NCSO pressure of £680k - Quetiapine and Olanzapine

Transforming Care — movement from specialist to CCG’s
Fast track patients
Forecast assumes 7% growth. 16/17 growth was 14%

Awaiting outcome of VAT reclaim on wheelchairs

Nothing in position for additional critical care costs
associated with Healthier Together
Estates schedules from Propco still outstanding

Still need to deliver further £5.6m savings (plus clear the
negative reserve)
Only 55% of expected savings delivered on recurrent basis

YTD Underspend relates to vacancies — conversation
needed with budget holders about releasing to QIPP



TMBC Financial Position

Revenue Financial Position

Financial Position:

YTD Position Forecast Position Forecast Position

Key Headlines:

= YTD Position is currently: £1,922k Deficit

Previous {Movement
Organlsatwn Budget Variance | Budget Variance )
in Month

2017/18 Projected year end position :

£5,765k Deficit
AdUIt Senies 14’475 14 4l 49 b7z 49 A Movement to Forecast year end position is:
Children's Services 10293 128 - 1,965 HO2 408 - 5,896 : 5,196 -0 £676k Adverse
Public ed 9%0 9% - BM 1578

599131 ul s o

trvendi
Revenue Forecast Position

Forecast detail - £m’s Financial Summary — Forecast Position

Children’s Services remains a high risk area . The majority of the

projected additional net expenditure relates to placements

within independent sector provision of £5.0m. It is currently

estimated that on average there will be an additional 68

children in need of external placement provision above the

number of placements estimated when the 2017/18 budget was
""" 5 approved by the Council in February 2017.

In addition the average cost of some external placements have
increased since the budget was approved. This equates to a
projected increase of £0.6m in the current financial year.

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
I Forecast Actuals Plan



ICFT Financial Position

Revenue Financial Position

Financial Position: Key Headlines:

= YTD Position the ICFT is currently: £288k
overspent

YTD Position Forecast Position

Income 68,072 68,867 - 796 204,701 204,701 s

= The Trust has still to agree a control total
with its regulator, NHSI.

Expenditure 73,887 74,862 - 975 219,916 219,916 The Trust has a :
= greed with NHSI, due to the
EBITDA m 15,215 15,215 _ volatility of risk that a detailed forecast will

Flnancmg 2, 957 3,064 - 9, 129 9,129

m— mm_

Exceptional Items = The Trust is developing an action plan to

Net Defiti¢ after Exceptional Costs mmma_ mitigate risk of delivery.

be presented at Month 6.

Revienue Forecast Position

Forecast detail - £m’s Financial Summary — Key Risks

The Trust is paying escalated rates to clinical staff due to gaps in
medical rotas and a change in tax regulation. Consequently this is
putting significant pressure on the Trusts financial position.

-£23.5

£24.0

= The Trust has a number of escalated beds that are unfunded.
Closing these beds will be difficult whilst the Trusts bed

£250 occupancy continues to be high.

-£24.5

£255
= |ncome on smaller clinical contracts is falling and there is a focus

-£26.0 on ensuring costs fall in relation to the loss of income.

£265
= The Trusts efficiency programme is currently forecasting to

W Forecast Actuals Plan . . . . . .
-£21.0 underachieve, which will result in a financial pressure.




Health Economy Efficiency Position

Health Economy Position - At a glance

2017/18 FORECAST BREAKDOWN £000'S

Delivered \ELELT

2,599

Forecast Forecast
Delivered Low Hopper Savings Savings Excl Target VELELT Status

E High Risk
888 m_ 11083 8,965
m e o500 _ 20218 AL

ICFT (1,432)

T&G CCG 9,823 (2,482)

LOCAL AUTHORITY 258 773 0

12,680

0@00

o
In NBnth/YTD Position Forecast Position

L -4
e 17¢t18 YTD Delivery across the economy is currently: £12,854k = 2017/18 Projected Economy saving forecast: £3,913k Shortfall to plan
Trﬁ_l{rls an overachievement against plan of £175k = 2018/19 Projected Economy saving forecast: £8,416k Shortfall to plan

Phasing of Forecast - Cumulative

45,000,000 -

40,000,000 -
35,000,000 -
30,000,000 -
25,000,000 -
20,000,000 -
15,000,000 -
10,000,000 -

5,000,000 -

In Year Target

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

NB: Red Schemes are not included within the forecast savings figures due to high risk of non-financial delivery



Performance data— Emergency Attendances SIS

Emergency Department Performance — Tameside ICFT

Rolling 12 months ED performance: Q12016/17 v Q1 2017/18:

9,000 95%

8,000

7,000
6,000
5,000
, 5,829
, 4 , , : , 3 , , 5,488
4,000 ‘ 4,784
3,000
2,000
000 , , , , , , g 4 1,568 S , , 1,727 1,800
o

mmmm Admitted mmmm Not admitted 4 Hour Performance

90%
85%
80% fA&E attendances up 1.6% (359 attendances)

75%

fAdmissions up 8.2% (406 admissions)

70%
65%

B 2 Hour up 0.5% (88.1% - 87.6%)

60%

ss% = July ED performance 89.2% of patients
50% treated within 4 hours

9102 Inf
9102 8ny
9107 dos
9102 10
9107 oN
910230
L107 ver
£102 984

L1027 48N
L107 dy

102 Aewy
£107 unf
10z nf

eﬁgg

Accident & Emergency Performance — Tameside Health Economy

Rolling 12 months PbR cost of A&E attendances: 2016/17 v 2017/18: Split of A&E spend by provider:

1,200,000 Tameside
82%

= Average monthly PbR
indicative spend in
16/17 £837k

Manchester
9%
Average monthly PbR
indicative spend in
17/18 £966k | Stockport
5%
An increase of 15.4% —_Pennine
(mainly driven by A;‘:/te
increase in tariff value) Other <7

2%

1,000,000

Central

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

0

STOT unp
9102 Nf
9T0Z PO
STOE AoN
910z 380
LT0T uer
L102 P4
LTOZ 4=
LT0Z iy
LT0Z Aeln
LTOZ unf
LT0Z Inf

2
cn o

EEmTameside = Central Manchester

M Stockport Pennine Acute =N Other



Performance data— Admissions CZE D TR

Other key data - ICFT
I T S I

46,000
44,000 = Whilst the Trust has a full establishment of Consultants (9 in total of which 7 are
42,000 locums) — there is 6 vacancies at a speciality doctor level that are causing
significant financial pressures.
40,000
35,000 = As an example, speciality grade doctors on Agency are costing £95ph -
36,000 Premium c. £70k per year per post.
34,000 . .
= Consultants having to step down, meaning we pay consultant rates+ for

32,000 speciality level roles.
3000 L8

(ng'lﬁfl? Ol  2016/1702  2016/1703 20161704  2017/18 01 = IR35 has been a significant pressure in ED, potentially above £300k.

o) B Occupied Available

o1

(@)

Other key data — Health Economy

GP & GDP Referrals per Working Day: Trend

Analysis-All providers = GP/dentist referrals have seen a significant reduction over the last year
350

. Other referrals, most notably consultant to consultant, at providers other than

the ICFT have increased in the same period . Offsetting some of the benefit of
the reduction in GP referrals.

250

200

150

100

June 2015 - May 2016 June 2016 - May 2017 Apr & May Apr & May Variance % Var Other GP/dentist
Average of 266 referrals perworking | Average of 242 referrals perworking 16/17 17/18 T L

Referrals
0 day | day | ICFT: GP Referrals 8,059 6,716 -1,343 -16.7%
5.0% reduction on prior 12 month ICFT: Other Referrals 3,068 3,155 87 2.8%
o Other Providers: GP Referrals 3,453 2,740 -713 -20.6%
u?; g E g ﬁn Eﬁ g ﬁ f E i i % E g in :; ﬁ g 3 E E % i % Other Providers: Other Referrals 2,584 2,880 11.5%
£ 32 2 d0z288&s a2 32532 480z2282&354a3

All Referrals 17,164 15,491 -1,673




Key/Emerging Risks

Estates

Children’s services

Cost of Children’s placements

TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

Caretogether
Tralisformation timeframes _.-*~
GP Ef®ensivists - Particularly Prescribing.

6]
~

Increased cost of CHC and social care

assessments

Lack of fully developed plans in the
estates strategy

B
Medical Staffing

Areas of
Failure to recruit/IR35

concern

Due Diligence
Complexities & timelines of due
diligence to support transfer of

services



ICFT Efficiency Position

Appendix 1

ICFT Position - At a glance

FORECAST BREAKDOWN £000'S RECURRENT

Theme Target Delivered Variance . n ETmI dsi::;i; Target Recurrent nn ::;z::::zz
1,517 1,517 1,243 - 235
“ 626 573 392 182 Gm 282 391 250 (32) Amb
“ 640 640 640 0 Gm 560 560 “ 560 0 Grn
_ 82 475 557 (82) Amb 557 364 - 358 (199) Amb
n 983 955 1,020 (65) Amb 465 515 n 423 (42) Amb
Medical Staffing 744 639 716 (77) Amb 661 806 u 581 (80) Amb
“ 58 58 121 (63) Amb 121 0 - 0 (121) Red
n 116 30 125 (95) Red 125 160 “ 160 35 Grn
_ n 985 760 975 (215) Amb 375 556 175 381 6 Grn
379 1,100 721 803 (82) Amb 803 820 “ 375 (428) Amb
“ 1,073 808 1,073 (266) Amb 1,073 1,334 - 1,334 260 Grn
u 1,732 1,336 1,732 (395) Amb 1,682 1,682 371 1,310 (371) Amb
574 1,028 453 1,000 (547) Amb 1,000 2,223 1,537 686 (314) Amb

e T
Performance to date and forecast:

= Slightly behind the YTD target c.£300k, although for the third =

consecutive month the Trust has over delivered against its in month

target,

= 42% of the Target is actually delivered although the forecast is for the

Trust to fail the Full Year target by £1,432k.

= Transformation has the biggest gap £573k and this is manly in =

relation to the Trust being unable to close beds.

Amb

1,141 9,646

6,653 (1,094)

Amb

Key issues and recovery:

The trust is continuing to push themes in the Trust efficiency group.

= The Chief Executive has asked for more schemes to be escalated to
both the Executive Committee and Finance and Performance

Committee.

ideas into fully fledged schemes.

Themes have been challenged to speed the development of hopper



Appendix 2 - Single Commission Efficiency Position Overal Risk Rating - Red

Single Commission Position - At a glance

FORECAST BREAKDOWN £000'S

Total Savings
Variance Delivered FYE Total Savings Target
-. “ Frevdnenes g

RECURRENT

Recurrent
Target

Total Savings
Excluding Red

Variance Variance Status

7,280 7,160 Gm
781 781 781 0 Gm
2123 2,047 1,748 300 Gm ¥
1,137 814 1,137 (323) Amb , , “ 861
896 596 994 (398) Amb 994 1,007 “ 377 (617) Red
1,500 1,128 1,500 (373) Amb 1,500 1,500 750 (750) Amb
586 586 1,116 (530) Amb 1,116 1,086 “ 636 (480) Amb
_ 1,324 784 1,324 (540) Amb 724 724 _ 724 0 Gm
::;Z::"e Eun ¢ tosandlEnabling 1,524 624 2,024 (1,400) Red 2,024 1,524 700 824 (1,200) Amb
GP Prescribin I 2,516 1,229 2,516 (1,287) Amb 2,516 3,054 m 863 (1,654) Red
- 8,550 5,668 8,885 (3,217) Amb 7,057 9,513 4,757 (2,300) Amb
336 336 0 Gm 336 336 “ 336 0 Gm
437 437 Gm 437 437 — 437 0 Gm

Sub Total Local Authority
Total Single Commission 10,080

-E 6,800 28,991 22,191 24,673 (2482) Amb 20,200 22,848 12,878 (7,322) Amb

Performance to date a :

Key issues and recov

e Slightly ahead of schedule overall - this relates to non recurrent * More work required to bring forward new schemes addressing
savings achieved as a result of budget management the short fall

* Only 2 months of data available for prescribing. This limits the
savings available to bank in M4 data above

e M3 data available for associates, which again limits the value
banked for demand management



Appendix 3 — Practice Budget Statements

Unified Position ( ling P ibing & D Co-C issioning) Prescribing PMD Values
cce m:;;hzl{,ws:;‘;i;y/ge port Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance YTD Prior month
Y-T-D
M1 Fixed |Annual Budget HC Patient HC Patient Variance Y-T-D (May)
Initial Budget (May) Y-T-D (May) | Y-T-D (May) | Y-T-D (May) [ Y-T-D (May) (May) % % Annual Budget Budget Y-T-D (May) | Y-T-D (May) % %
P89003 ALBION MEDICAL PRACTICE 15,437,882| 15,438,101 2,532,957 (10,962) (40,050) 2,765,004 (232,046) (9)% 0% 1,795,821 282,589 286,756 (4,167) (1)% 0%
P89008 BEDFORD HOUSE MEDICAL CENTRE 11,206,031 11,206,191 1,838,620 (7,957) 0 2,039,092 (200,472) (11)% 0% 1,303,549 205,125 202,821 2,304 1% 0%
P89011 GORDON STREET MEDICAL CENTRE 7,039,799 7,039,899 1,155,049 (4,999) 0 1,236,235 (81,186) (7)% 0% 818,909 128,863 132,200 (3,337) (3)% 0%
P89017 CHAPEL STREET MEDICAL CENTRE 8,214,891 8,215,007 1,347,851 (5,833) 0 1,504,377 (156,525) (12)% 0% 955,602 150,373 166,686 (16,313) (11)% 0%
P89020 HT PRACTICE 12,483,774 12,483,952 2,048,265 (8,865) 0 2,021,112 27,152 1% 0% 1,452,183 228,514 221,134 7,380 3% 0%
P89030 WEST END MEDICAL CENTRE 7,228,805 7,228,908 1,186,060 (5,133) 0 1,245,264 (59,204) (5)% 0% 840,895 132,323 132,751 (428) (0)% 0%
P89033 TAME VALLEY MEDICAL CENTRE 10,164,485 10,164,630 1,667,729 (7,218) 0 1,675,588 (7,858) (0)% 0% 1,182,390 186,060 181,831 4,229 2% 0%
P89609 STAMFORD HOUSE 6,450,370 6,450,462 1,058,339 (4,580) 0 1,030,283 28,056 3% 0% 750,343 118,073 120,002 (1,929) (2)% 0%,
P89613 WATERLOO MEDICAL CENTRE 4,054,029 4,054,087 665,161 (2,879) 0 670,253 (5,092) (1)% 0% 471,587 74,209 73,542 667 1% 0%
Y02586 ASHTON GP SERVICE 4,887,386 4,887,455 801,894 (3,470) 0 826,145 (24,252) (3)% 0% 568,528 89,463 85,355 4,108 5% 0%
Ashton 87,167,453| 87,168,691 | 14,301,926 (61,897) (40,050)| 15,013,353 (711,427) (5)% (2)%| 10,139,809 1,595,593 1,603,078 (7,485) (0)% 0%,
P89010 MEDLOCK VALE MEDICAL PRACTICE 11,097,784| 11,097,941 1,820,859 (7,880) 0 1,962,247 (141,388) (8)% 0% 1,290,957 203,144 217,623 (14,479) (7)% 0%
P89015 WINDMILL MEDICAL PRACTICE 18,416,743| 18,417,005 3,021,712 (13,078) (101,706) 3,794,235 (772,523) (26)% 0% 2,142,339 337,117 469,093 (131,976) (39)% 0%
P89018 DENTON MEDICAL PRACTICE 10,600,605 10,600,755 1,739,285 (7,527) 0 1,866,858 (127,573) (7)% 0% 1,233,122 194,043 188,782 5,261 3% 0%
P89019 CHURCHGATE SURGERY 11,775,834 11,776,001 1,932,110 (8,362) 0 1,672,188 259,922 13% 0% 1,369,831 215,556 100,967 114,589 53% 0%
029 MARKET STREET MEDICAL PRACTICE 8,776,444 8,776,569 1,439,988 (6,232) 0 1,623,771 (183,783) (13)% 0% 1,020,925 160,652 153,722 6,930 4% 0%
SDZSGS DROYLSDEN MEDICAL PRACTICE 4,765,269 4,765,337 781,857 (3,384) 0 902,662 (120,804) (15)% 0% 554,323 87,228 99,802 (12,574) (14)% 0%
(S 2713 GUIDE BRIDGE MEDICAL PRACTICE 4,835,009 4,835,078 793,300 (3,433) 0 850,455 (57,155) (7)% 0% 562,436 88,504 79,471 9,033 10% 0%
9616 ASHTON ROAD (BUTLER) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 0 0% 0%
(won 70,267,688 70,268,686 11,529,112 (49,896) (101,706) 12,672,416 (1,143,305) (10)% (6)%! 8,173,933 1,286,244 1,309,460 (23,216) (2)% 0%
((T®)077 HOWARD MEDICAL PRACTICE 4,624,398 4,624,463 758,744 (3,284) 0 753,650 5,094 1% 0% 537,936 84,649 84,636 13 0% 0%
81081 MANOR HOUSE SURGERY 16,659,485 16,659,722 2,733,391 (11,830) 0 3,061,581 (328,190) (12)% 0% 1,937,925 304,950 350,752 (45,802) (15)% 0%
(81106 LAMBGATES HEALTH CENTRE 7,703,847 7,703,957 1,264,002 (5,470) 0 1,370,073 (106,071) (8)% 0% 896,155 141,018 145,919 (4,901) (3)% 0%
C81615 COTTAGE LANE SURGERY 3,098,473 3,098,517 508,379 (2,200) 0 470,632 37,748 7% 0% 360,432 56,717 56,362 355 1% 0%
81640 SIMMONDLEY MEDICAL PRACTICE 3,643,107 3,643,159 597,740 (2,587) 0 732,137 (134,397) (22)% 0% 423,787 66,687 81,568 (14,881) (22)% 0%
81660 HADFIELD MEDICAL CENTRE 3,835,224 3,835,278 629,261 (2,723) 0 627,997 1,264 0% 0% 446,135 70,203 34,198 36,005 51% 0%
Glossop 39,564,534 39,565,096 6,491,518 (28,094) 0 7,016,069 (524,552) (8)% 0% 4,602,370 724,225 753,435 (29,210) (4)% 0%
P89002 THE BROOKE SURGERY 14,105,865 14,106,066 2,314,408 (10,016) 0 2,556,279 (241,871) (10)% 0% 1,640,874 258,207 294,545 (36,338) (14)% 0%
P89004 AWBURN HOUSE MEDICAL PRACTICE 9,292,546 9,292,678 1,524,667 (6,599) 0 1,656,871 (132,204) (9)% 2% 1,080,961 170,099 192,969 (22,870) (13)% 0%
P89012 CLARENDON MEDICAL CENTRE 12,044,291 12,044,462 1,976,157 (8,553) (18,938) 2,123,207 (147,050) (7)% 0% 1,401,060 220,470 261,733 (41,263) (19)% 0%
P89013 HATTERSLEY GROUP PRACTICE 9,764,977 9,765,115 1,602,180 (6,934) 0 1,554,604 47,576 3% 0% 1,135,917 178,747 154,067 24,680 14% 0%,
P89014 HAUGHTON THORNLEY MEDICAL CENTRE 17,711,762 17,712,014 2,906,042 (12,577) (48,626) 3,109,400 (203,358) (7)% 0% 2,060,332 324,212 348,789 (24,577) (8)% 0%
P89016 DONNEYBROOK MEDICAL CENTRE 14,704,322 14,704,531 2,412,599 (10,441) 0 2,658,626 (246,027) (10)% 0% 1,710,490 269,161 283,848 (14,687) (5)% 0%
P89021 DUKINFIELD MEDICAL CENTRE 15,868,573 15,868,798 2,603,623 (11,268) 0 2,712,537 (108,914) (4)% 0% 1,845,922 290,473 290,193 280 0% 0%
P89602 THE SMITHY SURGERY 5,478,203 5,478,281 898,832 (3,890) 0 912,745 (13,914) (2)% 0% 637,255 100,278 108,287 (8,009) (8)% 0%
Hyde 98,970,539 98,971,944 16,238,508 (70,278) (67,564) 17,284,270 (1,045,762) (6)% 0% 11,512,811 1,811,647 1,934,431 (122,784) (7)% 0%
P89005 LOCKSIDE MEDICAL CENTRE 10,208,603 10,208,748 1,674,968 (7,249) (16,976) 1,760,560 (85,592) (5)% 0% 1,187,522 186,868 164,744 22,124 12% 0%
P89007 STAVELEIGH MEDICAL CENTRE 9,905,525 9,905,666 1,625,241 (7,034) 0 1,766,785 (141,545) (9)% 0% 1,152,266 181,320 173,556 7,764 4% 0%
P89022 KING STREET MEDICAL CENTRE 5,461,197 5,461,274 896,041 (3,878) 0 973,114 (77,073) (9)% 0% 635,277 99,967 97,460 2,507 3% 0%
P89023 ST ANDREWS HOUSE 7,729,781 7,729,891 1,268,257 (5,489) 0 1,355,386 (87,129) (7)% 0% 899,172 141,493 145,572 (4,079) (3)% 0%
P89025 TOWN HALL SURGERY 4,772,636 4,772,703 783,066 (3,389) (21,272) 875,329 (92,263) (12)% 0% 555,180 87,363 72,558 14,805 17% 0%
P89026 GROSVENOR MEDICAL CENTRE 8,721,501 8,721,625 1,430,973 (6,193) 0 1,454,953 (23,980) (2)% 0% 1,014,534 159,646 155,346 4,300 3% 0%
P89612 MOSSLEY MEDICAL PRACTICE 2,718,936 2,718,975 446,107 (1,931) 0 488,547 (42,440) (10)% 0% 316,282 49,770 40,262 9,508 19% 0%
P89618 PIKE MEDICAL CENTRE 2,752,759 2,752,798 451,657 (1,955) 0 472,898 (21,241) (5)% 0% 320,216 50,389 47,973 2,416 5% 0%
Y02936 MILLBROOK MEDICAL PRACTICE 3,826,847 3,826,902 627,887 (2,717) 0 637,917 (10,030) (2)% 0% 445,160 70,050 57,311 12,739 18% 0%
56,097,786 56,098,583 9,204,197 (39,834) (38,248) 9,785,489 (581,292) (6)% 0%, 6,525,610 1,026,865 954,782 72,083 7% 0%
Total 352,068,000 | 352,073,000 57,765,260 (250,000) (247,569) 61,771,598 (4,006,339) (7)% 0% 40,954,533 6,444,575 6,555,186 (110,611) (2)% 0%




Agenda Item 5b

Planning Template v.14.6b for BCF: due on 11/09/2017

Better Care Fund 2017-19 Planning Template

Sheet: 1. Cover Sheet

[E<Tinkto the Guidance tab ]

You are reminded that much of the data In this template, to which you have privileged access, Is management information only and Is not
in the public domain. It is not to be shared more widely than Is necessary to complete the return.

Any accldental or wrongful release should be reported immediately and may lead to an inquiry. Wrongful release inciudes Indications of
the content, Including such descriptions as "favourable™ or “unfavourable”,

Please prevent inappropriate use by treating this Information as restricted, refrain from passing information on fo others and use It only
for the purposes for which it Is provided.

|Heaith and Well Being Board [ Tameslde |
{Compieted by: ] Ali Rehman / Martin Kent |
[E-Mail: i alirehman@nhs.net / martin kent1@nhs.net |
[Contact Number: ] 0161 342 5637 ]

Who signed off the report on behaif of

. o : -
the Heaith and Well Being Aoara: Councilior Brenda Warrington, Executive Member, Adult Saclal Care and Wellbeing

: Roig: Title and Name: E-mail:
Arsa Assurance Gonhct Detaila® Health and Wellbeing Board Chair Councillor Kieran Quinn kieran.quinn@lameside.gov.uk
— : Clinical Commissioning Group steven pleasanti@tameside.gcsx.g
Accountable Officer (Lead) S R ov.uk
- o Lo MNHS Manchester CCG NHS Manchester CCG
g‘:g:“:’s‘;‘ﬁgf:;:;m&‘aﬂ;”"g NHS Stockport CCG NHS Stockport CCG
P NHS Oldham CCG NHS Oidham CCG
Local Authority Chief Executive Steven Pleasant steven.pleasani@iameside gesx.g
Local Authority Director of Adult siephanie butterworth@tameside.

Stephanie Butterworth

Social Services (or equivalent) gov.uk
|Better Care Fund Lead Official Elaine Richardson elaine.richardson@nhs.net
LA Section 151 officer lan Duncan (until 30th Sep 17} ian.duncan@tameside.gov.uk
Flease add further arca contacts that you | Personal Assistant 1o Kathy Roe Jayne Somerville jayne.somenville@nhs.net
would wish to be included in official| Councillor Brenda Warrington, Councillor Brenda Warrington brenda.warrinmr@iameside.gov.
correspondence —> [Senior Executive Support Yvonne Rainford Yvonne.rainfnrd@tameside.gov.uk

*Only those identifled will be addressed in official correspondence

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the valldation boxas below hava turned green you should send the template to
england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for axample 'County Durham HWB"

. L *Complete Template* . )

No. of questions answered

1. Cover

2. HWB Funding Sources
3. HWB Expenditure Plan
4. HWB Mefrics

5. Naflonal Conditions

Page 61



£61L°22¢°23

869'251'23

4981 9X8 UOCHNQLIUCY V] WNWIUIW [€30],

(seguoujne ion omy sigeoidde Joy) umopyesug ©J( Jolt Jomo]

/_
ts)

61 2ee 23 |860°251 23 SPISSWEL|q)
UORNGUAUGS | UORNGIHUoD (54) 1UEID somoed pajaesiqg|o)
SSCID) 61/210Z | S504O QLILL0Z %

408! 9%e suonNGLIU0) ALOIRNY €907

saoinog Bulpung pieog Gulag-jlop pue yyeaH "z 1Jeeys
£102/60/1} uo anp 4049 10} q9°y|°A a)ejdwa] Buluue|d

q¥j 6oUEPIND 6 O Ul >>

seaunog Buipund amH 'z |

8L-LLOZ |

polLied uoissiwgng ejeq

spisswie | |

:pieog] Buieg [lom pue Yesy peyos|es



Moleq |iejep

$S09 61/8).0Z | SS0I9 81/21.02

ON ON eseeid S84 Jj (61/8102 10 81//10Z U apet
Buieg suoanquue) HOO (euopppe Aue axy
L18'€68°GL3 £€0°265'5LY uopngquuo) 9O Wnwijuliy ejo L
22E'E68'GL3 £E0'265'GL3 09 dosSo|S) pue spisale | SHNf
uoHnuLo) UORNQIILCY uonquo) wnwiuy 959540
S8015) 61/81.02 | 88015 81/ 10¢ )
(@)]
©
818'SL1'83 18L'EvE'93 uoinquiuogd 4D4! 1830 L
818'C.A2'83 LRL'EPE'DI opisslle ]
uognqusuod | uognqusuon UoRNGUIUCY JIE
88010 6L/BL07Z | 85049 B1/110€
£61'1Z8'23 869°ZS1'T3 uonnqLuoy AjLoyiny 2007 [e30 L
Bujpuny Jo $851n0S 10 s8N oljioads AUE AJUBIS X064 Sif) 85N eseed - SJUBURLIDT) UORNGIRUOD) UOINGUIUDT uogNQLIUOY) JEUCHIPPY AJLORNY B0

ON

ON

apew Sueg suognquiuoy v JBUonIppe Aue iy

MoJeq
welep esee|d soA §| (61/810Z 10 8174102 Ul




¢SSNLOLINE JOLISIP BU) JO yoea
0} Ajunco au} Woy Jueln senijved pajqesiq Jo

JUNOLLE (N} BYy umop ssed o) suepd asew) ady (|
JUBLLLISACE J230] JO SIBl} OM LM SEGIE Uz

¢Aoyine Guisnoy [eooj
9L} O} SpuRy ©4(J JO Jejsuen oy} 1o} aoejd w

SeA oA sjuewebueue aie pue Jueis) sejioe peigesiq
9y} Jo esn ey; Jhoge JuslesIbe alsy) 5] °|
Xoq sjuswiuiod 8y} uj |jejop aseajd 0N, i Jeak Jaypie 10} esuodsas pajoaies ou 4l asuodsay asuodsay 7 10} sjusialinbag Bujpuny oyoadg

4
8]
(@)
©

500 dosso|) B spisawe |
PUE DG Spisswe) usemaq juaweelbe G/ uonoag (e00] Jabie| e ulyum papnjou; aie suopnguiuod Bulpuny ay} Jo (& ‘SIB|NDUID [BUCYEU JUBLIND YIIM BUI| U] PSLUNSSE SUOHED0|W
SAIIELIBN SUCRNGUIUDD Buipun
88£'066'923  |216'Z60'¥23 3a6pnq pejood o4 |ejolf
6L/810¢ 8L/12102
03 03 uonngrauod 59 [RUORIPPY [ejol
Buipuny Jo seainos Jo sesn JH10ads Aue AJuep Xoq S|y} oSh esesd - SJueWITy UOHNAIRLIOT uoHNOIGUCY) uofingIuos) ©99 feUOBIPPY
SS0I9) G1/8L0C | SS0IS) 8112102




Lo
©
8)

épunyS?

"k - 08 P8{00d 8U} U] PEPNIOUI LB SO B §| ‘g s

4pasn Buiag si puny a4} o} UORNGLHUOD
S8A S8A 900 8y ulyiim papnjoul Juetue|qesd
Joj Buipuny moy uo Jueweaibe ssay) i g

dlood 40g o uiyum woyy
SaA SAA Uoddns ajjloads-Jsied o] pejedpap aq [Im Jexy)
Buipuny Jo Junowe oi Uo JustuaaIBE a1BL) S|

£PRIjiiUsSpE ussqg sey sennp 10y sJB]) Mau au) Jo
SaA SO uoljelusaidw] auy) Jo) wee L3 oL jo uofodoud
220} By 1SB8 1B jeuy Juswioaibe siel) S| §

‘Buisnoy

pue aIed 21008 ‘Uijeey 0) seyosoidde pejelbajui
Hoddns o} jueds eq jm H4q Jo uoiod paulejel
BL} MOY XOY SIUSWIWOD BL)) Ui [Iejep aseayd
‘aigeoydde J) ¢ Yoeoidde sy o] pasibe s|ouUnNco
JOLISIP JUBASIS) BUl SARY ‘AlUN0D Bkl Ag pauejel
usaqg sey Buipuny 94g ey jo uood e ) (i




Planhing Template v.14.6b for BCF: due on 11/09/2017
Stroet: 3. Hasttf) and Well-Belisg Board Expenditars Plan

bcted Health and Wel) Being Board:
N Linkte. shast

AE )
Dwta leslon Period: wrwnﬂbﬁml £
E‘li—]! | L358) Ay Coniribublion bu' s=e a= BCF | o 7Y
A TABEmedhm :
| Er——
o Fams
Local Local
L Empioyment Sarvices 6. Gttee Pt | ] i e
. Locat
e . ot s 1. Do ave s Locat
sanmory wugnon. [ocie Local Local
Sanzory Servicas. 16, Olher kel ks by oty
(Contrdl upiific / demoaraphic presaursa 4. Raskderdal I‘Nf'{‘“"‘" Socl :mw o Ertee
Cluskily Anmranca Tesm 16. Char A;"‘.‘,"w Py
1e. Wamalng Moria1 Loca Local
Mol Husth Recosry Sardce 12 e et Fl P £x000)
|Acktona) As e Cepacty E HED mw ey 31800
Appraved Manial Healh Prac ikone: Ao [l s Pzt A 20T
Gount of Protaction - vk hachiog ul e eyt L i = bty E122.000
- . P Loce
[Addiona! Ocoupafonal Therspists 2. Domicliey carm 1. Dam care [ £o4000,
Aot Fament Gapacity 8. tber et o s £54000  £54,000|Exinting
Kol
[—
15, Wellbslng |Sookal Local 201718 [y
ot et = K oy [aanar caref 5 10000
(ry—
14, Hsalcpniia jGocial Lossl Local 2017118
Care Home Goniracts e . Caro home e . ey [B30a e [0 £an000) Esoirg
[Chariy?[imprives
AgeUKend  [Bccial Locai ha
[Third Bactor capecily 18. Olhar Tam s o Bight sty | voluntary Cars fory £137,000)| [Extaling|
7. Epabiecstor |3, Programme eucil Loeut Local
PG Conte (rtearation mansgamen cam Jrathory Aoy Esomn|  E11.000 Hew
CRE Project jsed : D 1, Toiecars :": ':.“ Locsl 20,800
b
1. Socisl Local Looal
Fovlew Capacty o sordces  [mkilimion Cara | Authorky G
. impeoved [Bom
Sharea Lives proact tand i Bedeniel ) = o oo [EatorCars |20tz | r20500
Corars Prciect sad 2 Carars sarvices :ng‘:m"'""' = P
2. Cara navimton ¢ 1. cave 5o Local Local et
r b 8 and "
jAutien oo-ardinator - Care P m&' =Eg [
mproed_[Bah
. 44, Rasidanta Joccit Local Prbate
Furthar oa pavity o reduce DTOC's = [Bekor Core [201718ana]  £260.000| £1,000.000]Mew
4 Care Authorty soctey  [Bober Care (201748
[mproved [Ban
| Bchames under | Socls! Loomd Local
0. ctver o L I T
dovslopment  |Carm [ puborty [Pt Com 201710
- ot
< [FG - | Sncipl Looal Privide [Authority
OF @ Aduptaions esrgianone Care 2uorty secisr  |ooniiio |Z01oe = L1525
thi i 0 i . Roatdanial | L [Socint Local Privats .'“w:d_. :.d.n Band| EAPANT] E5.
pport redustion in DTOC's car authorny sactor  [enss Cute o178
; 6ot
1. Asctetie Jaosiar loca  foimum (301
Taincare/Teioheath Tty 1. Tobocern = it 2ok S et o T 0000
ite oty it [ e
1 Aigtive m K
KCES [Jninl Loan Siore) Tactvctogus 4. Other o inly Heallh fiaind 050% a50% sactar Contributc: ::m:.ll E1,288,000]  £1,264.000| Sdsting
3 cooiat P 7 Both
11. Local s
e carocarvicas  fubintion can rumorny ubory [Contbus [207706 nd] £2445.000] 22,148 000 xelna
- A i
" [Com munit - AlrLm
Whsalohtion 10, Other Conry K E b (Rbera|  Ooraoan
el Bet
Communt [Mrimus
Putinaorts Nares 1. outee Tl o 000 ke [T o000
s B
10. inagraied ee Commurk rkmum o
Inogratad Care e 4. Other e oo pastin e crzzoncr| en
Bocal Frivate bt 20
Corar Brosda {Aduita) 0. Comers marvicas: |+, Otnae B 2 Conitnsa [R17 ] c130000
J3im1 S0z 8l Both
10. Igretad case ] ) o
Iniogratsd Urgors Casa Team e (. Cars panning owe foamans o 200% mok | eia oo (2B e £1520.000
Bolh
0. intagraiad care Boctal == Loca)  [Wimun
Euly Supporied Dechasgs Taan |- 1. Gars planning B Pl Lo LI
- frind Bt
8. Domiclacy cara 1. Dom care sociel oot local  [Winimum
Community Qerupalicnsl Theapieis B = So e s vk [0 | Erovo0a) 7ot contog
NHE el Both
M niemam
servicm 10, Ottar oco o [orme s evorzooof 1
Provider _[COibuE Jo iy
Mena) heslh Services 18 whivn Lo Looal ezamo0| 24w
Loesl Lozsi
omamy B L) | Authonity Rl iy
Imipac of Merw Gare At Ditlew |2 Carm rmrigpion 1. Gare = - 520000

Page 66



Seiscled Haslth end Vel Balng Board:
—— Tty

r Dﬂlm-lg Purlod:

| Tr——

JJ.I

=

; EETIT N ) SR | =
- ﬁhun.:e" BohemaTnr' h| Bpwsd | WiArsael " Jowt.
aD| egiam) et St s 'mhar - ) I
1. Asaiative Tochnologion Using i

it delvery of cara. (60, Te4oo21, Wokness saroms, Diget poticlebion sarvses).

2. Cars nawigation { opongikSan

A wervice to i pecpi find thair way fo sppropriaie $orcos d Fue sisn Alm,un
ofterad in peoga i

mhm-mdluulw Mmumhwmhbhmmmmmm;q

m—-hmnmun s incluies approaches ke Single Poink of Access (SPoA) and inking peopts Io communily
[3. Carers sarvicen r e 2o huslhood of orisls, Adves, advoracy, Infarmalion, 1. Carsr achdon and suppart
fraining, 904 10 sorvican Io support welbelng 2. of Al
mmmm—mmmmhmamnmm-.mm 3. Raaplts sanvices.
4. Othar
[4. DFG - Adeplalions
5. DFG - Other Housing o hi
8. Domicilary casm al homg Amdmmduhmmhhmmmwmmmdmwmmmd 1, 1Doin <are packages
shopping, hams Tink wih othar sarcos in e 2. Dom osra warkforce developman!
mnlmlu'.lnm-lllwollgdlnnhg muwnummmunuymm 3. Other
7. Enadslors. fo nlogralion Stvom we fhral bl and develop ihe snabiing foundaons of heath wide rango of |1
polorrial s warkiaros, markel Fundnghe |2 Sytem IT Intarcparablity
[ ocal
achamas. i includ Hhat enabla joint 4. Ramensch end evaliration
commissloning, ant
6. Communily smest mapping
7.
8. Viaduntary Sozi0f Business Davalopmant
9. Employment sarvices
0. Joird commisalaning INfrasicture
1. Other-
B. Featthcare ssnvices to Cas Hames improva the sty e gty vicos dolvorod Bupport the | 1. Char - Aanisl ot / woFbeing
o tmgr Thes Inchades provider led inlervenbona In caro 2. Qiber - Physical heatth / welheing
homea 9. joir renidantial and . Other
9. High impaci C o Vrtoging Transter of Carm The 8 changes amm-m-mmmwmmmmmml 1. Pian)
ucrme tha social and health system. 2. Sypiiatis. lo Momitor Pallent Flow
9. Muti-Diciplinaryhiub-Agancy Dlectmige
.
4. Home FirstDiecharge b Access
5. Seven-Duy Sandcss
18, Truated Adsowwors
7. Fotus on Choice
5. Enhancing Healh in Cave Homes
8. O
10. Inlngraind cars planning A co-crdneled, proadty of Cot iiowdv and | 1. Care planning
op typically v ionale as partof Y For |2 niagraisd cars
WmmumT-n-mnnmc:..._ 0 -----d-n-up-mdlh 3. Rekow lotm (rwsiawing

Ju in tha Som of Intagretad 200 packages and needs Infplscemen
4

w—mmmamm planss solacd e approprizte sub-typs slongs ko, . Char
11. Tninemeacfials carw services bmmmbmhmwdpmmmlmhmwwm 1. ity doan
#tavs or avcidabia acknlesion W fosgital or esfdental care, The cars i pen 2. Siop up
i welF-car), Fagid reaorsor crila |3, RepidiGrisls Fpeponas
respome Including that for falls. A iFahabilitrion services
5. Olar
12. Fermonllasd heaithaare ol homa al u parson through n.pmhlmm—nmhhd 1, Other - Woni bl Peemilh fwelibaing
support at hama, This ward fr fnive |2, Ofher - Physical haatibiwslbeing
poricd of 1o delvar BupporH v She longer lerm and and of Nfe cere for peopls. 3. Othar

Ry — #ipport provided In tha Parson cised Healficars st Home

nchama fypa.

3. Primary prowenton 7 Early Insrvonbon

mwmmmmaumlmmmmpnmmmmummhn

1. Socisl Preacribing
22 Other - Merrial health Avalbeing

ok cnre Uy i el place. Therss ar casentialy ips raam
el betng. 3. Othar - Physical healtiwadiseing
{_ 4. Ohar
4. Faakdentl plocamens [ e phalcal Gaalibes, friad bowkn dificdtes or |1, Supporiad fing
P g o haing lovs, wh noed more darlve or &pacliee suppor ran can be provkdd f hoe. 2. Lioting deablity
3. Extra.cara
4. Gara home
6. Nurwimg fioma
6. Oiter
|15 Walihoig tovires [Wiellwirg carires provide @ specs (o oifer B range o SUppoTT ot promcla Tl oo 1o
mmumhmmmmmwm- “Thay can ypicaly b commissined iy and resdton by e i
18, Cthar

gk,
Where Iha scheme s not adequately mprokenied by e above schems hpes, pleass cutiing the objsctivs. ond sorices
For ha I whort In he commenls column.

Page 67



1 -
BJoW B PG ©f awieibold uogesbequ ey) ipwm Azmiapun s

R L T A R P P P VPR

oM RUONPPY SauBLLOpad
WaUND UL o) 81 Wie au awdesbowep tuIbe Busy Bu; uanS sapuone Jaepf==
UHON PUB J8ISEUDBUEY JEIRalD) s pooki Ajajeiedion SHIBWR BAJE S} U] S0USLLIAM0 4

SUSEI0T

Buisiny puB PERUBPIZSI 0 UOISIDE
£ 184U (Jan0 pue g9 abe) oftosd

I8 Uy 18pj0 J0 $pseU poddns uuey-Buc

L

SUO|SS|WPY [epuep|sey 2'Y

1pd'91-G102 91500 6OLIBIG e IR0 L/ C/0|WEIEP IUBWIYOBNE/SPEC|dryieis A8 /speo|dn/ueURLIBAOB T ADE sy Sd1 AMSSEDEU 111800 L) PUSLIE PUE JUBWINOOP Bupmoljo) ey} 95N esEsld 4.y
408 81 4o Jed S€ §1/8L0Z JO 1/ 10Z Jo; puny Aousbunuco e soeyd ui Bumind eese a0 AL Joj ‘punj AUsBURUOI/EEOJAIES PELIGITSILAICS [BYISOL JO 1110 SHIN LG oKW 643 0} 120[aNs WNS L) URHIAA
(g8 Buddei BAH - 00 s8s) Buddew BAMH-DDD 8Ul Uo peseq ‘eid |8A8) BARH 4} 0} ©O7 UIES JO UDINALIUCS % 64} B8 PIBINIIES §1 1L .
LLG2/L0/01 U pepexe ‘eAs] Apsyenb o) paiebeaibte ‘sjeidus) Buluurid ZAun B4 u| Pepniu| seanby ueld YN DD 1991E] SL WK UBKE) .8 SUB|d UGSBIIPY SAGIRI3-UoN |EI0L 500 S4.1

HEl ED

6ligl 1O

_mr.m— 48]

{HZ10ZT 498 ybnong
PRIGAIND UCHIRPAS V3N IBLORIEPY

s sy gl v

| I

| T

18124 1D

MGi30 S1ja0 Bl Lt S (0 g1’ 2ol Y IO 1500 AU 01

SE9'LZ
6L/ I830L

"suUpanpas Guipiogas Ag sueid ©00 Buibueys
o} uBjje o) jdusane o peunba. Jou a2 sgAH ‘sueld 90 amyng Jo Gupsixe ansqe PUE JBAD ara BSal) fUBIYM SUO[DNRS) Plooa Ajuo 65864

vs PUTJ
- . FousBunuos/sedialos PeusITLLIOY
iPP91S'Yd  |PEZ'TerPI oy Jo o SHN o) pao
[ - 850 Wy Buipuny arusasL
BLBIOT BHZIGE @
215
_ ot _ LYEN Uo Juswiesibe puny AoueBuy
eo0] e eapid uj Bugnd nok
[qv]
Salnbl] vananpey
[BUCAIPPY ALBLEND GMH Bjeidiioa aszerd 'seh |
oN dsuogonpe)
feucpippe Aue uo Guuueld nok ey

Joer'sz [T

[es6s

9169

90 |ET ror"z

990°L

SIEJ0L UR]d UOISHIWPY SAIIT-UON ﬂ_z—:_

_-:E [CTTR &LBL O

Bl £

8121 70

E- T * LD _ TR

L2120

8H.LL LD

ueld AUARSY VIN SMH 17|

9100} PN e1e3 Joneg pUuod BUOG-IIOM PUT LESH b Jeey
£102/60/L1L U0 anp 409 10} q9°'y)°A ejdwa) Bujuueld

_ ﬂaﬂﬂgﬁ_
[ AN GNH Y ]
L E1-LI0T ]
'pofiad UoE=ENG wIvg

SpwL

‘Imog Bujag [ pUV Yyusy PRISRS



“spal@D)

BusEHlea PUE Ljjsel oy 2854, 10} 981 0L 8 epeas 0} AjsARoedsed Bl00d 3 YINGLISWNOE PUB AISS T (JBLLID Lo 0} PAUIGUICS Ueaq BB €{00d DU YNoWeLLINag PUB A5G J6 S8jS] U (MG Jos Seinbiy L )

fouch, nended/uoieifuupusuceindod/Ayunwwsspueuogeindodeidosd iAot suo sy sdil

‘pumiEi@)

1ZpuBiBusulgeLOLNEEICYFIEFRIRR/EU

Ul sepuaLnY 98307 Joy suanoelold UsREIndod [BUCREN-GNS PesEq 10T e} Bursn Jeek JEpusiED B Ua Pesed wle suoeefoud uoyeindod {+g |, pebe} voneindod gog oDy 168 Eldsol Way (shep pake|ep) 180 JO sIejSUEL)L peieigy)
[0

80010 10 [ane|[PFL VLV 12 PLl [ (747 Zeleil ZaLELl ZBLTLL BETELr ESTS BEL'EL} — P
6L} esEsIU] Jou [ em jewy vone(ndod Jepio Jno ul ymed) - pebie) uojBndod
a AR Hdsip SBpapoLTE O ‘%6 E[GogT ETy S06T ETy 8002 1eET s ZELY | 7153 EIVT 000°001 J8d
UIEIELL O} 51 SUDJIGWE B4} OF PLIZ IPSGU [N Joj UC[IBIIYS (V00) JONRIBUIN o) i (e
18U SLUIOY eJBD JUBDYUGIT auinbal pinom Joyun) asnpay . _ - ' : . : . L . - ) eiB0 o
0} 1oy} s19866ns SIARUE [£507 "GLi21 ¥1) 10} tg'e Jo 1ubiEy|6 OBOF GETE GFEGE 07601 GRS gasit [5HET CF 580%C VEELE 60z GC002 ] u&a_._ﬁ o
WD Bu Yiw euji u) padojeaep useq sey Aioiaefes o] sy ) sJ9j5URJ| pekR
L) L) G181 ED SL76E 20 810 10 TR EANS) RIIZL 30 SLF 1D ZUBL vD ZH3L ED ¥4 AN
Sl GLgL R FETn SRSV 11-9)
8deg JO S13J5URIL poAriaq ¥y
"Z1*91 20} WG Jalenb Ui [RMRE el LCY 198 S| [aa) %G L §|esy _.@ _lmvm A3 euoUeg
“wied B ey} 18 saanuas Buaniesal aue ejdoed a0 au) 6L BINSUS o) pojebin) Apueniya -mmﬂ“mn moﬁ__éucgmﬁ
B.OUU 2q QUMY B4 LI J¥A SI0IAS 1By} PeyBAIIUE ) 1| WE | 8JE:) JUSBIN JENGel eJow B| FLE L€ 52V vi sieuwny| o —m_m_‘ ua“w:__"”w _.”._.ﬂ_weoa
10 JUBLLIAOISASP B} LM PUB SJIAISS JUBISIESY Bl J0 mamel B Buwmo([oZ SaLoYNE 15aA] RETd %5 e CHTa g e mmmvEun _n: ] .mou_cho —os—cszo T
UMON DU JsjsaliouBiy JEIEeID L. oot ApAREIEdWOD SUBWG! EAJE Siy Ul solewLIopNag “ Bnuuy
R | “aBideieL | UBIdBLAL | Yeld ZHBE | BraY 90l
l Juswejqesy £'y|

‘spieog Buteg-||op PUB LpfeeH oM asay}

10} 91EI SUDISSWLIPY [BAUBPISEY ¢ Sees o] Aleedeal 8joad B YINOWRILNGE PUE AIIS % IEMLLIOD) ULy O} POUIGLUOD LBE] SBY $joad pug Linoweinog pue AeS Jo sejg) pue ||emwon say senby uogeindod
_.Nu_._u__ncm_.__mw___._oﬁ!ﬁoo_303_@u_.aco_.oo_E.._co_.u_Eo&_._o__Em.-._..u_.!._o_ﬁEno&EEEEBv:u:oawzuo%_nom&x:.Sm.nE.;_Eéanf

*PUBIBUZ] Ul FOIHOUNTY 8307 J0 BUBfosfold LoRINdO g [BUOREN-ONS PESEq 102 SU)

Btusn reed Jepuejea B Uo peseq e suonoefosd uopeinded (+59 pebe) vogeindod pog'oo) Jed ‘sewoy esed Buisinu pus |EljUapIse) 0] USjSSAUPE Aq Jow (19A0 PUB 59 obe) ejdoed epio jo speeu poddns wierBuo

_ﬂ.mlm E

‘JaBuo| Joy sawoy wao|L08 0F

EI0EE EUKLOU ’ . _
MAnn B U af Mdasd ol 1 TR0 pAIRBear ALS AR BriEs IR AN IPREE LS 1 RNIRA — _ -Ea nq EEE g 8* .g Eo: Lon




.80
oA oA 10 su8jsuel Bu|Geuepy (v
Se0IAIBS |ENdsoy JO JNO
SOA SOA POUOISSILIWIOD SHN Ul
1seAur 0) jueuweelby (g
uoijeyul
UM BUI} Lt pauIeLY
SaA 8A St 819 [Bioos Jnpe
O} UOHNQUILICD SHN (2
paasbe>
SOA SA Apwof aq o) suejy (I~
D
LUOBIPUCD SR | LUOBIPUOD Sip 81-210Z pUng m
"UORIPLIOD By} Je0it 0f uexe) Bujeq viw JuL) SuopIe joaw o) uepd Jeepd v |joew o} urid Jesp B e.e) Jonog ouL 104
10/pue SENES] XOq SIIBURLOD 8L Ul oD eaveid ‘ON, S| Jeek Jeipe 10} ssucdesy peoejes o INO 398 GL/BLOZ 40} | }NO 188 BL/LLOT 10} SUOHIPUOD [BUOREN
usid 408 N0k ucoa_..-.n 494 ok seog |
Y »
GQET93UEPIND oyy 0] UI >>

SUOLIPUOY) [BUOHEN °§ Joeys

—_—

suopipuoy [BuCheN °G |

6L-LL0Z

poliad UCISS|WgNS eleq

apisewe]

—

ipJeog Buieg [[l9M PUE WjlESH pejIe|as

2102/60/11 uo anp :409 404 q9°tL A djejdwa) Bujuue]d



CC6 to Health and Well-Befng Board Mapping for 2017-19

HWE Code LA Name CCG Code CCG Name % CCG In HWB % HWB In CCG'
EGS8000008 Tameside 14L NHS Manchester 0CG 2.3% 5.9%
E08000008 Tameslde ogy NHS Qldham CCG 3.6% 3.8%
EQR000008 T id oiw NHS Stockport CCG 1.7% 2.2%
@DOODB Tameside o1y NHS Tameside and Glossap CCG 85.1% 83.1%)

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Iltem 6

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Councillor Brenda Warrington, Executive Member (Adult
Social Care and Wellbeing)

Jessica Williams, Programme Director, Tameside and

Glossop Care Together

INTEGRATION REPORT - UPDATE

This report provides Tameside Health and Wellbeing Board
with progress on the implementation of the Care Together
Programme and includes developments since the last
presentation in June 2017.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked:
1. To note the updates as outlined within this report.

2. To note the proposed changes within the Clinical
Commissioning Group governance and clinical
leadership structures.

3. To receive a further update at the next meeting.

Integration has been identified as one of the six principles
agreed locally to achieve the priorities identified in the
Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy

One of the main functions of the Health and Wellbeing
Board is to promote greater integration and partnership,
including joint commissioning, integrated provision, and
pooled budgets where appropriate.

The Tameside and Glossop health and social care economy
has a projected £70 million financial gap by 2020/21, the
delivery of which will be supported by the Care Together
Programme. It is important to note that the locality financial
gap will be subject to revision, the details of which will be
reported to a future Health and Wellbeing Board meeting.

It should also be noted that the approved Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership funding of
£23.2 million should be monitored and expended in
accordance with the investment agreement and that
recurrent efficiency savings are subsequently realised
across the economy as a result of this investment.

It is important to recognise that the Integration agenda,
under the auspices of the ‘Care Together’ banner, is a set of
projects delivered within each organisation’s governance
model and delivered jointly under the Single Commissioning
Board together with the Integrated Care Foundation Trust.
However, the programme itself requires clear lines of
accountability and decision making due to the joint financial
and clinical implications of the proposals. It is important as
well as effective decision making processes that there are
the means and resources to deliver the necessary work.
This is to provide confidence and oversight of delivery. We

Page 73



Risk Management :

Access to Information :

need to ensure any recommendations of the Care Together
Programme Board are considered / approved by the
constituent bodies to ensure that the necessary transparent
governance is in place.

The Care Together Programme has an agreed governance
structure with a shared approach to risk, supported through
a project support office

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Jessica Williams, Programme
Director, Tameside and Glossop Care Together

&3 Telephone: 0161 304 5389

" e-mail: jessicawilliams1@nhs.net

Page 74


mailto:jessicawilliams1@nhs.net

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

INTRODUCTION

This report provides Tameside Health and Wellbeing Board with an outline of the
developments within the Care Together Programme since the last presentation in June
2017.

The report covers:

e Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership;
e Programme Management Office;

e Operational Progress;

e Recommendations.

GREATER MANCHESTER HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP (GM HSCP)

Of the full £23.226m transformational funding award, £7.9m has been allocated within
2017/18. Transformational programmes are now being implemented at pace across the
economy and expenditure profiles are being examined to understand the potential benefits
in year.

Monitoring of the Investment Agreement within the locality takes place on a fortnightly
basis at the Finance Economy Workstream and at the quarterly Care Together Programme
Board. In addition, Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership require
quarterly returns and a self-assessment process is being undertaken.

The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership have requested applications
for the Greater Manchester Digital Fund. Tameside and Glossop has submitted a bid for
£4.77m as this is the capital required to deliver our IM&T ambitions. However, as the
Greater Manchester Digital Fund is constrained and bids are likely to far exceed the
allocation available, we have also broken the £4.77m into phases to ensure that as a
minimum, we receive sufficient funding to continue the current drive to improve
connectivity. If our Digital Fund submission is not successful, we will submit a further
application to the Greater Manchester Transformation Fund.

The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership have unfortunately not yet
confirmed the £995k programme management support which we submitted on 23 March.
We continue to press for this funding.

Our Programme Management Office is well represented throughout the governance and
operational structures at the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership. We
continue to ensure we remain aligned with the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership vision and direction of travel, learn from best practice opportunities elsewhere
and where appropriate, support the development of central and other locality plans.

PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT

As reported at the last meeting, the governance processes implemented in our Programme
Management Office have been commended by Greater Manchester Health and Social
Care Partnership. Over the summer, we have supported the Greater Manchester Health
and Social Care Partnership Programme Management Office team and they have
confirmed that they will be adopting our system more widely.

The Programme Management Office has successfully recruited to all 4 positions and will
be fully established from beginning of October.

Page 75



4,

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

OPERATIONAL PROGRESS

Single Commissioning Function

At its meeting on 26 July 2017 the Clinical Commissioning Group’s Governing Body
considered a report proposing revisions to its governance. The main driver for the review
was the recognition that the governance arrangements for the Single Commission are
maturing and there is a need to ensure duplication is minimised. Governing Body
considered whether existing structures continue to be fit for purpose, if the leadership is
correct for each constituent part, and if it is delivering value for taxpayers’ money.

The Governing Body agreed the following key proposals:

e Introduction of a Stakeholder/Partners Strategic Engagement Forum, to be held
quarterly and chaired by the Elected Member for Health and Social Care.

¢ Monthly meetings of the Single Commissioning Board, Finance Committee, Primary
Care Committee, and Health and Care Advisory Group (previously known as
Professional Reference Group).

e Introduction of a new Quality, Performance, and Assurance Group to meet bi-monthly
and to be chaired by the Clinical Commissioning Group’s Governing Body Nurse.

e Audit Committee moves to five times a year and the Governing Body to quarterly. The
Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee to meet at least annually.

Proposed new Chair arrangements for the majority of committees were also agreed.

The Governing Body agreed the following proposals in relation to the clinical leadership:

e Chair of the Single Commissioning Board/Clinical Commissioning Group Governing
Body to continue the leadership role within the Greater Manchester Health and Social
Care Partnership Primary Care Reform programme or other programme as appropriate,
as well as within Tameside and Glossop.

e Four new leadership GP roles are created with explicit responsibilities to support the
Chair, provide clinical input into strategic commissioning decisions, and bring wider GP
perspectives to place based public services.

e Three of these GP leadership roles will drive commissioning of the Starting, Living, and
Ageing Well public sector agenda. They will be accountable to the Chair of the Single
Commissioning Board and be expected to work across organisational boundaries to
support delivery of new models of care. For example, the Living Well agenda could be
developed and led by a lead GP, with a senior commissioning manager, employment
specialist, public health consultant, finance manager, and business intelligence lead
collectively working to identify population outcomes which support a new method of
commissioning mental health services, employment support, Active Tameside etc.

e The fourth GP leadership role will provide clinical support for General Practice and
Primary Care.

e One of the posts will need to be elected by the Governing Body membership as Clinical
Vice-chair.

e An additional clinical role is created as a Post-CCT Fellowship to cement Tameside and
Glossop as an innovative place for training and development and also to aid succession
planning within the strategic clinical commissioning leadership. The specific
responsibilities for the post will be agreed with the successful candidate and according
to their interests.

e The role of Chair of the Single Commissioning Board/Clinical Commissioning Group
Governing Body moves to 6 sessions per week.

e Four GP clinical leadership posts at three sessions per week with the Fellowship
currently costed as two days per week.

e Each of the leadership clinicians will need to take specific commissioning responsibility
for a Neighbourhood and link to the corresponding Integrated Care Foundation Trust
Neighbourhood Leads.

Page 76



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

e An advert to be drafted to recruit three Governing Body GPs (from 1 April 2018) and to
be employed by the Clinical Commissioning Group subject to clarification of the
Employment Status of the Governing Body GPs.

e The Chair ensures clarity on the deliverables required in each leadership area on an
annual basis.

e Each lead will be a formal attendee of the Single Commissioning Board and of the
Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body. Other statutory committees will not
require representation from all and, collectively, the GP clinical leads will allocate
responsibilities and determine best coverage and use of time

e The previous five Clinical Commissioning Group Neighbourhood Leads posts
transferred to the Integrated Care Foundation Trust on 1 April 2017. This arrangement
needs to be formalised to provide the Integrated Care Foundation Trust with £228,150
to support these sessions. Should the Integrated Care Foundation Trust wish to
increase the number of sessions, the additional funding will be a matter for the Trust.

e The Named GP for Children’s Safeguarding remains with one session per week to
ensure the continued focus in this area.

e The Chief Finance Officer, Lay Members, and Governing Body Nurse costs all remain
as agreed in the opening budget for 2017/18.

e All other posts within the commissioning clinical leadership structures will be reviewed
to determine future need for these roles and, if clear objectives remain, whether it is
more appropriately a Single Commission or Integrated Care Foundation Trust role.

The Governing Body was of the opinion that these recommendations strengthen the clinical
leadership within the Strategic Commission and Clinical Commissioning Group, reduce
some capacity back into the system through a reduction in the frequency of some meetings,
and represent good value for the public purse. It is noted that the introduction of the post-
CCT Fellowship Governing Body role is highly innovative and will help to evidence how
Tameside and Glossop is a dynamic place in which to work as a GP.

In line with the Clinical Commissioning Group’s Constitution these recommendations were
put to the wider GP membership of Tameside and Glossop by an email from Dr Alan Dow
on 7 August 2017. The feedback received by the stated deadline of 31 August 2017 was
overwhelmingly positive.

The key next steps taking place during September 2017 are as follows:

e The five GP Neighbourhood Groups are minuting from their September meetings that
they have reviewed and supported the recommendations. This will provide useful
evidence of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s membership support when applying to
NHS England for the Constitution changes.

e Dr Alan Dow has been invited to the 11 September meeting of the Local Medical
Committee to explain the proposals to this GP representative group.

e At its meeting on 27 September the Governing Body meeting will receive a report
summarising the membership responses and seeking formal support to approach NHS
England in order to make the formal changes to the Constitution.

e From October 2017 work will be undertaken in preparation for the anticipated approval
from NHS England.

The new Governance Structure is attached at Appendix A and the new Clinical Leadership
Structure at Appendix B.

The Single Commission has launched a consultation on proposals for Intermediate Care.
This will be explored in detail under a separate agenda item.

Integrated Care Foundation Trust
Work continues to determine the full remit for the Integrated Care Foundation Trust and to
align services accordingly. As well as the transformation and transaction of Integrated

Page 77



3.11

4.1

Neighbourhoods, discussions regarding mental health, how to optimise working with a
variety of voluntary, community and faith sector groups and potentially, the alignment of
primary care are being discussed.

Key in the development of the Integrated Care Foundation Trust is the transformation and
management of Adult Social Care. The agreed timetable for the Adult Social Care
transaction process will be brought to the next Health and Wellbeing Board.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As stated on the front of the report.

Page 78



6/ abe

==
===
_— B

monthly

Monthly

Quarterly

Monthly

mmm Five times a year

At least annually




This page is intentionally left blank



T8 abed

Strategic Commissioning Function: Clinical Leadership Roles

Chair, Single Commissioning Board

e Statutory responsibility as Chair, CCG GB
e SCF clinical representative for GM & AGG
e Deputy Chair, Health and Wellbeing Board
e GM strategic responsibilities

Primary Care
Development

e Support for General
Practice

e Primary Care Reform

e Population Health

e Inequalities in health

Starting Well
e Children & Families
e Maternity
e Young People
e CAMHs

e Education

Living Well
Urgent Care
Planned Care
Employment
Long Term
Conditions
Housing

Ageing Well
Mental Health &
Learning
Disabilities
Dementia
Carers

Cancer

Post CCT
Fellowship

Remit to be agreed
with successful
candidate; likely to be
pathway redesign
within life course stage

To note;

All are members of the Strategic Commissioning Board.
All are 3 sessions per week with the exception of Chair at 6.

Each Clinical Lead (except for post CCT Fellowship) to take commissioning leadership responsibility for one of the Neighbourhoods.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report to : TAMESIDE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Date : 21 September 2017

Executive Member / Reporting Angela Hardman, Director of Population Health

Officer: Anna Moloney, Consultant Public Health

Subject : SEASONAL FLU IMMUNISATION PROGRAMME

Report Summary : National Guidance for the seasonal flu campaign 2017/18
has been issued. The success of the seasonal flu
programme is dependent on the collaboration of many
stakeholders across the Greater Manchester and local
health and social care system. The role of targeted
communications is pivotal to the success of the flu
campaign. The Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group performance for the 2016/17
seasonal flu performance is summarised. The main
conclusions from the annual seasonal flu debrief are
highlighted with the ambition of increasing flu vaccination
uptake during the 2017/18 programme.

Recommendations : Health and Wellbeing Board to note local performance for
the 2016/17 seasonal flu programme plus the arrangements
for the 2017/18 flu immunisation programme ; and the
relationship between programme success and winter
preparedness planning.

Links to HWB Strategy : Health protection is a core foundation programme of the
strategy. Seasonal flu immunisation is a national targeted
immunisation programme. It makes an important
contribution to the health of older and vulnerable groups
including those with long term conditions and those living in
residential care.

Policy Implications : It is a national programme commissioned by NHS England.

The Local Authority has an oversight role in assuring the
delivery of a high quality effective flu immunisation
programme and in doing so will have due regard to
principles 3 and 5 of the NHS constitution:

Principle 3: The NHS aspires to the highest standards of
excellence and professionalism

Principle 5: The NHS works across organisational
boundaries and in partnership with other organisations in
the interest of patients, local communities and the wider

population.
Financial Implications: The business case for flu vaccinations is fully supported and
(Authorised by the Section 151  while there is no impact on the local authority or on the
Officer) integrated commissioning fund, the cost of immunisation

does impact on delegated primary care budgets which are
jointly managed between the Clinical Commissioning Group
and NHS England, although the cost of this is insignificant
when compared to the potential cost of flu, both in primary
care and for hospital admissions.

Page 83



Legal Implications: (Authorised Local authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to the

by the Borough Solicitor)

Risk Management :

Access to Information :

NHS Constitution (patients charter) when exercising their
public health functions under the NHS Act 2006:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-
constitution-for-england

In particular, this means that when making a decision
relating to public health functions, a local authority must
properly consider the Constitution and how it can be
applied, in so far as it is relevant to the issue in question.
The report author confirms compliance with the NHS
constitution in undertaking this programme.

National programme commissioned by NHS England.

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Dr Anna Moloney by:

3 Telephone:0161 342 2189

Bt~ e-mail anna.moloney@tameside.gov.uk

Page 84


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-constitution-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-constitution-for-england
mailto:anna.moloney@tameside.gov.uk

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

OUTLINE

In April 2013 responsibility for commissioning of immunisation programmes transferred to
National Health Service England (NHSE). The Greater Manchester National Health Service
England (GMNHSE) Area Team has planned and initiated arrangements for this year’s
Seasonal Flu Immunisation Programme in response to national guidance with the aim of
maximising uptake in the targeted populations. Flu is one of the factors that is considered as
part of NHS winter preparedness plans.

PARTNERS’ ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The successful implementation of the national flu plan is dependent on a range of
organisations fulfilling their roles. These responsibilities are summarised below:

Department of Health - Flu policy decisions and oversight of the supply of antiviral vaccines.
Hold NHS England and Public Health England to account.

Public Health England - Planning and implementation of the national approach. Surveillance
of flu activity and vaccine uptake. Oversight of vaccine supply. Advise NHS England on the
commissioning of the flu vaccination programme. Support Directors of Public Health with
surveillance data and expert input.  Within the Greater Manchester Area Team the Greater
Manchester Screening and Immunisation Team have a key role in leadership and co-
ordination of the flu plan. Each borough has a named link officer from this team that
supports local implementation. The Screening and Immunisation Co-ordinator is a member
of the Tameside Health Protection Group, which has a role in coordinating the borough level
multi agency flu plan.

NHS England - Commissioning the flu vaccination programme. Assuring that the NHS is
prepared for seasonal flu. Working with Directors of Public Health to ensure local population
needs are addressed by providers.

Local Authorities — Directors of Public Health to provide oversight, advocacy to ensure good
access to flu vaccination. Independent scrutiny to the arrangements of NHS England, Public
Health England and employers of front line social care staff and other providers of health and
social care. Provide leadership with partners if required to respond to flu outbreaks.

Clinical Commissioning Groups - Quality assurance and improvement of primary care
services delivering the flu plan. Commissioning of flu immunisation for pregnant women via is
via the Greater Manchester maternity services specification.

GP Practices - Vaccine ordering for eligible practice population. Issuing patient invitations.
Prescribing antiviral medication according to Department of Health policy. Facilitate flu
vaccination of their own staff.

Pharmacists can choose to deliver the national flu vaccination specification where all eligible
at risk adults can choose to receive their vaccination by a participating pharmacist.

NHS and Social Care Employers - Management of flu vaccination for frontline staff.

Within the Greater Manchester Area Team the Greater Manchester Screening and
Immunisation Team have a key role in leadership and co-ordination of the flu plan. Each
borough has a named link officer from this team that supports local implementation. The
Screening and Immunisation Co-ordinator is a member of the Tameside Health Protection
Group, which has a role in coordinating the borough level multi agency flu plan.

Page 85



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

5.1

6.1

6.2

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

National guidance was issued in March 2017 for the 2017/18 flu immunisation programme.
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/600532/annual
flu plan 2017t02018.pdf

Groups eligible for the 2017/18 programme are:

— Those aged 65 year or over ( delivered by GP practices, pharmacists);

— Those aged under 65 in a clinical at risk group ( delivered by GP practices,
pharmacists);

— Pregnant women ( delivered by midwives, GP practices, pharmacists);

— All 2 and 3 year olds ( delivered by GP practice);

— Children in reception class and Year 1, 2 ,3 and 4.( delivered by Intrahealth);

— Frontline health and social care workers ( delivered by employer);

— People living in long stay residential care homes or other long stay facilities (delivered
by GPs);

— Carers ( delivered by GPs, pharmacists).

Flu vaccination of preschool and school aged cohorts is important for their own protection
and also to reduce the risk of transmission in communities.

Compared to the 2016/2017 season the 2017/18 programme now includes reception (4 to 5
year olds), school year 4 (8 to 9 year olds) and morbidly obese people with a BMI of 40 or
more.

RISKS

Flu is one of the factors that the health and social care system considers as part of winter
preparedness. Risks to programme success are mainly related to vaccine effectiveness,
disruption to supply networks or a change in the predicted circulating flu strains. Risk
mitigation plans are prepared by Public Health England, NHS England and the Department
of Health. Local surge and outbreaks plans would need to be activated if there were extra
cases placing pressure on care locally.

MONITORING

Monitoring will involve immunisers recording activity on the national IMMform system from 1
September until early February 2018. In addition the Single Commissioning Function also
monitors this data from October to assess uptake in Tameside and Glossop Practices.
Practices are notified of any flu vaccinations administered by third parties such as local
pharmacists, midwives and Intrahealth, the school programme provider.

COMMUNICATIONS AND PROMOTION

Flu campaign material and training resources can be accessed on;
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/annual-flu-programme

In addition Public Health England’s, collaboration with the NHS England and the Department
of Health on the Stay Well This Winter integrated campaign will involve this year’s seasonal
flu marketing campaign which will run from 9 October to 17 December 2017 in two stages:

Phase 1 — Flu vaccination campaign will run from 9 October to 29 October 2017 aiming to:

Page 86


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/600532/annual_flu_plan_2017to2018.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/600532/annual_flu_plan_2017to2018.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/annual-flu-programme

6.3

6.4

7.1

1) Support reported flu vaccination uptake amongst key target groups (pregnant women,
children, and those with long term health conditions);

2) Improve awareness of the nasal spray among parents of 2—3 year olds;

3) Continue to promote reasons to get the flu vaccine to pregnant women.

Phase 2 — Winter (First Signs) will run from 6 November to 17 December 2017, looking to:
1) Maintain high levels of awareness of the winter campaign among at-risk groups (Adults
aged 65+, LTC and Carers)

National evaluation of the 2016/17 of Stay Well This Winter saw the flu campaign recognition
reaching 79% among pregnant women and 71% among parents. 70% of the audience knew
that nasal spray is the vaccination method for children, while 78% agreed that “flu is a
serious and debilitating iliness”. Flu vaccination levels in pregnant women and Long Term
Conditions have increased, but the correlation between marketing activity and the increase in
uptake remains the subject of further analysis.

Throughout the flu season PH England will publish a weekly flu report detailing levels of
circulating flu strains.

Locally planned communications will need to be coordinated with the Clinical Commissioning
Group Communications Lead Officer. The Primary Care Commissioning Team is seeking a
Practice Flu lead for every General practice in line with national recommendations.

PERFORMANCE

Table 1 shows that overall Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group has
attained a very good position within national Clinical Commissioning Group rankings for adult
flu vaccination. Locally there has been an increase in uptake in clinical at risk groups under
65 and pregnant women. The picture is less favourable for the pre-school cohort and this
picture is seen across the Greater Manchester area. There is considerable practice variation
in performance which is most stark in the pre-school cohort.

Table 1: Comparative National / Greater Manchester ranking and flu vaccination uptake for
2015/16 and 2016/17

Ranking

2015/16 2016/17 Target/Ambition | 2016/17 % uptake
(practice variation)

For those aged 65 or over

National Rank* | 13 18 75% 74.4%

GM Rank 4 4 (85.6%-65.7%)
Clinical at risk groups aged 6 months to 65 yrs

National Rank |5 11 55% 55.8% 13%
GM Rank 3 4 (71.1%-43.3%)
Pregnant Women

National Rank | 6 11 55% 54.4% 12.1%
GM Rank 2 2 (77.3%-38.3%)
2 year olds

National Rank | 61 144 40% -65% 38.5% -
GM Rank 3 6 (91.3%-8%)

3 year olds

National Rank | 61 92 40%-65% 43.7% 11.3%
GM Rank 3 6 (73.1%-10.6%)
4 year olds

National Rank | 82 148 40%-65% 29% [N
GM Rank 6 8 (65.7%-4.3%)

Page 87



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

9.1

¢ National ranking is out of 211 CCGs (practice variation
Tameside Schools Flu Programme Performance (Ambition 40%-65%)

Tameside’s local performance for the school based programme compares favourably to the
GM average and also approaches the national England average, as shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Tameside schools performance 2015/16 and local, Greater Manchester and national
performance for 2016/17

Tameside | Tameside | GM average Eng Average
15/16 16/17 16/17 16/17

Year 1 57.5% 56.6% 51.9% 57.6%

Year 2 54.6% 54.1% 50.2% 55.4%

Year 3 N/A 50% 47.5% 53.3%

Glossop schools uptake is reported with Derbyshire data.

Carers’ uptake.
The uptake for Carers was 51.8% in 2016/17 which represents a welcome 8.3% increase in
uptake from 2015/16.

Frontline HealthCare Workers

The Integrated Care Foundation Trust reported 65.5% which represents a 4% increase but
fell short of the 75% Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) target. NHS
England has published a 2 year CQUIN covering 2017/18 and 2018/19 which includes an
indicator to improve the uptake of flu vaccinations for frontline healthcare staff within
providers. The previous 2016/17 CQUIN target was 75%, however within the revised CQUIN
it is now 70% rising to 75% in the second year.

Locally of the 12 general practices reporting staff uptake data, 73.7% of practice staff
received a flu vaccine.

Performance improvement

An annual flu debrief occurs at the conclusion of the season when Public Health England
performance reports are released to localities. The essence of action for all stakeholders
involved is effective continuous communication to promote awareness of the vaccination
among at risk groups, their carers and frontline health and social care staff. Primary care
colleagues have received information on performance at a practice, neighbourhood and
locality level. A key strategy is to reduce the variation seen among practices and promote
continuous improvement in stakeholder forums. The national change to include children in
reception class within the schools programme has been welcomed and it is anticipated this
will significantly improve uptake in 4 and 5 year olds

GOVERNANCE
The Tameside Health Protection Group oversees the co-ordination of the local seasonal flu
campaign. In addition a local monthly teleconference is held with a wider range of

stakeholders, including Public Health England to update on performance, national and local
communications and agree key actions as the season unfolds.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As set out on the front of the report.

Page 88



Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Agenda Iltem 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

David Berry, Head of Employment and Skills

TAMESIDE HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT

Devolution has presented Greater Manchester with the
opportunity and ability to deliver improved health outcomes by
supporting people to contribute and connect to growth. This
report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with an update
following last year's report outlining the major employment
initiatives in Tameside and the current success, progress and
opportunities to integrate with health services.

The Health and Wellbeing Board are requested to:

1. Note the employment initiatives taking place in Greater
Manchester and Tameside recognising the work that has
taken place to date to integrate work, skills and health
services.

2. Consider the Health and Employment Implementation Plan.

3. Actively promote and support the development and delivery
of the Health and Employment Implementation Plan and
Pilots, Programmes and approaches detailed in the report to
deliver work, skills and health integration in Tameside
developed alongside Greater Manchester Models.

4. Consider how the Health and Wellbeing Board could support
the identification of funding for a scaled up model following
full evaluation of the Healthy Hattersley Pilot.

This report delivers specifically to the working well strand of the
strategy.

This work has implications for the longer term health and work
system economies in reducing demand through improved levels
of health. This work is also designed to provide improved
patient experience and access.

The report provides and update on the employment initiatives
across Greater Manchester and the Tameside locality.

Any associated financial benefits realised within the Healthy
Hattersley Pilot (as explained in section 3.4 of the report) will be
considered within the evaluation of the scheme. The details of
any benefits realised will be included within a business case
which will consider opportunities to potentially scale up the
model to work in combination with the Self Care and Health
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

It is essential that any investment required to scale up the model
is also identified within the business case together with the
source of the associated investment.

Page 89



Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Risk Management:

Access to Information:

The successful integration of work, skills and health services is
essential to achieving the Greater Manchester Growth Strategy
and reform of Health and Social Care. Effective integration will
improve services for residents and reduce public spend on high
demand provision therefore reducing longer term risk of
affordable and quality services.

There are no risks associated with this report.

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected
by contacting — David Berry Head of Employment and Skills
Tameside Council

&3 Telephone:0161 342 2246

% e-mail: david.berry@tameside.gov.uk

Page 90


mailto:david.berry@tameside.gov.uk

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report sets out the progress and success made in the last 12 months to integrate
Health, Employment and Skills in Tameside within the context of a new 12 month
implementation plan. This update is set within the context of work by the Greater
Manchester Combined Authority and Health and Social Care Partnership.

1.2 The Health and Employment implementation plan aims to shape existing and future service
models and commissioning strategies and is set out for the consideration of the Health and
Wellbeing Board at section 3.2 of this report. Our work supports the delivery of the GM
Population Health Plan Live Well objective: To build and test an approach to work and
health that improves the integration and alignment of health, employment and other
services.

1.3 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the progress achieved to date and
consider the plans and opportunities to deliver further integrated work and health services.

2.0 GREATER MANCHESTER LEVEL

21 In the last 12 months a clear programme of work has developed from Greater Manchester
endorsed and driven by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority and Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership.

2.2 This work is set out in the diagram below with the intention of putting a co-ordinated
Greater Manchester offer in place across the entire system:

Working Well System
Customers Mewly Loengertermworkless Complex & enduring
Outcomes | Returnt Reqgain Findand Improve
procuciy Wk wor aan vy
K%yaﬁ:g\;':ry Lcos Lcos op ‘a'aﬂa'aprErou:id&r Special'jw.é I!:l:-n:l'.ficzler
LEP/Chamber JcpP LCOs Integration Board Integration Beard
Others TBC Others TBC Jcp LCO
i ce. Hea cc Hea eyworker Keyworker
i
“e | Mekary
Channels Self-zerve Self-serve F2F F2F F2F
Telephony Telephony Telephony Telephony Telephony
. F2F F2F Self-serve Self-zerve Self-serve
M / \\,_ _/'-I

2.3

Activity is currently focused on two elements of the Working Well System:

e Working Well Work and Health Programme — this is currently out for tender (contract
value £52m) with a start date of February 2018 providing a service to 22,600 Greater
Manchester residents up to 2024. The service will provide 15 months of tailored key
worker support followed by 6 months of in work support. The programme will
compliment and integrate with existing Working Well Pilot and Expansion provision.

Page 91



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.2

Tameside Council’'s Employment and Skills team have been involved in the design,
development and procurement of the programme.

e Working Well Early Help — this is currently in design with GPs and Small Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) to provide a wrap-around service to support employees who seek a
Fit Note from their GP to be positively supported to stay in work with access to
occupational health support. The service is estimated to work with around 11,000 GM
residents with a contract value of £8m. Tameside Council is engaged in the design of
this service and has brokered the engagement of Hyde Neighbourhood GPs to deliver
the initiative in Tameside.

HEALTH AND EMPLOYMENT ACTIVITY IN TAMESIDE

Following the report to the Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2016 the following
activity has taken place to improve service delivery and outcomes for health and
employment.

Establishment of a Health and Employment Strategy Group - The Tameside Health and
Employment Strategy Group has been set up to develop our approach and produce an
implementation plan at its first meeting on the 29 June 2017. The core purpose of the
group is set out below:

e Provide direct strategic leadership and promotion of health and employment at a senior
officer level to support the aims and approach agreed by Health and Wellbeing Board.

e Agree, support and co-ordinate Tameside’s engagement in Greater Manchester
initiatives such as the Greater Manchester Health and Employment Programme and
where appropriate extend work or share learning into Glossop.

e Produce, co-ordinate and support the delivery of a 12 month Tameside implementation
plan directed by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

e Provide a forum to discuss emerging health and employment projects to ensure co-
ordination and develop new officer networks to support integration.

e Identify and remove system blockages to integrating our health and employment
approach.

e Consider opportunities to deliver the wider Public Service Reform agenda through
Place Based Initiatives, workforce development and other work as appropriate.

Membership of the group includes:

e Clare Watson, Director of Commissioning, Tameside and Glossop Single
Commissioning Function (Joint Senior Responsible Officer)

e Damien Bourke, Assistant Executive Director Investment and Development (Joint

Senior Responsible Officer)

Angela Hardman, Director of Population Health

Anna Maloney, Consultant Public Health Medicine

David Berry, Head of Employment and Skills

Chris Easton, Integrated Care Foundation Trust

Jenny Osborne, Strategic Lead, Health and Employment Greater Manchester Health &

Social Care Partnership & Manchester City Council

¢ Viv Robinson, JCP Partnership Manager Tameside and Oldham

e Pennine Care NHS (to be confirmed)

The implementation plan is set out below. This plan sets a SMART approach for delivery
over the next 12 months and will develop as appropriate to external factors and resource
and capacity available. The plan includes our commitment to support the development of a
Greater Manchester Early Help offer and successful implementation of the Work and Health
Programme locally.

Page 92



3.3

3.4

Re [Iltem Lead(s) Sponsor |Outcome Status Deadline
f
1 |[Develop state of readiness David Berry |Director |Understand our |Complete |Jun-17
document for GM Working Well of strengths, areas
Early Help Project - and review the Commisi |forimprovement,
wider Tameside and Glossop and oning assets and
infrastructure capacity
2 |Deliver the Healthy Hattersley David Berry [Damien |Proof of concept |In Aug-18
Pilot and produce end evaluation Bourke |pilot delivered progress
and utilise existing learning integrating health
and work services
3 |Formally engage in the GM David Berry |Angela |Influenced design|In Jun-18
Working Well Early Help Project  |Anna Hardman |of service and progress
design and procurement to Moloney strengthened
deliverin 2018 local
infrastructure to
deliver H&E
4 |Review the Tameside Ask and David Berry |Director |Enhance existing |In Feb-18
Offer Work and Health of delivery of progress
Programme and continually Commisi |Working Well
consider improvements oning provision and
future WHP
5 |Review how we can influence the |Trevor Director |Drive asystemic |In Apr-18
commissioning of future contracts | Tench of approach to progress
to support the integration of lan Commisi |integrating H&E
health and employment and Bromilow |oning
setting in place a timetable and Alison
process to implement our Lewin
ambitions around commissioning.
Review upcoming single
commissioning contracts and
consider how employment and
skills can be integrated into
delivery and outcomes
6 |Influence and engage in the David Berry |Angela |Build integration |In Feb-18
design and implementation of the |Kate Hardman |with employment |progress
System Wide Self Care approach |Benson and skills into the
and Health Integrated Debbie universal model
Neighbourhood Teams to Watson
integrate H&E
7 |Update on progress and gain David Berry |Angela |Achieve system |In Sep-17
system wide support via reportto |Anna Hardman |wide buy-in for  |progress
September Health and Wellbeing |Moloney our plans, remove
Board identified
8 |Develop approach to Tameside Dave Berry |Director |Clearapproachto |In Dec-17
and Glossop health footprint Elaine of how we can progress
where GM or Tameside Richardson |Commisi |utilise our work
employment offers restrict oning across the full
delivery health footprint

The views of the Health and Wellbeing Board are welcome in setting the direction and
focus of our work. The plan is intended to be flexible adapting to opportunities to access
resource and provide both a strategic and operational mix of activity.

Delivery of the Healthy Hattersley Pilot — The Healthy Hattersley Pilot ran from 31
October 2016 to 31 August 2017. The Pilot was funded by the Hattersley Land Board
(£59,999) and aimed to test the value of GP patient referrals into work and skills services.
Adullam Housing delivered the direct Healthy Hattersley Service using a key worker model
to provide personalised support. The Pilot also linked with the Working Well Expansion
increasing capacity and opportunities for patients. A full evaluation of the pilot is being
prepared following the conclusion of the Pilot on the 31 August 2017. Overall the Pilot has
been a success with 5 patients starting employment (above contract target based on
engagements) and GP surgeries effectively referring patients alongside a self-referral

Page 93



3.5

3.6

process connected to the practices. Patients reported positive changes in their
understanding and management of conditions. 98 patients were referred into the pilot with
23 accessing the Healthy Hattersley service and 23 referred onto Working Well. 3 GP
practices (Hattersley Group Practice, Awburn House and Donneybrook) participated in the
Pilot. The key learning from the Pilot is set out below.

¢ GP and Practice Managers found the service to be easy to use with documentation and
the referral process non-bureaucratic. In particular patients fed back positive
experiences of the service.

e 94% of patients rated the service Good or Excellent.

e Patients can be supported into work 5 of 23 (21%) secured employment through the
Healthy Hattersley direct provision, with improvements in patients management and
understanding of their conditions. 20% of the patients referred onto Working Well
provision can also be expected to start work over the course of the 2 years of support
they receive.

e The GP referral route is effective and should be scaled up with the understanding that it
requires quality relationship management with the practice and referrals will not be high
in volume until embedded.

e Establishing a sustainable and quality referral route is dependent on identifying and
supporting individual GPs rather than expecting a consistent, volume flow across all
GPs within a practice.

e The pilot approach enabled us to test and learn alongside and taking advantage of the
Working Well service. Utilising the additional capacity to refer into the Working Well
Expansion was an effective use of resources, however this brought additional
complexities to the referral route and future commissioned work should focus on
streamlining provision.

e GPs welcomed the ability to provide an option for their patients to move into a service
that would support their wider needs (that sit outside a GPs control — GPs sometimes
feel like Citizens Advice) and specifically employability.

e Patients entered the pilot with significant support needs include substance misuse,
confidence, wellbeing, housing and homelessness and low skills.

The next step is to complete a full evaluation, prepare a costed business case and identify
and consider opportunities to scale up the model to work in combination with the Self Care
and Health Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

Agreement to design and implement the GM Working Well Early Help programme
with Hyde Neighbourhood GPs — As a legacy of the Healthy Hattersley Pilot we have
agreed to design and deliver the Greater Manchester Working Well Early Help service with
GPs in the Hyde Neighbourhood area. Dr Gutteridge and Dr Harvey will act as GP leads as
our locality contributes to the design of this £8m Greater Manchester programme. This
programme brings in additional services to Tameside at no cost to our locality. The Greater
Manchester Working Well - Early Help programme will design and test an early intervention
service to people with health conditions, who are at risk of falling out of employment, or are
newly unemployed. Greater Manchester recognises that there is a co-dependent
relationship between health and work: good quality work supports good health, and
economic growth relies on a healthy, productive workforce. To this end the Greater
Manchester Combined Authority and Greater Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership leadership have agreed to develop this joint programme to provide:

e An effective early intervention system available to all Greater Manchester residents in
work who become ill and risk falling out of the labour market, or are newly unemployed
due to health issues.

e Better support for the diverse range of people who are long-term economically inactive
to prepare for, find and keep work.

Page 94



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

e Development to enable Greater Manchester employers to provide ‘good work’, and for
people to stay healthy and productive in work.

The rationale for the service is set out below:

e Currently no effective or systematic early intervention pathway to prevent people with
health conditions falling out of work.

e 98% of Greater Manchester Employers are small or medium sized enterprises or self-
employed, covering over 50% of the working Greater Manchester population. They
have little or no access to occupational health/ Employee Health and Wellbeing support.

e The NHS struggles to respond rapidly to the needs of those in work, and the Fit note
system can be ineffective from both GP and employer perspective.

e Increasing number of people living with long-term conditions and raising of retirement
age.

e National Fit For Work Service not effectively meeting local need — Greater Manchester
can do this better locally.

The proposed objectives are provided below:

e Reduce the number of days lost to sickness absence for those in employment;

Prevent GM residents with health conditions from leaving the labour market;

Support businesses to retain employees and better manage health in the workplace;
Reduce time spent by clinicians on non-clinical work in primary care;

Support newly unemployed people with health conditions to access an enhanced health
support offer to facilitate an early return to work.

The outline timeframes for the programme are:

e Detailed service design; evaluation development Jul-Oct ‘17
e Joint Investment bids and procurement options appraisal Nov “17
e Procurement/funding Jan ‘17
e Mobilisation July-Oct 18
e Service commences to 2021/2 Nov ‘18

Development of employment pathways within the Self Care approach and Health
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams — Employment must be embedded within our local
models to appropriately support residents with health conditions. The Employment and
Skills team are actively engaged in the development of the self-care and social prescribing
offer as part of the Oversight Group for System Wide Self Care. Enabling an effective
pathway into existing (as set out in Appendix 1) or future employment and skills provision
will provide an enhanced offer for patients to manage their conditions. It is important that
employment and skills provision is part of the core social prescribing offer and not a
secondary element. Further work is ongoing to develop our approach and realise our
ambitions.

Integration of core programmes — In the September 2016 report to the Health and
Wellbeing Board a clear approach was set out to integrating core employment programmes
within Tameside (see Appendix 1 and 2). This approach has been successful delivering
improved outcomes for residents with some key examples of our efforts set out below:

e Motiv8 (Building Better Opportunities) is operating well in Tameside and has
successfully developed alongside existing work and skills provision (this has not been
the case across all Greater Manchester areas). Motiv8 is incorporated into the
Tameside Working Well Steering Group to enable effective integration and reduce
duplication.

e Tameside has the best integration in Greater Manchester between the Working Well
Expansion and Skills for Employment contracts. 39% of referrals to Skills for
Employment in Tameside come from Working Well (compared to 10% in Stockport and
16% in Wigan), we also have the best conversation of job starts from the Working Well

Page 95



3.12

3.13

4.0

4.1

4.2

client group 32% (compared to Bolton 3%). These measures of integration reveal that
our approach through the Working Well Steering Group enables us to create the right
environment and conditions to integrate services.

e Tameside has the second highest GM referral rate into Talking Therapies provision
23% (highest Bury 32%, lowest Rochdale 7%). Talking Therapies was commissioned
by Greater Manchester alongside the Working Well Expansion to provide additional
mental health provision (Cognitive Behavioural Therapy) for Working Well clients.

e Working Well continues to perform strongly in Tameside in relation to referrals,
attachment of clients to receive the service and job starts. The vast majority of clients
on Working Well have a physical or mental health barrier to employment:

= Referrals and attachments — Tameside has contributed 1893 (9%) of referrals
and attachments across the Pilot and Expansion;

= Tameside has contributed 157 (9%) of job starts across the Pilot and Expansion,
this puts us on target compared to our cohort size (for comparison purposes
Oldham has contributed 136 job starts).

Preparing for the Work and Health Programme External Local Signposting
Organisation (ELSO) pathway — building on the experience of the GP referral route into
the Working Well Expansion the Work and Health Programme will enable 5% of all referrals
from an area to originate outside of Jobcentre Plus (JCP) — for example this could be a
Registered Social Landlord or NHS services. In Tameside this will equate to around 100
residents. We have proposed that the Hyde Neighbourhood GPs provide the referrals into
the Work and Health Programme building on the legacy of the Healthy Hattersley Pilot and
further strengthening our service infrastructure between health and employment. Although
the figure of 100 residents appears low it should be noted that our experience from the
Healthy Hattersley Pilot is that the GP referral route should not be operated at volume, but
as a quality pathway that is supported by excellent relationship management.

The Tameside External Local Signposting Organisation route will be developed with the
successful provider once selected and Hyde GP practices, we welcome the support of the
Health and Wellbeing Board in supporting our efforts to realise this work. This work will be
developed alongside consideration for a scaled up Healthy Hattersley model across our
locality.

PROGRAMMES/POLICY CHANGES

The Work, Health and Disability Green Paper released in early 2017 has provided impetus
for the development of new approaches in relation to Jobcentre Plus detailed below:

e Community Business Partners — This new Greater Manchester based resource will
enable Jobcentre Plus to engage and support development of community based
provision for claimants with health conditions. The recruitment of the Business Partners
is ongoing, Tameside is working with the lead Business Partner on behalf of Greater
Manchester to support development of their business plan through the Universal
Support Greater Manchester Programme.

e Disability Employment Advisors — The upscaling of Disability Employment Advisors
within Jobcentre Plus across Greater Manchester will support Work Coaches to develop
their knowledge and understanding of supporting clients with health conditions.

e Small Employer Advisors — This new Jobcentre Plus resource will work with Small
Employers across Greater Manchester to develop a disability confident approach.

Full rollout of Universal Credit to all claimants will begin in Tameside in March 2018.
Tameside was a pathfinder for Universal Credit in 2013 testing a limited type and
complexity of claim, the rollout will see the full complexity of claim in Tameside. Based on
insight from other Greater Manchester areas that have already experienced full rollout of
Universal Credit we should expect additional levels of need and support for residents who

Page 96



4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

struggle on their Universal Credit customer journey. Tameside has high levels of claimants
with a health conditions receiving Employment Support Allowance benefit. The issues we
should be aware of and prepare for as a partnership which may impact on claimants health
conditions and employability include:

e Claimants may be impacted by the requirement to claim online if they do not possess
literacy or digital skills or can access appropriate technology.

e Claimants may be impacted by the requirement to wait several weeks for their first
payment and then receive monthly payments thereafter into a bank account.

e Increased sanctioning rates as claimants fail to meet their agreed claimant commitment.

¢ Increased need for access to services to support claimants negatively impacted by the
rollout including but not limited to homelessness, personal budgeting, employability,
benefit advice, literacy and digital skills.

The Health and Wellbeing Board should be aware that we continue to work with Jobcentre
Plus on the issues set out above continually trying to improve our partnership approach to
develop our response including effective management and processing of benefit claims to
providing the best possible wrap-around support for the individual (an example of this is our
including within the Work and Health Programme Tameside Ask and Offer document that
the provider puts in place effective services to support the implementation of Universal
Credit).

GOVERNANCE

The development of Tameside health and employment integration will be strategically and
operationally taken forward in the following governance groups.

Strategic
e Health and Wellbeing Board
e Prosperous Board

Operational

e Health and Employment Strategy Group
e Working Well Steering Group

e System Wide Self Care Oversight Group

A Greater Manchester Health and Employment Programme Board has been developed to
take forward this work which reports into Greater Manchester Combined Authority
structures and ultimately the Health and Social Care Partnership Board (see structure
below).

Page 97



Com binedAuthorimg

Reform Board Wrider Leadership Joint Comm issioning
Team Board
He=ea hth & Ermn el o
ey e = = Frogrammee Board

6.0 NEXT STEPS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 This report updates on our approach and activity to realise our Health and Employment
integration ambitions. The implementation plan sets out our work in the next 12 months.
We would welcome the support of the Health and Wellbeing Board in delivering the key
activity summarised below:

¢ Managing the delivery of the Tameside Health and Employment Implementation Plan
through the Strategy Group including the review of contracts and developing an
integrated approach with Health Integrated Neighbourhood Teams and Self Care model

e Preparing for the delivery of the Working Well Early Help programme with GPs in the
Hyde Neighbourhood for implementation in November 2018.

¢ Implementing the External Local Signposting Organisation referral route for the Working
Well Work and Health Programme with GPs in the Hyde Neighbourhood for
implementation in February 2018.

¢ Implementing the Working Well Work and Health Programme from February 2018

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

71 As set out on the front of the report.

Page 98



66 abed

Key Employment and Skills Provision in Tameside

APPENDIX 1

Employment Description Volume Tameside | Integration with health Commissioner Provider Delivery
Initiative Residents (Tameside) timescale
(GM in brackets)

Working Well | 2 year tailored key | 441 All participants have a health | DWP and GMCA | Ingeus 2014-2019
Pilot worker support for | (4,985) condition (67% physical, 64% | (Salford MBC)

residents on ill health mental - or multiple),

benefit (ESA). integration has been area led

Referred from (GM Health Protocol agreed by

Jobcentre HWBB 2014)
Working Well | 2 year tailored key | 1,452 Majority of participants have | DWP and GMCA | Ingeus 2016-2020
Expansion worker support for | (15,000) health condition, some | (Trafford MBC)
(including GP | residents on various integration is  established
referral route | benefit groups (JSA, within the model (Talking
and Talking | ESA, UC, LPIS) Therapies/GP pilot referral),
Therapies Referred from local areas required to lead on
Service) Jobcentre and whole system integration

selected GPs
Motiv8 - | 3 year tailored key | Estimated 390 High number of participants | Big Lottery and | New Charter 2016-19
Building Better | worker support for | (3,990) likely to have a health | European Social
Opportunities residents who are condition Fund

most excluded from

the job market.

Identified by

Registered Social

Landlords
Work and | Maximum 21 months | EST. 2000 In design — intention to focus | DWP and GMCA Procurement February
Health tailored key worker (22,600) support on residents with ongoing 2018-2024
Programme support for health conditions.

¢ People who have a

disability on a

voluntary basis;
e Early access




00T abed

disadvantaged groups
on a voluntary basis;
and

e Long-term
Unemployed on a
mandatory basis.

Healthy GP Referral pilot to | Upto 145 Pilot to provide evidence base | Tameside MBC on | Adullam 2016-17
Hattersley Pilot | support Hattersley for further integration of GP | behalf of Hattersley

residents with health and work and skill services Land Board

conditions
Skills for | Tailored key worker | 575 to date Majority of Working Well | Skills Funding | The Growth | 2016-2019
Employment skills support | (6,000) Participants have a health | Agency Company

(Working Well condition. (Prime)

Expansion and Pilot Inspire to

participants have Independence

priority access) (Sub

contractor)

Great Work Club provision | 435 Lifeline (substance misuse) | New Charter New Charter Ongoing
Opportunities to support residents project is an integrated partner

into work, education

and training
Troubled Support  programme | 600-1000 The Troubled Families | Department for | Tameside Ongoing
Families for families (some approach is rooted within the | Communities and | Council

members of the family
may be out of work)

Public Service Hub with wrap
around support from health
agencies.

Local Government

(Commissioner
and Provider)
and New
Charter
(Provider)




APPENDIX 2

Extract from Health and Wellbeing Board report September 2016 — Programmes to integrate

these have been successfully integrated in the past 12 months).

Tameside Employment and Skills Programmes Map

Identification and referral ‘ ‘ Programmes and Inter-relationships ‘ ‘

Outcomes

Healthy Hattersley

GP—ICP approved Pilot
|ﬁ

Increased Skills

{Health Services) Local Health

Skills for Services

Public Service Hul
Integrated neigh- Employment Accessed by all

Programmes

bourhood Teams

Jobcentre

Talking Therapies

Fennine Care Mental

q He alth
{Working Well) &2
Recavery College

Health Improve ment

Increased Work Readiness

Move into wark

Increased hoursfearnings

Housing He althy Minds
Specialist MIND
PrOVlderS providers Cavendish Mill
Tameside Hospital
Lifeline Project
Great

> Referral route

aremnnns ++ Claimant movement Opportunities

Complexity medium

Com plexity low

Page 101

Improved management of health

condition




This page is intentionally left blank



Working Well

Mat Ainsworth
Assistant Director - GMCA

Thursday 21st September 2017

M A BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN



Complex barriers to work to address.........

| can’t work
because....

Not had a job for
over 6 years

Chaotic family
life

Appealing my
Work Capability
Assessment

Can’t get to work

Severe mental
and/or physical
health problems

v@T abed

Struggling with
debt

Don’t have right
skills or
gualifications

Don’t have any
self-confidence

I'm too old I'm a carer

......... Keyworkers and integration boards providing
challenge, support and co-ordination

M A BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN




Impact greater than employment.....

WAoo rkimgs Wl

g = =2 2 &8 2B g = 5 2 8 2 &8 = 52 5 &8 8= 58522 85 8B 8 = 85252 858 B 82 = =72 5
40%
34.4% 34.3%
U 30%
Q
«Q
@
I—‘20%
%
S 10%
S
X
0% 0.5%
Mental health Physical health Lack of Access to public Lack of work Bereavement Access to private
qualifications/skills transport to travel to experience transport to travel to
-10% work work
-9.9%
-14.4% -14.1%
-20% -15.6% -16.8% -15.7% -15.6%
= |mproving situation Worsening situation

Net change (% improved - % worsened)

.Improvements in health, skills, work experience and more

M A BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN




Important messaging through the health system

AT o 0/o* -
\k& Around 60%* of @ q(\\ This increases to

people referred by VA o
Jobcentre Plus decide ! - z;v/; ggretnhose who
to take up Working : I~ . :

Well Support.

signposted by their
GP.

Commissioned
talking
therapies to
support those
with a mental
health barrier
to work. Early
signs are
positive.

90T/ abed

M A BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN

* As reported to SQW: February 2017




A whole population approach to work and health

Work & Health
Early He
Programme

Care & Support

Complex and enduring . SMFE’s & Self Employed
health conditions or Support for longer Employees with health Larger Employers
disability. Support for term workless with issues at risk of falling Public Service
employability health conditions or out of labour market Leadership
: . disability to find and Newly unemployed Social Value
1 meaningful activity, sustain work with health issues Effective Employee

lunteering, lIbei )
%/o unteering, wellbeing redaiealos

LOT

Programme in place:
Working Well

B creating a Working Well system

G M CA BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD
BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN

Development needed Development needed Development needed




This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Risk Management:

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Clare Watson, Director Commissioning, Tameside and Glossop
Single Commission

Angela Hardman — Director of Population Health

Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities,
Tameside and Glossop Single Commission

Anna Moloney, Consultant Public Health
MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING

This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with an
update on mental health commissioning highlighting the key
strategic national and regional drivers; and how this has impacts
on local mental health service delivery.

This report covers the following areas:

e Adult mental health;
¢ Children and young people transformation;
¢ Public Mental Health.

The Health and Wellbeing Board are requested to note the
strategic drivers for mental health service development and the
progress that has been made locally in prevention and early
intervention, treatment and recovery delivery models.

This report is relevant across the life course, and supports the
Strategy underpinning principles of: no health without mental
health, focussing on prevention and early help, and working
together to tackle inequalities.

There are no direct policy implications in relation to mandated
functions or services.

The mental health investment standard mandates that we invest
2% more on mental health during 2017/18 that we did in
2016/17. In addition to this there is some money available at
Greater Manchester level to support the 5 year forward view in
mental health.

A financial plan which supports the strategic ambition of this
paper is in the process of being refined and developed.

It is a necessary requirement that funding is spent to achieve
agreed priorities in accordance with an agreed business case
that is fit for purpose, there are systems in place to monitor
compliance and refresh when required, and demonstrate
rational, consistent and up to date approach based on best
practice.

There are no risks associated with this report.

Page 109



Access to Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected
by contacting Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and
Learning Disabilities:
&3 Telephone:0161 342 5500

Gt e-mail: pat.mckelvey@nhs.net

Page 110



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

NATIONAL IMPACT OF MENTAL ILL HEALTH'

Mental illness is the largest single cause of disability and represents 23% of the national
disease burden in the UK. It is the leading cause of sickness absence in the UK, accounting
for 70 million sick days in 2013. However, there is a very significant overall treatment gap in
mental healthcare in England, with about 75% of people with mental illness receiving no
treatment at all.

There is an unacceptably large ‘premature mortality gap’, as people with mental illness die
on average 15-20 years earlier than those without, often from avoidable causes.

The economic cost of a completed suicide for someone of working age in the UK exceeds
£1.6 million.

LOCAL IMPACT OF MENTAL ILL HEALTH

The data set out in Figure 1 below give a brief indication of the level of need and outcomes
associated with mental health in Tameside. Attendances at A&E and admissions for mental

health conditions are higher locally compared to the North West and England averages.

Figure 1: Admissions and attendances for specific mental health conditions

800

700

600 -

500 -

400 -+
Local

300
M North West

200 -

Rate/100,000 population

m England
100 -~

0 -

Admission for mental and Attendances at A&E for a
behavioural disorders due psychiatric disorder
to alcohol condition (2012/13)
(2014/15)

Note: Local data collection: Tameside borough for admissions and Tameside and Glossop
for A&E attendance. Source: Public Health England Crisis Care profile and Community
Mental Health profile.

The following data in figure 2 demonstrates the inequality that exists between people with
mental ill health and the general population. If people with mental ill-health experienced the
same mortality rates as the general population, there would be zero excess deaths.

Page 111



24

3.1

Figure 2: Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental illness, 2013/14.

500

438

450

200 - 384

350 -
300 -
250 -
200 -

Rate / 100,000

150 -
100 +
50 +

0 !

Tameside North West England

Source: HSCIC data in the Public Health Outcome Framework.

In summary, there is a greater need for mental health support in Tameside as described by
the lower levels of self-reported wellbeing and high hospital admissions and attendances.
There is also great inequality experienced by people with mental ill health. In addition,
suicide rates, particularly amongst men, have been rising in recent years but are comparable
to those seen over a longer period of time.

LOCAL SPEND ON MENTAL HEALTH

Spend on mental health comes from local authorities as well as Clinical Commissioning
Groups. Significantly more is spent on mental health across Greater Manchester than the
majority of UK cities. Figures 3 and 4 show the Greater Manchester wide direct costs of
mental health in 2014/15 and the cost of Clinical Commissioning Group funded mental health
services in Greater Manchester, per capita.

In 2014/15, the Greater Manchester total spend was calculated as £615.3 million, with a wide
variance across localities:

e Local authority spend (£97.05m);

Clinical Commissioning Group Learning Disability spend (£38.3m)

e Clinical Commissioning Group Mental Health Specialist Commissioning (£76.5m) (which
includes specialist units);

e Clinical Commissioning Group Mental Health Spend (£403.4m) - Approximately £30.1m
of this is spent on out-of-area inpatient treatment (7.27% total Clinical Commissioning
Group spend) including acute admissions due to capacity shortfalls and longer terms
placements with complex needs

Page 112



Figure 3: GM Wide Direct Costs of Mental Health, 2014/15.

£76.5m

CCG mental health

£37.05m ® CCG leaming disahility

m Local authorities

£38.3m . .
£403.4m Specialised commissioning

Source: GM Mental Health Strategy?

Figure 4: Cost of CCG funded Mental Health services in GM, per capita.

200
180 +
160 +
140 -
120 +
100+
80 A
20
40
20 A

=]

Salford
Manchester (x3)
Tameside
and Glossop
Trafford
Heywood, Middleton
and Rochdale
Wizgan Borough
Oldham
Bury
Stockport
Bolton

Source: GM Mental Health Strategy

3.2 Latest information shows that NHS Tameside & Glossop forecast a spend of £37.8m on
mental health during 2017/18, and Tameside MBC expect to spend just under £4.5m.

4. NATIONAL DRIVERS

41 The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (2016) lays out 58 recommendations to
improve standards of care for people with mental health needs against the following key
themes:-

'Greater Manchester Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy (v 23rd February 2016).

Page 113



Genuine Parity of Esteem between Physical and Mental Health;

Prevention;

Improved Waiting Times & New Commissioning Approaches to Transform Services;
Integration of Physical and Mental Health Care;

High Quality 7-day Services for People in Crisis;

Provision Close to Home for those with Acute Intensive Needs, particularly Young
People;

= Focus on Targeting Inequalities.

4.2 The strategy includes a commitment of an additional £1bn NHS Investment by 2020/21 to
help an extra one million people of all ages.

4.3 The ‘Must Do’ priorities are as follows:
a. Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
e Waiting time targets
e Access — increase access for up to 25% of eligible population
¢ Integrated (Long-term conditions / employment)
e Recovery rate target
b. Severe Mental Health lliness
e Early intervention in psychosis waiting times and NICE treatment compliant
e Serious Mental lliness IAPT
¢ Individual placement and support
¢ Physical health care — smoking / obesity
c. Dementia United
e Diagnosis (rate and waiting times)
e Post-diagnostic support
e Carers
d. Armed Forces
e. Children and Young People (CAMHS)
e Waiting times
Community Eating Disorder services
Crisis care support & acute mental health liaison
Inpatient Care (Tier 4 collaborative)
Early intervention and prevention — iThrive+
Perinatal and Infant Mental Health — Specialist and early help
Transforming Care (learning disabilities)
f.  Crisis care
e A&E Psychiatric liaison — core 24 / RAID
¢ All-age acute care pathway redesign (including Crisis Resolution Home Treatment
and Primary Care MH)
e Crisis care triage / support
e Custody / liaison and diversion
g. Suicide prevention
h. Secure care pathways

5. GREATER MANCHESTER

5.1 The overarching Greater Manchester ambition for Mental Health is described within the
Greater Manchester Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy?, and the governance framework
for development and implementation of Greater Manchester Mental Health strategies is set
out in Appendix 4.

3 Greater Manchester Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy (v 23 February 2016)

Page 114



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Greater Manchester Mental Health Strategy Vision is to:-

e Improve child and adult mental health, narrowing their gap in life expectancy, and
ensuring parity of esteem with physical health is fundamental to unlocking the power
and potential of Greater Manchester communities.

o Shift the focus of care to prevention, early intervention and resilience and delivering a
sustainable mental health system in Greater Manchester requires simplified and
strengthened leadership and accountability across the whole system.

e Enable resilient communities, engaging inclusive employers and working in partnership
with the third sector will transform the mental health and well-being of Greater
Manchester residents.

The strategy articulates four strategic principles for improved mental health and wellbeing:

o Prevention: Place based and person centred life course approach improving outcomes,
population health and health inequalities through initiatives such as health and work.

e Access: Responsive and clear access arrangements connecting people to the support
they need at the right time.

e Integration: Parity of mental health and physical illness through collaborative and
mature cross-sector working across public sector bodies and voluntary organisations.

e Sustainability: Ensure the best spend of the Greater Manchester funding through
improving financial and clinical sustainability by changing contracts, incentives,
integrating and improving IT and investing in new workforce roles.

Further extracts from the strategy such as the plan on a page, financial impact of proposed
interventions, and economic impact of metal ill health can be seen in Appendices 1, 2 and
3.

There is also a Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention strategy* that complements the
vision of the Greater Manchester Mental Health strategy and focuses on preventing suicide
across the life course. It reflects the six priorities set out in the national suicide prevention
strategy. It is led by the Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Executive Committee,
which in turn reports to the Greater Manchester Mental Health Implementation Board.

LOCAL APPROACH TO MENTAL HEALTH

The Locality Plan® sets out the ambition for transforming local services. The Plan
recognises that poor mental health and wellbeing has a significant impact on individuals,
families and communities and that low mental wellbeing is associated with employment
status, poor general health and a higher prevalence of diagnosed medical conditions.

More specifically, mental health is prioritised within the early intervention and prevention
work stream using a life course approach: starting and developing well, living and working
well and ageing and dying well. However, mental health also forms a crucial part of locality
based services and the development of neighbourhood delivery models and
multidisciplinary teams.

The Single Commissioning Board and the Locality Executive Group have agreed the
Integrated Commissioning to Improve Mental Health Outcomes Proposal. This ensures
that all additional investment is aligned to support transformation and meet the Five Year
Forward View targets. The additional investment is as follows:

4 Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Strategy (2016-2021)
5 A Place-Based Approach to Better Prosperity, Health and Wellbeing, Tameside and Glossop Locality Plan,
November 2015, v 10.

Page 115



6.4

6.5

Source Investment Status
Clinical Commissioning Groupd £1,3m Recurrent
Mental Health Investment Standard

uplift

Adult Social Care Transformation TBC Non-recurrent
Care Together £280,000 Non-recurrent
Greater Manchester Mental Health TBC Potentially Recurrent
Transformation - Locality Potentially £66k in 2017/8

developments rising to £415k in 2020/21

Greater Manchester Mental Health n/a Non-recurrent
Transformation — Greater

Manchester developments

Business cases are currently being developed in line with the Integrated Commissioning
Strategy as follows
i. Self-Management Education College
e Effective local model for all health needs is being developed, building on existing
good practice

ii. Neighbourhood Mental Health offer
e Integrated IAPT Plus — establishing a single service to include Healthy Minds and
Voluntary and Community Sector pilot embedded within the Neighbourhoods;
e Neighbourhood MH development - Identify existing resources and develop a model
embedded within the Neighbourhoods with phased investment plan;
¢ Neighbourhood Dementia development including Alzheimer’s Society Pilot.

iii. Mental Health Crisis Care
e Mental Health Crisis Care — identifying existing resources and designing a new
model of mental health crisis support;
e Greater Manchester Core 24 Mental Health Liaison Transformation development -
connect with Greater Manchester developments re Healthier Together sites.

iv. Recovery Peer Support
o Identify existing resources and models of good practice to propose local model
taking account Social Prescribing / ABCD developments.

v. Autism Support
e  Expansion of autism support — integrated model.

vi. Secondary Care Mental Helath Services

Early Intervention in Psychosis expansion of capacity;

Approved Mental Health Practitioner expansion;

Pennine Care Foundation Trust Mental Health Strategy;

Pressures in Acute Mental Health Services;

Secondary care Mental Health new models of care;

Perinatal and Infant Mental Health — revise integrated care pathway in line with
Greater Manchester Specialist Community Perinatal and Infant Mental Health team.

The local approach has also been aligned to the life course and complements the priorities
and actions of the various Greater Manchester strategies. Nevertheless, the majority of the
system wide resource available is applied to the ‘treatment and recovery’ portion of the
model, which is mostly provided by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust. Their 2016-2021
Strategic Plan, shared in December 2016, is working towards the delivery of whole person,
place-based care so that all of their patients, carers and families to receive care that meets
all of their mental, physical and social needs. The Plan’s standard operating model includes

Page 116



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

services offers across Community resilience, Primary care, Intermediate care and Urgent
and acute care.

LOCAL APPROACH - CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

The substantial Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing
Transformation Programme supported with funding from NHS England has previously been
described to Board. As part of this programme the public health offer includes counselling
services to young people aged 10 to 25 years old living in Tameside. The service provides a
flexible service in partnership with a wide range of partners, including; Public Service HUB,
GPs, Schools, Healthy Young Minds (CAMHS), The Phoenix Team, The Probation Service
and the wider voluntary sector. The offer to young people itself includes non-appointment
drop in sessions and series of 1-2-1 counselling sessions. More recently their offer has
expanded to include online messaging board, online (skype) counselling and downloadable
affirmations.

The Emotional Health and Wellbeing Resilience Programme is a universal offer to all
secondary and primary (including special) schools and includes a package of interventions:

e Mental health and emotional wellbeing assemblies appropriately targeted at transition
year pupils in order to provide a universal approach for relevant information and support
through signposting.

¢ Resilience workshops for pupils, either targeted groups of young people with emerging
emotional issues or whole year groups to encourage positive coping strategies and
educate on good emotional wellbeing, positive self-esteem & self-confidence and
challenging negative coping mechanisms.

e Staff training sessions to educate on how to support young people with maintaining
emotional wellbeing and resilience. This will enable staff to become assets within the
school setting and to drive sustainable prevention and early intervention.

e Parent training sessions to educate on how to support their child’s emotional wellbeing
outside of school setting in order to provide young people with a whole community
support approach to their emotional wellbeing. This will not only enable assets within the
family setting buy the community setting too.

Emotional Health and Wellbeing Consultancy Programme (15 school pilot). This
intervention builds and sustains the previous programme as well as enhancing the emotional
health and wellbeing assets of a school and encouraging schools to take ownership of their
whole school community. The proposed outcomes are:

e Staff, parents and pupils within selected schools will have improved understanding,
knowledge and skills to feel enabled to sustain positive mental health and emotional
wellbeing throughout the whole school community.

o Staff will feel confident they can maintain a model of positive emotional wellbeing and
mental health within their school for the benefit of staff, parents and pupils but engaging
in an asset-based learning model where staff will be encouraged to build on their
strengths and develop their current good practice. This will be developed through skills
training provided by TOG Mind.

The Teens and Toddlers Programme targets young people (aged 14-15) who are identified
as ‘at risk’ of becoming NEET (not in employment, training or education) and to deliver a
programme across several weeks designed to help support these vulnerable young people.
Teens and Toddlers aims to raise the young people’s aspirations, self-esteem, resilience and
sense of responsibility, so they can make informed positive decisions about their education,
their health and their future. As the programme involves pairing up a young person with a
small child, it also benefits the smaller child as the young person supports the learning of the

Page 117



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

younger child with specific skills in order to improve their cognitive and emotional
development, resulting in the smaller child’s readiness for school.

LOCAL APPROACH - ADULTS

The focus amongst adults has been the promotion of resilience and positive mental
wellbeing, i.e. mental health promotion.

In association with local partners, several key national campaigns have been promoted
annually, such as “Time to Change™. This national campaign is a growing movement of
people aiming to change how we all think and act about mental health problems. It is led by
Mind and Rethink Mental lliness, and is funded by the Department of Health, Comic Relief
and the Big Lottery Fund. There is a range of resources available to promote the issue; and
the accumulation of activities focus on the annual February ‘Time to Talk Day’, which aims to
get people talking openly about mental health and their mental health experiences. In
February 2016, Tameside MBC committed to sign the employer pledge, which is a
commitment to change how we think and act about mental health within the workplace and
has an action plan aiming at improving people’s experience.

The national ‘5 ways to Wellbeing’” (Connect, Be Active, Take notice, Keep Learning, Give)
promotion continues to be used to underpin many of our and our partners’ interventions.

Community resilience. Tameside & Glossop Mind has been commissioned to continue their
previous project that aimed to promote and enable community resilience in relation to mental
wellbeing. The programme has been refreshed and the main objectives are to build
resilience and promote self-care; to ensure people have information about how to help
themselves and where to go for the right help when they need it, rather than immediately
accessing more complex emotional wellbeing support services.

LOCAL APPROACH - OLDER PEOPLE

Dementia has not been included in this portion of the report. It is often associated with
discussions about mental health, however, it is more appropriate to be included in
discussions about ageing well in general.

Loneliness and social isolation are therefore the most widely recognised significant and
entrenched mental health issues facing our ageing society. Around 10 per cent of people
over 65 experience chronic loneliness at any given time. We also know that lonely
individuals are more prone to depression?; loneliness and low social interaction are predictive
of suicide in older age® and that loneliness puts individuals at greater risk of cognitive
decline’. One study also concluded that lonely people have a 64% increased chance of
developing clinical dementia®'.

The local aim is to enable partners to tackle loneliness and social isolation by enabling
community projects and social activities that support people to remain connected to their
communities, and to develop and maintain connections to friends and family. Commissioned
programmes include:

6 http://www.time-to-change.org.uk/

7 http://neweconomics.org/search/? _sft project=five-ways-to-wellbeing

8 (Cacioppo et al, 2006) (Green et al, 1992)
9 (O’Connell et al, 2004)

10 (James et al, 2011).

1 (Holwerda et al, 2012)

Page 118


http://www.time-to-change.org.uk/
http://neweconomics.org/search/?_sft_project=five-ways-to-wellbeing

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

11.1

i. Manchester Camerata to develop a music and drama model building on the lessons
learnt through Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) work to reduce the sense
of loneliness by allowing older members (and their carers) of the community to take the
lead in shaping their own health care. The model ‘A Tameside Opera Phase 1 and 2’
highlighted the profound impact that music and drama can have on several types of
mental health, and its ability to decrease medication use and decrease the need to
access health services.

i. The Storybox Project is a unique participatory story making project that uses creativity
and imagination to enliven, engage and empower people living with dementia,
alongside the people that support them. The Storybox project delivers the participatory
story making project in a Library setting, and also through bespoke training sessions
with care home staff to enable them to deliver similar sessions.

A local network of partners have signed up to the National Campaign to End Loneliness'?
with the aim of working in collaboration to tackle the huge issues of Social Isolation and
Loneliness. A WOW (What's on Where) Guide in electronic and hard formats has been
developed. The guide provides information about well-established community groups and
support services.

LOCAL APPROACH - SUICIDE

The Tameside Self Harm and Suicide Prevention Group ago is chaired by Tameside MBC’s
Public Health and Greater Manchester Police. The aim is for partners to work together better
to ensure people of all ages in Tameside and their families get the help they need when they
need it and the right support at times of crisis, with the hope of reducing self-harm, suicide
attempts and suicide.

The Group reports to the local ‘Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat’, which is a national
agreement between services and agencies involved in the care and support of people in
crisis. In Tameside, the Crisis Care Concordat provides a framework for agencies to work
together and share information to ensure people suffering a mental health crisis get the right
care when they need it.

The Tameside Self Harm and Suicide Prevention Action Plan is a live document which is
regularly updated. It focuses on six key points that echo the six priority areas that have been
set out in the National Suicide Prevention Strategy and the Greater Manchester Suicide
Prevention Strategy:

Reduce the risk of suicide in high-risk groups;

Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups;

Reduce access to the means of suicide;

Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide;
Communications, Media and Campaigns for Suicide and Self Harm;

Support research, data collection and monitoring.

oL

RECOMMENDATIONS

As set out on the front of the report.

12 hitp://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org

Page 119


http://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/

02T abed

Appendix 1: Greater Manchester Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy (v 23 February 2016): Strategic Plan on a Page.

CHARACTERISTICS TO UNDERPIN VISION

PREVENTION Place based and person centred life course approach improving outcomes, population health and health inequalities through initiatives such as health and work.
ACCESS Responsive and clear access arrangements connecting people to the support they need at the right time
INTEGRATION Parity of mental health and physical illness through collaborative and mature cross-sector working across public sector bodies & voluntary organisations

Ensure the best spend of the GM funding through improving financial and clinical sustainability by changing contracts, incentives, integrating and improving IT & investing in
new workforce roles

MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY
PREVENTIOMN ACCESS INTEGRATION SUSTAINABILITY

Integrated place based

SUSTAINABILITY

Single Point of Access and Care Co-

Early Years: Children & Family ordination commissioning & contracting aligned System leadership
Parity of Esteem to place based reform
IAPT Services of Consistent High - ) - -
Quality for GM Vertical & horizontal integration ) )
Improve Mental Wellbeing Y across community, primary & acute Working practices
Improving Support for Carers and care
; Parents at Risk
Research Deployed to Inform Best Practice Building Capacity for 5elf care Programme prioritsation

e — | \Nhole person integrated vertical care
Intreduce 24/7 Mental Health and 7 pathway across a horizontal integration

- - Day Community Provision for CYP of care
Suicide Prevention Pooling of mental health budgets

Ensure consistent 24/7 Mental Health
and 7 Day Community Provision for

Technology providing new innovative forms A strong partnership with the

of support community and voluntary sector
Early intervention ladults includinE crisis concordat . ty v Provider Landscape Redesign
Cansistent Standards and Protocols based h and devoluti
for Step Up and Step Down Asset-based approach and develution
Leverage Successful Programmes e.g. Targeted public health campaigns estate managed centrally Payment and incentives
Troubled Families Self-sufficiency in GM Provision {out
Supporting vulnerable people of area placements) Integrated monitoring, standards | "
Regulation reform
Eating Disorders for Children and and KPls £

Prepare the Worldforce for Integrated loined Young People

Up System Workplace and employment support | Consistent ADHD services for all age Integrated data sharing New investment streams
groups

priorities &% 6 6 46 66 6 56 56 4

) The Strategic
Identified for -
Years 1 and 2 Initiatives CASE FOR CHANGE  PRIORITY POPULATION GROUPS  STRATEGIC INITIATIVES




T¢T abed

GM Population
Unemployed with Mental
health conditions

Children with conduct
disorder

Alcohol misuse

Substance misuse

Mental Health bed based-

inpatients

Suicides

Homelessness

Soure: (1] E-MC.': Mat.'..lnmnm-.'.riun:lnu Welk Bunnﬂrﬂ'ﬂlﬂl‘a term ESA dalmants imio sustained amployment

144,000 Individuals on Employment Support
Analysis/Incapacity benefit across GM. Up to B0% of
benefits claimants have a mental

health condition.®

5.8% of children (~2200 in each GM year group cohort)
estimated to have conduct disorders. ?

504,263 Alcohol-related hospital admissions and
attendances across GM (2013) (1,155 deaths directly
attributable to alcohol).

2,994 Estimated OCU (Opiate or Crack) Users not in
treatment in GM in 2014/15. *

B&% of Troubled Families with mental health issues also
have issues with substance misuse

44% of total CCG MH spend on bed-based inpatients. =

On average, 10,495 cocupied bed days for MH inpatients in

GM per 100, 000 population
[ higher than the 7,199 national average).

277 suicides registered in Greater Manchester (2014).%

25-35% of all those accessing homelessness services
present with mental health as their main need.

£1.05 bn
Based on £9,091 fiscal cost per claimant per year.

£330m public sector costs

Based on £150,000 over the lifetime of each child [including NHS, social services,
education and criminal justice).

£167m 3

{hospital admissions, & & E attendances).

£1.2bn in wider costs due to lost productivity, crime, health and social care costs

£78m cost of crime (this is a conservative estimate and does not include other drugs
such as Amphetamines, Cannabis, prescription drugs and legal highs) *
Baszed on cost of crime for those not in treatment of £2924 per person.

£176m CCG spend on bed based-inpatients. 5
{£21m uncategorised by CCGs).

£2.9m in direct costs to the MH3S and policing

£442.7m wider costs due to lest waged and non-waged owutput, as well as intangible
human costs .

Based on total cost per suicide of £1.6m ®

£2.8m cost to Local Authorities
Based on total GM spend on homelessness of £9.45m per year”

e — - =

21 a AW R ICE. . LEfguidancefigs ocumentsgsSS-and socka -behaviour-and-conduct-dl sorders-n-C Mer-and- :.'DJ"I]WPE""IJ pi r-commissioning 2
2 i] . B i kiguid: 5 556! lgsss behah d 1 -in-child SUppori-io

3

memﬂ.
4] a)TTEM § - Subsbance Misuse In Greater Manchesisr, GMCA; bB) LA A 2 Fy

] a)CCGE programme budget returmes; b)) Mental Health Benchmarking JI:I 1.E‘bo1 3 ws 20138014 wd,
[E] a)ONE, Buicides in England and Wales by local authortty, 201E; b) Scoifish Exeouive, Evaluation of Choose Life, 2005
7] Local author®y outham retoms 2014ME

Appendix 2: Economic case — wider cost of MH across GM; Source: Greater Manchester Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

24



2¢T abed

Appendix 3: GM Mental Health & Wellbeing Strategy: Investment Case and the Potential Benefits

Scheme

Early years

Education: School based social and emotional learning
Troubled families

Alcohol Misuse: Screening and brief early intervention
Suicide Prevention: Suicide awareness training and intervention
Working well

Workplace screening for depression and anxiety

Promoting wellbeing in the workplace

Housing step down support facility

RAID - Psychiatric Liaison

Intermediate Care for patients with delirium

Crisis prevention through IAPT

Assertive Outreach for individuals with complex dependency

Total of above schemes

Tthe financial or ‘fiscal' impacts to govermment agencies

2the overall public value created hy a project including economic benefits to individuals and sociefy; and wider social welfarefwellbeing benefits

Cost
£15.1m
£5.8m
£22.8m
£1.5m
£0.4m
£3.0m
£1.2m
£0.04m
£0.5m
£1.5m
£9.6m
£6.9m
£1.0m

£69.3m

Fiscal Benefits!
£15.8m
£44.4m
£33.4m

£5.9m
£0.3m
£5.1m
£0.7m
£0.0m
£5.2m
£2.4m
£12.7m
fll.6m
£1.5m

£139.0m

Additional
Public Value Benefits?

£28.1m
Unknown
£75.2m
Unknown
£48.0m
£13.0m
£2.2m
£0.5m
Unknown
£0.2m
Unknown
Unknown
£1.4m

£168.4m

25



Appendix 4: Governance framework for implementation of the GM Mental Health Strategy for Greater Manchester.

GM Health & Social Care
Strategic Partnership Board

Provider Federation Board

Proposed GM MH Strategy
Programme Implementation

- Joint C issioni
MH Programme Delivery Board oint Lommissioning
Board

Association of GM CCGs

Dementia United

Board CYP MH Board Adult MH Board Population Health Board

e2T obed

GM Health & Social Care MH Programme Locality Improvement Collaborative / Networks and Clinical Senates

Enabling programmes: estates,
IM&T, Workforce

Patient, Carers and Public Networks



Page 124



Agenda Item 10a

Report to: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Date: 21 September 2017

Executive Member / Reporting Ben Gilchrist, Deputy Chief Executive, Action Together
Officer:

Subject: TAMESIDE STATE OF THE VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY
AND SOCIAL ENTERPRISE SECTOR RESEARCH 2017

Report Summary: This report provides the main findings of research aimed at
improving the understanding of the social and economic
impact of the voluntary, community and social enterprise
(VCSE) sector in Tameside. The key objective of the
research was to provide a comprehensive overview of the
sector in Tameside at the start of 2017.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board
take note of the research findings and:

1. Share these materials with other leaders and
professionals to raise awareness about the voluntary,
community and social enterprise sector. Action Together
can support further presentations.

2. Provide sustained and coordinated leadership to ensure
continued support for, and partnership with, Tameside’s
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector.

3. Recognise and celebrate this evidence of Tameside’s
active and vibrant communities and strong base for
community action. For example 46 per cent of the
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector work
to improve health and wellbeing (including mental
health) and 33 per cent provide practical community
development help to build and strengthen communities
and reduce isolation.

4. Consider how to invest both short and long term in the
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector’s
sustainability given the significant and increasing
number of groups and organisations using their reserves
to ensure that services run, that people are supported
and that change happens in communities.

Links to Health and Wellbeing This work has cross cutting relevance to the Health and
Strategy: Wellbeing strategy but in particular the focus on asset
based community development, voluntary, community and
social enterprise sector involvement and support for person-
and community-centred approaches.
Policy Implications: This evidence should contribute to the development of:
- The Health and Wellbeing Strategy;
- Health and Wellbeing Board priorities;
- Commissioning strategies and plans;

- Care Together implementation.

Page 125



Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Risk Management :

Access to Information :

There are no direct financial implications arising from the
report at this stage.

Any decisions relating to the future level of investment
within the Tameside locality voluntary, community and
social enterprise sector will be subject to the associated
governance arrangements in place within the locality partner
organisations.

N/A

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Ben Gilchrist, by

3 Telephone: 0161 339 2345

% e-mail: ben.qilchrist@actiontogether.org.uk

Page 126


mailto:ben.gilchrist@actiontogether.org.uk

1 0 G I\/I '*’ acpc?gnether

Tameside State of the
Voluntary, Community and
Social Enterprise Sector 2017

A report on social and
economic impact

Centre f(ir
Regional Economi
and Social Researgf‘ge 127

Sheffield
Hallam
University




Tameside State of the Voluntary,
Community and Social Enterprise
Sector 2017

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research

Sheffield Hallam University

Chris Damm
loannis Prinos
Elizabeth Sanderson

DOI: 10.7190/cresr.2017.6488868973
June 2017

Page 128



Acknowledgements

This research has been commissioned by Action Together as part of 10GM' with GMCVO and
undertaken by the Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research (CRESR) at Sheffield
Hallam University. This Tameside report forms part of a wider collection of reports: there is a
Greater Manchester wide report and a report for each of the other local authority areas
participating in the study?. The full collection of reports can be downloaded from the CRESR
website (http://www.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/reports) and the websites of the project partners.

In completing the report we are particularly grateful to members of the Research Steering Group?
and the Action Together in Oldham and Tameside team for their support in developing and
administering the survey and for their input into earlier drafts of the report. We are also grateful to
the many employees and volunteers from across the voluntary, community and social enterprise
sector who took the time to complete a questionnaire or participate in a focus group.

Contact information

For CRESR: For Action Together:
Name: Elizabeth Sanderson Name: Liz Windsor-Welsh
Research Fellow Chief Executive
Address:  Unit 10 Science Park Address:  95-97 Penny Meadow
City Campus Ashton-under-Lyne
Howard Street OL6 6EP
Sheffield
S11WB
Tel: 0114 2254814 Tel: 0161 339 2345
Email: e.sanderson@shu.ac.uk Email: lizww@actiontogether.org.uk

1 10GM is a joint venture by the Greater Manchester Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Organisations (Action Together in
Oldham and Tameside, Bolton CVS, CVS Rochdale, Macc, Salford CVS, VCAT, Wigan & Leigh CVS)

2 The other areas are: Bolton, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Stockport, Salford and Wigan.

3 The following organisations were represented on the Research Steering Group: CRESR, Salford CVS (lead partner),
Greater Manchester Centre for Voluntary Organisation (GMCVO), Bolton CVS, Macc, Action Together in Oldham and
Tameside and CVS Rochdale.

Page 129


http://www.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/reports
mailto:e.sanderson@shu.ac.uk
mailto:lizww@actiontogether.org.uk

Definitions

This report is about the 'state of the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector in
Tameside'. At various times the voluntary sector has been known as the 'voluntary and community
sector' or the 'third sector' whilst the current Government talks a lot about 'civil society'. In this
report, when we talk about the voluntary sector in Tameside, we mean voluntary organisations,
community groups, the community work of faith groups, and those social enterprises where
there is a wider accountability to the public via a board of trustees or a membership and all profits
will be reinvested in their social purpose.

Page 130



Foreword

Action Together strives to build dynamic and strong communities in Tameside. We are in a time of
immense political, system and structural change with increasing inequalities and levels of poverty.
From this it is clear that the need for our work and that of the voluntary, community and social
enterprise (VCSE) sector is as critical as ever. That's why we commissioned this independent
research with Sheffield Hallam to gather insight into how VCSE activity in Tameside is changing
and what that means for the support we need to provide and the external factors that will affect the
sector’s sustainability.

At Action Together we believe local people have the power to improve lives and communities
particularly through collective action. It's evident from this research that Tameside has active and
vibrant communities and a strong base for community action with 1,167 VCSE groups. These
provide 1.5 million interventions of support to local people every year and an established culture of
volunteering with 34,000 people giving their time to benefit others.

As a team, we are frequently inspired by the real-life stories that underpin the statistics in this
report and the difference each and every ‘intervention’ makes. What is sometimes easier to miss
is the direct correlation between the work that the VCSE sector does and the key strategic
priorities for Tameside. 46 per cent work to improve health and wellbeing (including mental health)
and 33 per cent provide practical community development help to build and strengthen
communities and reduce isolation.

Of significant concern and a call to action for Action Together is the fact that sustainability for many
groups and organisations continues to be a major challenge. More groups and organisations are
using their reserves to ensure that services run, that people are supported and that change
happens in communities.

Tameside has a long history of partnership working, so it's good to see that this report highlights
the strength of these local partnerships. Action Together makes connections and brokers new
relationships right across the breadth of public services and in recent years has developed new
initiatives such as Tameside4Good that provides grant funding but also fosters new relationships
with local businesses. So, it's particularly pleasing to see an 11 per cent increase (since 2013) in
community groups reporting that local business has a positive impact on their organisations
success.

Finally, we’'d like to say a big thank you to everyone that completed the survey and all those
involved in supporting us and the VCSE sector in Tameside. We hope you enjoy reading this
report and get in touch to see what more we can do by working together.

Best wishes

o ls B O A —

Liz Windsor Welsh Ben Gilchrist

Action Together, Chief Executive Action Together, Deputy Chief Executive

Page 131



Contents

EXECULIVE SUMMANY ...coiiiiiiiiiiiisi i nn s e e e e ann e e e e e n s annnns i
1. INrOAUCTION ... ————— 1
2. Context for the ReSEarCh ... 2
3. What the Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise Sector in Tameside does............. 4
4. Who the Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise Sector in Tameside works with..11
5. Finances and INCOME ... 18
6. Paid EMPIOYEES ......ooiiiiiiiiiii i s 28
AR o 11 4 (=Y ] 31
8. Partnership Working: the Public Sector........... s 35
9. Partnership Working: the Private Sector...........cccovmmiiiniinn e 43
10. Partnership Working: Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise Organisations........ 46
R I T30 ¥ T 49
7 0o T4 T 11T T o 53
N o 1= 3 e [ Qe 56

Page 132



Executive Summary

This report provides the main findings of research aimed at improving the understanding of the
social and economic impact of the voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector in
Tameside. The key objective of the research was to provide a comprehensive overview of the
sector in Tameside at the start of 2017.

In this summary we answer eleven key questions about the sector and its role across Tameside.

Q1. How many organisations are there?

There are an estimated 1,167 organisations working in the VCSE sector in Tameside and the
vast majority of organisations are micro or small (93 per cent with income less than £100,000):

68% ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER:
MICRO- 77%
792 SMALL - 12%
MEDIUM- 8%
1 ,1 67 LARGE - 2%
25%
Total number of
organisations in the 7%
VCSE sector in 0 1%
Tameside e 7
Micro Small Medium Large

Under 10k £10k-£100k £100k-£1m More than £1m

Q2. Who benefits from their work?

The client groups served by the largest proportions of organisations can be broadly characterised
as being demographic. Almost two-fifths of organisations surveyed identified 'everyone' as their
main clients, users or beneficiaries.

28%
38% ? o . 16%
I‘&\ Everyone i‘rn Children and ’mm Older people

young adults

®
15% 14%
Women Men

9%

9% 7%

Families and lone
parents

People with mental

health problems Disabled people

MAIN CLIENT GROUPS IN 2012/13: MAIN CLIENT GROUPS ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER:

WOMEN - 32% EVERYONE - 33%

EVERYONE- 31% CHILDREN & YOUNG ADULTS- 23%
CHILDREN - 30% OLDER PEOPLE - 17%

OLDER PEOPLE - 30% WOMEN - 15%

MEN - 28% MEN - 12%

YOUNG PEOPLE - 25% Page 133

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | i



It is estimated that the VCSE sector in Tameside made:

1.5 million interventions
with clients, users or beneficiaries in the past year

Particular Tameside Across the whole

The VCSE sector works at a neighbourhoods and Tameside Local
communities Authority area

range of different geographical
levels both across and beyond
Tameside. The local authority
area, and specific communities
and neighbourhoods within it, are
the main focus for a majority of
organisations:

Q3. What does the VCSE sector in Tameside do?

The areas with the greatest proportion of organisations working in them are:

24%

> .
46% D\ 34% 33% / Education,
w Health & /.) Sport & ,‘&l\ Community ‘_// training &
wellbeing leisure development research

(including information,
advice and guidance)

MAIN AREAS IN 2012/13:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - 33% SPORT & LEISURE - 32%
HEALTH & WELLBEING - 32% EDUCATION, TRAINING & RESEARCH - 26%

MAIN AREAS ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER:
HEALTH & WELLBEING - 46% EDUCATION, TRAINING & RESEARCH - 26%
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT -39%  SPORT & LEISURE - 25%

Q4. What is the income of the VCSE sector in Tameside?

Total income in 2014/15 is estimated to be £53m, an increase of one per cent compared to
2013/14. % change

£ 55m

2012/13

$

£ 53m

2014/15

Micro and small organisations
account for over nine out of
ten organisations in the VCSE
sector in Tameside but only

one quarter of total income. £ ﬁ
52m

2013/14

Across Greater Manchester micro and small organisations experienced year on year
reductions in total income between 2012/13 and 2014/15.

By contrast medium and large organisati saw a reduction in total income between
2012/13 and 2013/14 but then an incr@klée HeRtben 2013/14 and 2014/15. But income is st

below 2012/13 levels. Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | ii



Q5. Where does the VCSE sector in Tameside receive its funding

from?

81 o/o have at least one source

of non-public sector funds
63% IN 2012/13
84% ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER

560/0 have at least one source

of public sector funds
50% IN 2012/13
68% ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER

INCLUDING:

Fundraising (received by 55 per cent of
respondents)

Grants from charitable trusts and
foundations (38 per cent)

Membership fees and subscriptions (29
per cent)

MAIN SOURCES OF FUNDING IN 2012/13:

FUNDRAISING - 41%

GRANTS FROM CHARITABLE TRUSTS &
FOUNDATIONS - 24%

MEMBERSHIPS FEES & SUBSCRIPTIONS- 24%

INCLUDING:

Grant funding administered by Action
Together on behalf of a public sector
body (received by 22 per cent of
respondents)

Tameside Council (22 per cent)

MAIN SOURCES OF FUNDING IN 2012/13:

TAMESIDE COUNCIL - 35%
FUNDING ADMINISTERED BY TS3C OR
VOLUNTEER CENTRE - 24%

Q6. How sustainable is the VCSE sector in Tameside?

The survey highlights some areas for concern:

e 47 per cent of respondents reported increasing their expenditure but only 35 per cent had
experienced an increase in income

e 25 per cent of respondents reported a decrease in income but only 12 per cent reduced their
expenditure

e 38 per cent reported a reduction in their financial reserves compared to 20 per cent reporting
an increase.

30 per cent of respondents provided an expenditure figure for 2014/15 that was greater than their
income. This means that there were a sizeable humber of organisations that spent more
money than they received in the past 12 months. This was, however, lower than the 2012/13
figure of 36 per cent but greater than across Greater Manchester overall (23 per cent).

Total annual
expenditure

Level of free
reserves

Increased ﬁ a ﬁ

Remained the same

Total annual income

Decreased

Page 135

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | iii



The precarious financial situation of some organisations is further emphasised by the state of their

reserves:

Proportion of Proportion of
organisations with organisations with
reserves less than reserves less than

one month's 25 per cent of

expenditure annual expenditure

Q7. Who works and volunteers in the VCSE sector?

The sector is supported by:

34,000 volunteers & committee/

board members (26,000 volunteers
and 8,000 committee/board members)

who donated

83,400 hours

of their time per week

£75.5 million per annum
= estimated economic contribution
of volunteers

The VCSE sector is also a significant employer. There are an estimated:

1,300 FTE* paid staff

employed in the VCSE sector in Tameside

39.9 million per annum

contributed to the economy by paid employees of Tameside
VCSE sector organisations

4 FTE = Full-time equivalent

Page 136

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | iv



Q8. How good are relationships with public sector bodies?

Survey respondents had dealings with a range of local public sector bodies, the highest responses
being in relation to:

74% nad some dealings with Tameside Council (69% in 2012/13)
48% had some dealings with Greater Manchester Police (44% in 2012/13)

38% had some dealings with Pennine Care (not asked in 2012/13)

...23 per cent of VCSE organisations are satisfied with their ability to

influence Tameside Council, identical to the proportion in 2012/13; but

more respondents (34 per cent) are satisfied with their ability to
influence their most frequent other public sector contact

...27 per cent of VCSE organisations felt Tameside Council is a
positive influence on their success, similar to the proportion in 2012/13
@ (29 per cent) but more respondents (56 per cent) felt their most
frequent other public sector contact was a positive influence on their

Success

Q9. How well does the VCSE sector work with private businesses?

57%o had some dealings with local private businesses (46% in 2012/13)

. 27 per cent of respondents felt that the
private business community in Tameside was a
positive influence on their organisation's
success - this is an increase of 11 percentage
points since 2012/13

Agree private
businesses a
positive influence

o . .
1 /o are members of a private sector-led consortium

Q10. How well does the VCSE sector work together?

0 had a ‘great’ or ‘fair amount’ of contact with other organisations in Tameside
53% had a ‘great or ‘ai ¢ of contact with other VCSE isations in Tameside (31
per cent with VCSE organisations in Greater Manchester)

...satisfied with

o ...satisfied with o ...satisfied with opportunities to
opportunities to opportunities to 0
41 A network with 33 /0 work together to 35 /0 work ::)gether to
other VCSEs deliver services intluence
42% IN 2012/13 40% IN 2012/13  decisions

1 30/0 are members of a formal VCSE consortium

Page 137

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | v



Q11. What are the key issues facing the VCSE sector in the future?

Respondents were asked about the strategies they are actively pursuing or planning to pursue.
Almost half of respondents or more were already doing or planning to do the following:

570/0 increase earned income

480/0 increase individual donations

530/0 work more closely with another voluntary/not-for-profit organisation

Respondents were also asked to consider the factors they anticipated assisting or constraining

their organisation over the next 12 months:

Anticipate assisting the

organisation in next 12 months

TOP FACTORS:

Ability to employ staff with sufficient
skills (47 per cent assisting or greatly
assisting)

Engagement with other VCSE
organisations (43 per cent)

Engagement with public sector bodies
(42 per cent)

Anticipate constraining the

organisation in next 12 months

TOP FACTORS:

Ability to recruit volunteers with
sufficient skills (36 per cent
constraining or seriously constraining)

The local economy (34 per cent)

Page 138

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | vi



Introduction

This report provides the main findings of research aimed at improving the
understanding of the social and economic impact of the voluntary, community and
social enterprise (VCSE) sector in Tameside. The research was commissioned by
Action Together as part of 10GM® with GMCVO and undertaken by the Centre for
Regional Economic and Social Research (CRESR) at Sheffield Hallam University.

The key objective of the research was to provide a comprehensive overview of the
sector in Tameside at the start of 2017.

The research involved a web-based survey of organisations supporting the people
and communities of Tameside and focus groups with VCSE organisations. The
research took place between September 2016 and January 2017.

Appendix 1 provides further detail on the research methodology.

5 10GM is a joint venture by the Greater Manchester Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Organisations including
Salford CVS (lead partner on this research), Action Together in Oldham and Tameside, Bolton CVS, CVS
Rochdale, Macc and Wigan and Leigh CVS.

Page 139

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 1



Context for the Research

This research comes during both a period of slow economic recovery following the
recent long-term economic downturn and a rapidly changing political backdrop as the
UK prepares to exit the European Union and the devolution agenda gains pace.

NCVO report that between 2012/13 and 2013/14 the income and spending of the
voluntary and community sector in the UK increased, the first notable net growth
since the peaks of 2007/08 and 2009/10 respectively.® Total income has increased
by just over £2.4bn to £43.8bn and now exceeds the ‘peak income’ seen in 2007/08
(£43.2bn). NCVO also report that following a decrease in income from government
after 2009/10, income from government increased between 2012/13 and 2013/14 by
around £0.5bn, although this remains below 2009/10 levels. The majority of this
increase was in the largest charities which means the impact might not be felt as
keenly at a local level. Income from individuals has also increased by just over £1bn
between 2012/13 and 2013/14 and is now at its highest ever level.

While these figures provide reasons to be optimistic there is still need for caution.
With the election of the Conservative Government in May 2015, austerity measures
are set to continue for the foreseeable future and VCSE organisations are likely to
feel the impact of these measures. In particular, the Government's commitment to a
continuing programme of welfare reform is likely to result in increasing demand for
some services as benefits are restricted or withdrawn. The total anticipated reduction
by 2020/21, from both pre and post-2015 welfare reforms in Tameside, is predicted
to be £121m per year or equivalent to £860 per working age adult per year.”® These
reforms are likely to continue to put pressure on VCSE organisations both in terms of
their financial health and the need to meet greater levels of need from existing and
new beneficiaries.

Locally, the reductions in public expenditure have been felt acutely in Tameside. As
part of the Coalition Government's plan to reduce the deficit, it reduced funding for
local government in England. Local authorities across Greater Manchester have
experienced, and are continuing to experience, a decline in Government funding.

6 UK Civil Society Almanac (2016) NCVO.

"Beatty and Fothergill (2016) The Uneven Impact of Welfare Reform: The financial losses to places and people.

8 Note: These figures are based on HMRC Budgets and Autumn Statements from between 2010 and 2015. In the
2016 Autumn statement the Pay-to-stay measure was scrapped and so this has been taken account of in the
figures. The estimate of cuts due to the LHA Cap in social housing was increased by a further £160m p.a. which
is not taken account of in the figures. The Universal Credit Taper was also increased by 2p in the pound, an
increase in funding of £570m p.a., which is not included in the figures presented here.

Page 140

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 2



In 2015, Tameside was ranked the 41st most deprived area out of 326 local
authorities, with eight LSOASs® in the worst five per cent nationally for deprivation. 16
of Tameside’'s LSOAs are among the 10 per cent most deprived for education, skills
and training in the country and the borough has 27 LSOAs in the worst 10 per cent
for adult skills.

Unemployment is higher than average in Tameside with 5.8 per cent of the total
population being unemployed between October 2015 and September 2016
compared to 5.1 per cent in the North West and 4.9 per cent nationally.

Against this background this research provides in depth data about the 'state of the
VCSE sector' in Tameside at the start of 2017. The research provides a
comprehensive overview of the sector in Tameside for partners to draw upon and
further strengthen and support the considerable contribution of the sector.

9 A Lower Layer Super Output Area (LSOA) is a geographic area. Lower Layer Super Output Areas are a
geographic hierarchy designed to improve the reporting of small area statistics in England and Wales

Page 141

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 3



What the Voluntary
Community and Social Enterprise
Sector in Tameside does

This chapter develops a picture of the core features of the voluntary, community and
social enterprise (VCSE) sector in Tameside. It focuses on a series of general
questions in which respondents were asked about their group or organisation: what it

is and what it does.

3.1. How many VCSE organisations are there in Tameside?

Estimating the number of organisations represents a major challenge. This is
because a large proportion of organisations are small, local and not formally
constituted as charities, limited companies or other recognised forms which require
registration (e.g. industrial and provident societies). As a result they do not appear on
formal central records such as those held by the Charity Commission or Companies
House so are considered 'below the radar' (BTR). Any estimate of the total number
of organisations in an area therefore requires information on the numbers of

registered and unregistered (i.e. BTR) organisations.

In estimating the total number of organisations in Tameside we drew on information

from the following sources:

e The Register of Charities in England and Wales, which indicated 270 registered

charities with postcodes in Tameside.

e The ratio of charities to non-charities provided in the 'National Survey of
Charities and Social Enterprises' (NSCSE), undertaken by Ipsos MORI for the
Cabinet Office in 2010. This was used to gross the estimate upwards to a total
of 355 registered organisations, to take account of non-charitable social

enterprises.

e Research by NCVO and the University of Southampton'® which found that on
average there are 3.66 BTR organisations per 1,000 population. If this figure is
applied to Tameside', it can be estimated that there are 811 BTR organisations

in the borough. 12

0 Mohan, J et al. (2010). Beyond ‘flat-earth’ maps of the third sector: enhancing our understanding of the

contribution of ‘below-the-radar’ organisations. Northern Rock Foundation Briefing Paper
1 Based on Office for National Statistics 2015 population estimates

2 It is important to note that the BTR figure is an estimate based on an average across 46 local authorities. The
BTR research found significant variability, with some local authorities reaching over seven BTR organisations per

1,000 population, and in one case exceeding ten.

Page 142

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 4



3.2.

Summing the estimated numbers for both registered and BTR organisations
produces an estimated figure of:

1,167 organisations in total operating in the
VCSE sector in Tameside.

This figure is in line with Action Together's estimation of the number of VCSE
organisations in the sector in Tameside, which draws on their database of groups
which is comprised mostly of BTR groups.

This is higher than the estimate produced for the 2013 report (1,068). Whilst this may
reflect a genuine increase in the number of voluntary organisations between the two
surveys this could also in part be due to unavoidable differences in the estimation
methodology.

For the 2013 report, the sampling frame for the NSCSE was used to provide the
estimates for the number of formally registered organisations. Unfortunately this
survey was subsequently cancelled. As such, only the ratio of charities to non-
charities was taken from this data source and combined with the number of charities
from the charity register.

What size are organisations in Tameside?

The size of organisations is traditionally measured using their annual income™s.
When the distribution of organisations across Tameside was explored by size
category based on income for 2014/15, it showed that the majority of
organisations were either micro or small. But the survey was under-
representative of BTR organisations (only 38 per cent of survey respondents were
identified as BTR), so this did not present an accurate picture of the actual
distribution. The figures were therefore adjusted based on the assumption that the
estimated 357 organisations not included in the survey sample were BTR and micro
in size'.

Exploring the distribution by size category based on income for 2014/15 across
Greater Manchester also showed some inconsistency with the distribution found in
2013. Therefore, in order to provide the most robust estimate of the distribution of
organisations in the VCSE sector by size, data from both waves of the survey have
been used to calculate the proportion of organisations estimated to be in each size
category.

The outcome of this process is shown in figure 3.1, which demonstrates that an
estimated 68 per cent of the VCSE sector (792 organisations) are micro in size, 25
per cent are small (290 organisations), seven per cent are medium (78
organisations), and one per cent are large (seven organisations).

Introducing the BTR figure produces a much higher estimate for the number and
proportion of micro organisations and emphasises the finding that a large proportion
of organisations in the VCSE sector in Tameside are very small (93 per cent micro or
small). This is similar, but even more pronounced, to the national picture: NCVO'®
estimate that 83 per cent of the VCSE sector is made up of micro or small
organisations, 14 per cent are medium, and three per cent are large. Results are

13 In exploring organisation size we used the categories developed by NCVO for use in their Aimanac series (see
e.g. Clark, J et al., 2010)

4 The basis for these assumptions is discussed in more detail in the methodological annex

5 UK Civil Society Almanac (2016) NCVO.

Page 143

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 5



3.3.

also consistent with the pattern across Greater Manchester as whole, where 90 per
cent of organisations are micro or small, eight per cent are medium and two per cent
are large.

Figure 3.1: Proportion of Tameside VCSE organisations by size (estimated)

Large 1%

Medium 7%

Small 25%

Micro 68%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 95

What types of organisations operate in the VCSE sector in Tameside?

Respondents to the questionnaire were asked to identify which category from a list of
‘organisation types’ best described their organisation. The results indicate that many
organisations in the VCSE sector are likely to have a local focus. Figure 3.2 shows
that the largest proportion, 20 per cent, identified their organisation as being a
local voluntary organisation. The second most common category was '‘community
or neighbourhood group', with which 19 per cent of organisations identified. Ten per
cent identified as a 'sport, leisure or social club' and nine per cent as 'faith group'.
Nine per cent also identified as local branches of a national organisation, noticeably
lower than the proportion of local VCSEs. No respondents identified as just a
'national organisation'.

This breakdown of organisations by type followed a similar pattern to that in the
2012/13 survey. The four largest categories were the same: community or
neighbourhood group (21 per cent), local voluntary organisation (17 per cent) and
faith group (16 per cent) and sport, leisure or social club (13 per cent).

The analysis across Greater Manchester found a similar picture with local voluntary
organisations (22 per cent) and community or neighbourhood groups (15 per cent)
accounting for 38 per cent of respondents. Only 13 per cent of respondents stated
they were either a national voluntary organisation (two per cent), a branch of a
national voluntary organisation (six per cent) or an affiliated member of a national
voluntary organisation (four per cent).

Page 144

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 6



3.4.

Figure 3.2: Type of organisations’®

Community or neighbourhood 19%
group ?
Local branch of a national o
VCSE i
Community centre or village o
6%
hall
GM city regional VCSE
Social enterprise
Informal interest group
Other type of organisation

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 140

How long have organisations in the VCSE sector been operating?

The questionnaire asked respondents to indicate when their organisation was
formed. Assessment of organisations by the year in which they were formed provides
an indication of how established the VCSE sector was in Tameside.

The responses received build a picture of a VCSE sector that has a fairly well
established core. However, the VCSE sector in Tameside has also seen the
formation of many new organisations since 2001. Figure 3.3 shows that 56 per cent
of organisations responding to the survey had been formed since 2001, including 46
per cent in the past 10 years (i.e. since 2006). Furthermore, an additional 10 per
cent were formed between 1991 and 2000; this means two-thirds (66 per cent) of
organisations were formed in the last 25 years. At the other end of the spectrum
23 per cent of organisations had been formed before 1971, including nine per cent
formed in 1910 or before.

In the 2012/13 survey, 57 per cent of organisations were formed since 1991,
including 38 per cent, which had been formed in the past 10 years. 15 per cent of

6 A range of responses were received under 'other type of organisation'. These included: arts and cultural
organisation, social rehabilitation skills centre, coaching and camera club.

Page 145

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 7



3.5.

organisations in 2012/13 had been formed in 1910 or before, compared with just nine
per cent in the 2016/17 survey.

The pattern for organisations responding to all of the Greater Manchester surveys
was broadly similar. 43 per cent of respondents had been formed in the past 10
years and six per cent of Greater Manchester organisations had been formed before
1911.

Figure 3.3: Year in which organisations were formed

29%
27%
14%
11% 10%

1910 or earlier 1911-1970 1971-1990 1991-2000 2001-2010 2011-2017

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 126

It is important to conclude this section by drawing a significant qualification. Although
the results suggest that it is likely that the VCSE sector in Tameside has experienced
growth in the number of organisations established in the last 20 years or so, it may
not be as dramatic as the figures suggest. By definition, the survey is of
organisations still operating in Tameside in 2016/17, not those which have closed
down or ceased operations. Of the organisations which have survived through to
2016/17, the results suggest that a high proportion were established in the last 20
years. But some of the organisations established before, and since, may have
subsequently closed down. Because we do not know the rate of closure over time we
cannot be certain that the aggregate number of organisations being established or
surviving is increasing.

What does the VCSE sector in Tameside do?

To elicit a picture of what the VCSE sector in Tameside does, the survey asked
respondents to identify up to three main areas in which their organisation operates.
Figure 3.4 presents the top ten main areas selected and confirms the message that
the VCSE sector in Tameside works in a diverse range of thematic service areas.
However, the proportion of responding organisations working in each area varies.
This is most likely dependent on need and funding opportunities.

Figure 3.4 shows:
e 46 per cent of organisations worked in the area of health and well-being,

the most common area; in 2012/13 this area was the second most common
main area (32 per cent)

Page 146

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 8



e 34 per cent also worked in sport and leisure (32 per cent in 2012/13) and 33 per
cent work in community development (33 per cent in 2012/13, the most common
category)

e 24 per cent worked in education, training and research (26 per cent in 2012/13).

Across Greater Manchester as a whole the same four areas of work were reported
as being the most common to work within:

e health and well-being (46 per cent)
e community development (39 per cent)
e sport and leisure (25 per cent)

e education, training and research (26 per cent).

Figure 3.4: Top 10 main areas in which organisations work"’

Health and well-being 46%
Sport and leisure 34%
Community development 33%
Education, training and research
(including information, advice and 24%
guidance)
Arts, heritage and culture 1
Economic well-being 14%
Religious and faith based activity 10%

Environment and sustainability 9%

Accommodation and housing 6%

Other charitable, social or 299
community purpose °

I-h
X

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 140

Respondents who indicated they worked in the area of health and well-being were
asked to specify the specific areas in which they operate. The majority (82 per cent)
stated they worked in health and well-being in general. Around half (49 per cent)

7 A range of responses were received under 'other charitable, social or community purpose'. These included:
food hamper scheme, digital inclusion, family and parent support and not for profit advice.

Page 147

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 9



indicated they worked in mental health. Other common areas were healthy living
(food & lifestyle, sexual health) (28 per cent), support for carers (26 per cent), and
disability or sensory impairment (18 per cent). Responses were similar at the Greater
Manchester level, though the proportion working in the area of dementia is
higher (24 per cent versus 13 per cent in Tameside).

In a similar vein, respondents who identified education, training and research as a
main area of work were asked to specify the areas they worked within this theme. Of
the 32 respondents who answered this question, 23 (72 per cent) worked in
information, advice and guidance, 18 (56 per cent) worked in the area of
employability skills, and 16 (50 per cent) worked in education generally.

Page 148

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 10



Who the Voluntary
Community and Social Enterprise
Sector in Tameside works with

This chapter focuses on who the VCSE sector in Tameside works with and where.

41. Who are the clients, users or beneficiaries of the VCSE sector in
Tameside?

The questionnaire asked respondents to provide the total number of individual clients,
users or beneficiaries that their organisation had supported in the last year, both
overall and within Tameside. Analysis of responses to this question by size and type
of organisation revealed that in many cases organisations had provided the number
of 'interventions' or 'contacts' that they had had with clients, users or beneficiaries.
So, for example, an individual who visited a community centre once a week would
have been counted 52 times within the year. Whilst some organisations will have
provided the number of unique clients, users or beneficiaries, so as not to
overestimate, in our analysis we have assumed the number provided represents the
total number of interventions.

Summing across the 115 organisations that responded gives a total of 188,000
interventions overall (i.e. with individuals both within Tameside and beyond).
Doing the same for the 121 organisations who provided a figure for Tameside
specifically gives a total of 184,000 interventions in Tameside. The responses
received can be extrapolated for the estimated 1,167 organisations thought to be
operating in the VCSE sector in Tameside to provide an estimate of the total number
of interventions by Tameside organisations. Working through the calculation it is
estimated that Tameside organisations had:

1.5 million interventions with clients, users or
beneficiaries in the past year overall

1.3 million interventions with clients, users or
beneficiaries in the past year in Tameside

The 2012/13 study estimated that Tameside organisations made 1.4 million
interventions with clients, users or beneficiaries overall (i.e. with individuals both
within Tameside and beyond).

The questionnaire also asked respondents to identify up to three groups that make
up the main clients, users or beneficiaries of their organisation.

Page 149

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 11



Figure 4.1 shows that, as might be expected, the VCSE sector in Tameside serves a
diverse and wide ranging population. In many cases, client groups are served by
relatively small numbers of organisations: 10 per cent of organisations or fewer
served 17 of the client groups listed.

Figure 4.1 shows that the client groups served by the largest proportions of
organisations can be broadly characterised as being demographic: gender - women
(15 per cent) and men (14 per cent) - and age - older people (16 per cent) and
children and young adults (28 per cent). Over a third (38 per cent) of organisations
identify 'everyone' as their main clients, users or beneficiaries.

General and demographic client groups were also the most common groups
identified in the 2012/13 survey, although the ordering was different. In 2012/13 the
most common client groups were women (32 per cent), children (30 per cent), older
people (30 per cent), men (28 per cent) and young people (25 per cent).

Analysis of responses to the Greater Manchester survey found a broadly similar
pattern with general and demographic client groups also being the most common
beneficiary groups identified:

e everyone: 33 per cent

e children and young adults: 23 per cent

e older people: 17 per cent

e women: 15 per cent

e men: 12 per cent.

Page 150

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 12



Figure 4.1: Top 10 main client groups of Tameside organisations

Everyone

Children and young adults 28%
Older people 16%
Women 15%
Men 14%

Families and lone parents

People with mental health
problems

e | o
°© RN

7%

Disabled people

People with learning
disabilities

Unemployed people

N 2
X X

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 140

Respondents to the survey were asked to identify the ways in which their
organisation makes a difference for its service users/client group(s). This question
demonstrates the key role that the VCSE sector has in fostering strong and
cohesive communities within Tameside and highlights the importance of the
VCSE sector as an essential part of the social fabric of the borough.

As figure 4.2 shows, two-thirds felt they were improving people's mental
wellbeing (66 per cent; 68 per cent across Greater Manchester) and 58 per cent
claimed they were improving people's physical wellbeing (56 per cent across
Greater Manchester). An equal proportion of respondents claimed to be increasing
people's skills, helping people to feel that they belong to their neighbourhood, and
addressing the needs of disadvantaged members of the community (all 53 per cent).

Page 151

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 13



Figure 4.2: Top 10 ways in which organisations make a difference

Improving people’s mental wellbeing

Improving people’s physical wellbeing

Increasing people's skills

Helping people to feel that they belong
to their neighbourhood

Addressing the needs of disadvantaged
members of the community

Encouraging people to be involved in
regular volunteering

Encouraging people to get involved in
activities and events that are happening

Helping people from different
backgrounds to get on well together

Helping people feel that Tameside is a
good place to live

Helping people to feel safe

58%

53%

53%

53%

51%

49%

47%

31%

29%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17

Base: 139

4.2,

What geographical levels does the VCSE sector operate at?

The survey asked respondents to identify the main geographical levels at which they
operate — this ranged from the neighbourhood level, to those operating across
England, the UK or overseas'®. In this question respondents were asked to pick out
up to three main geographic levels, the results of which are presented in figure 4.3.
This shows that the local area is a main focus for a majority of organisations:

e over half (53 per cent) identified particular Tameside neighbourhoods or
communities as a main focus; slightly lower than the proportion of organisations

in the 2012/13 survey (63 per cent)

o afurther 39 per cent identified the whole of the Tameside local authority area as
a main focus of their work; similar to the proportion of organisations in the

2012/13 survey (36 per cent).

A relatively low proportion of organisations cited that a main geographic area at
which they work is either national (seven per cent) or international (five per cent). In

8 This question was asked slightly differently in the latest survey compared to 2012/13. Two additional options
('Across more than one Greater Manchester Local Authority area' and 'Across the whole of Greater Manchester')

were included.

Page 152

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 14



many cases those organisations that work internationally will reflect their main clients,
users and beneficiaries.

The picture for Greater Manchester organisations shows a relatively high proportion
also identified particular neighbourhoods and communities as a main geographic
focus (44 per cent). The percentage of organisations who said they work nationally
and internationally was similar within Tameside and Greater Manchester.

Figure 4.3: Main geographic focus

Particular Tameside Across the whole  Across more than one
neighbourhoods and Tameside Local Greater Manchester
communities Authority area Local Authority area

....

Regionally across
the North West

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 140

Across the whole of
Greater Manchester

Nationally Internationally

Using the responses to this question it is also possible to identify the highest main
geographic area that an organisation carries out its activities (see figure 4.4 below).
The highest geographic area that could be identified was internationally.

This analysis finds that for over two-fifths (43 per cent) their highest main geographic
focus was particular Tameside neighbourhoods or communities; similar to the
proportion in 2012/13 (48 per cent). This is higher than Greater Manchester as a
whole where 34 per cent of organisations indicated their highest main
geographic focus was particular neighbourhoods and communities.

Page 153

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 15



Figure 4.4: Highest geographic focus

Particular Tameside Across the whole  Across more than one
neighbourhoods and Tameside Local Greater Manchester
communities Authority area Local Authority area

Regionally across
the North West

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 140

Across the whole of
Greater Manchester

Nationally Internationally

Respondents who reported that the whole Tameside local authority area or particular
Tameside neighbourhoods or communities were the main geographic focus of their
organisation, were asked to identify in which wards their work focused on. Map 4.1
shows the percentage of all organisations that identified each of Tameside's wards
as a main focus of their work.

35 per cent identified Ashton St Peter's as a main focus of their work. The next two
most common wards were Ashton St. Michael's (28 per cent) and Ashton Hurst (25
per cent).

The four wards which were a main focus for the lowest proportions of Tameside
organisations were:

e Denton West (ten per cent)

e  Stalybridge South (ten per cent)

e Hyde Godley (eight per cent)

e Longdendale (seven per cent).

Page 154

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 16



Map 4.1: Percentage of organisations that identify Tameside's wards as a main
focus of their work

Percentage of

organisations

Less than 10
[ 10t020
B 20t0 30
Il 30 or more

Ashton
Waterloo

Stalybridge South

Longdendale

Denton West
Hyde Godley

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 72

Page 155

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 17



Finances and Income

5.1.

This chapter provides an overview of the finances and income of the VCSE sector in
Tameside. It includes estimates of the overall income received by the sector between
2012/13 and 2014/15, analysis of the different sources of income received (public
sector and non-public sector) and their relative contribution, and an assessment of
the financial sustainability of the VCSE sector.

Where possible this chapter compares results from the latest survey and the 2012/13
study. Revisions to the questionnaire and methodology between these studies,
however, mean that comparisons are not always possible or appropriate and that
caution should be applied when comparing across the two waves (see Appendix 1
for more detail).

Income

Based on the average (mean) income of respondents to the survey across Greater
Manchester, and drawing on the assumptions used to estimate the total number of
organisations in Tameside, the following is estimated -1°

£53 million the total income of the VCSE sector in
Tameside in 2014/15

This total income estimate is higher than the figure of £47 million estimated for the
sector in 2011/12 from the 2012/13 survey. It also represents an increase of one per
cent compared to 2013/14 when the total income of the VCSE sector was an
estimated £52 million. This follows a reduction between 2012/13 and 2013/14 of an
estimated six per cent in the total income of the sector.

This data is outlined in more detail in figure 5.1.

9 This figure is based on a weighted average (mean) for each size category for respondents from across Greater
Manchester. The methodology is explained in more detail in the methodological appendix.

Page 156

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 18



Figure 5.1: Estimated annual income of the VCSE sector in Tameside (2012/13-
2014/15)

% change

£ 55m

2012/13

£ 53m

2014/15

£ 52m

2013/14

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 95 All figures are in 2014/15 prices

This change in income should be viewed in the wider national context discussed in
Chapter two. The picture is somewhat more positive than in the previous 2012/13
study. Between 2012/13 and 2013/14 the income and spending of the VCSE sector
in the UK increased, representing the first notable net growth since the peaks of
2007/08 and 2009/10 respectively. While the data above shows a decrease in
Tameside between these two years, results indicate a more recent upturn in the local
area. However, with austerity measures set to continue for the foreseeable future
and public sector funding for the sector continuing to be squeezed, there is still need
for caution.

When the VCSE sector's income is explored in more detail it shows notable
variations according to organisation size®. In 2014/15, the majority of income was
concentrated in large and medium sized organisations even though the majority of
organisations were micro or small. This is outlined in more detail in figure 5.2.

20 In exploring organisation size we used the categories developed by NCVO for use in their Almanac series (see
e.g. Clark et al., 2010)

Page 157

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 19



Figure 5.2: Proportion of organisations and proportion of income by
organisation size (2014/15)

68% 48%
27%
21%
7% 4HA‘

Micro Small Medium Large Micro Small Medium Large
Percentage of all organisations Percentage of all income

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 95

This shows that micro and small organisations account for over nine out of ten
organisations in the VCSE sector but only a quarter of total income in Tameside.
By contrast medium and large organisations account for just seven per cent of the
VCSE sector's organisations but receive 75 per cent of its income.

Analysis of income data from survey respondents across Greater Manchester?!
identified further variations according to organisation size when we explored how
income levels had changed between 2012/13 and 2014/15. These are summarised
in table 5.1.

Table 5.1: Estimated change in annual income by organisation size (all Greater
Manchester organisations: 2012/13-2014/15)

Micro Small Medium Large
(under £10k) (E10k-£100k) (£100k-£1m) (more than £1m)
| % % % %
ncome Income Income Income
change change change change

2012/13 £32.3m £84.9m £413.9m £829.2m
2013/14 £31.0m -4 £82.4m -3 £382.8m -8 £785.1m -5
2014/15 £30.0m -3 £77.0m -7 £391.5m 2 £822.6m 5

Source: Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 720 All figures are in 2014/15 prices

This shows that across Greater Manchester the micro and small organisation
categories experienced year on year reductions in total income between 2012/13
and 2014/15. For micro organisations this is a continuation of a trend identified in the
2012/13 survey where these organisations experienced a reduction of more than 10
per cent between 2010/11 and 2011/12. In contrast the 2012/13 survey identified a
small increase in income between 2010/11 and 2011/12 for small organisations.

21 |t was not possible to undertake sufficiently robust analysis of these trends at a local authority level

Page 158

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 20



5.2,

5.2.1.

By contrast medium and large organisations saw a reduction in total income between
2012/13 and 2013/14 but then an increase between 2013/14 and 2014/15. For
medium organisations this could indicate the start of a reversal in a trend identified in
both the 2010 and 2012/13 surveys where year-on-year reductions in income were
identified. This income volatility is a significant challenge in the operating context for
medium and large organisations.

Sources of Income
Public sector income

Survey respondents were asked to identify the public sector bodies from which they
received funding in their most recent financial year. Overall, 56 per cent of
respondents reported having at least one source of public sector funds. This is
similar to the 50 per cent who reported having public sector funds in the 2012/13
survey but lower than the figure for Greater Manchester as a whole (68 per
cent).

Grant funding administered by Action Together on behalf of a public sector
body, and funding from Tameside Council, were the joint most common sources
of public sector funding (22 per cent for both). The former was a new category for the
2016/17 survey, but a similar category referring to grant funding administered by
TS3C or Volunteer Centre Tameside was recorded by 24 per cent in 2012/13.
Tameside Council was reported as a funder more frequently in 2012/13 (35 per cent).

The other potential sources of funding were identified much less frequently. The next
most common was Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group, identified
by only three respondents (three per cent).

Respondents were also asked to estimate the proportion of their group or
organisation's total income that each source of public sector income represented.
Figure 5.3 shows the two most common sources of public sector funding received
and the estimated proportion of total income this represents.

This shows that of those receiving funding from Tameside Council, 67 per cent
reported it accounted for less than half their income. For grant funding administered
by Action Together the comparable figure was considerably higher at 88 per cent.

The survey also asked respondents with public sector income whether they had
received a formal funding agreement for each source. Of the two most frequently
identified sources, 92 per cent of funding from Tameside Council and 94 per cent of
grant funding administered by Action Together was made with a formal agreement.

Page 159

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 21



Figure 5.3: Public sector funds received by Tameside respondents (2014/15)

Tameside Council 33% 21% -
I

o At least 10% but At least 20% but At least 50% but At least 75% but o
Less than 10% [ |oss than 20% less than 50% less than 75% less than 100% 100%

Grant funding administered

by Action Together 33% 29%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 24

The survey also revealed notable variations in public sector income received by
organisations of different sizes. Micro organisations were less likely than small or
medium organisations to have at least one source of public sector income (no large
organisations responded to this question). This is outlined in more detail in figure 5.4.

This shows that only 48 per cent of micro organisations that responded to the survey
received public sector funding (the same as in 2012/13) compared to 75 per cent of
small organisations (up from 64 per cent in 2012/13) and 73 per cent of medium
organisations.

Figure 5.4: Proportion of Tameside organisations in receipt of public sector
funds by organisation size (2014/15)

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 91

5.2.2. Other sources of income

Survey respondents were also asked to identify any other sources of income (i.e.
non-public sector) they received in 2014/15. Overall, 81 per cent of respondents
received funds from at least one non-public sector source. This is a noticeable
increase from the figure of 63 per cent in 2012/13. Across Greater Manchester 84
per cent of respondents received non-public sector income.

Fundraising was the most frequently identified source of other funds (55 per cent of
respondents) followed by grants from charitable trusts and foundations (38 per cent)
and membership fees and subscriptions (29 per cent). Fundraising was also the
most common type of other funding received across Greater Manchester as a whole,
(50 per cent), as well as in 2012/13 (41 per cent).

Page 160

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 22



Respondents were also asked to estimate the proportion of their group or
organisation's total income received from each of the non-public sector funding
sources. Figure 5.5 shows the most prominent sources of non-public sector funding
received and the estimated proportion of total income this represents.

Figure 5.5 shows that for a third (33 per cent) of those receiving income from
fundraising, this funding represented less than 10 per cent of their total income. At
the other end of the spectrum, for 22 per cent of organisations this represented at
least 50 per cent of their total income. The figures are similar for the second most
common source, grants from charitable trusts and foundations. 39 per cent relied on
this funding for less than 10 per cent of their income and 21 per cent for 50 or more
per cent.

Figure 5.5: Other funds received by Tameside respondents (2014/15)

e | e S
Grants from :ggr;:)aubr:g ;:::)5;: 39% 16% -I
wensinss oo | R
Business gggzﬁg?:h?; 61% -

Charging for goods and boo,
services '

Grants from National Lottery
distributors (e.g. BIG) 29% Ia 90

Less than 10% At least 10% but At least 20% but At least 50% but At least 75% but . 100%

less than 20% less than 50% less than 75% less than 100%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 14-58

Micro organisations were less likely than small, and medium organisations to have
income from non-public sector sources (77 per cent, up from 61 per cent in 2012/13)
(again there were no responses from large organisations). This is demonstrated by
figure 5.6. A majority (around three-quarters or more) of each size of organisation
had income from non-public sector sources.

Across Greater Manchester the pattern was similar. Three-quarters (75 per cent) of
micro organisations were in receipt of non-public sector funds, lower than the
proportion of small organisations (92 per cent) and medium organisations (95 per
cent).

Page 161

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 23



5.3.

Figure 5.6: Proportion of organisations in receipt of non-public sector funds by
organisation size (2014/15)

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 92

Financial Sustainability

The survey asked respondents about how their organisation's financial situation had
changed in the past 12 months (i.e. during the current financial year). The results are
outlined in figure 5.7.

Figure 5.7: Change in financial circumstances in the last 12 months

Level of free

Total annual
expenditure

Total annual income 40% 35%

12% 41% 47%

. Decreased Remained the same Increased

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 95 (income), 94 (expenditure), 90 (free reserves)
Note: 'cannot say' response has been excluded from the analysis

This raises some concerns: 47 per cent of respondents reported increasing their
expenditure but only 35 per cent had experienced an increase in income and only 20
per cent reported an increase in reserves. In addition, 25 per cent of respondents
reported a decrease in income but only 12 per cent reduced their expenditure.

30 per cent of respondents provided an expenditure figure for 2014/15 that was
greater than their income. This means that there were a notable number of
organisations that spent more money than they received in the past 12 months.
This is slightly down from 36 per cent in 2012/2013, but nevertheless it still appears
that the sustainability of a significant number of organisations could be under threat.

Explored by organisation size, collectively, the data indicates that the sustainability of
medium sized organisations is of particular concern: 45 per cent of medium
organisations reported increasing their income in the past 12 months but 73 per cent

Page 162

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 24



increased their expenditure. For small organisations 35 per cent increased their
income compared to 55 per cent that increased their expenditure. For micro
organisations the figures are 31 per cent for income and 44 per cent for expenditure.
This is outlined in more detail for all sizes of responding organisations in figures 5.8a
and 5.8b below.

Figure 5.8a: Change in income in the last 12 months by organisation size

Small 52% 35%
Micro 40% 31%
. Decreased Remained the same Increased

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 84
Note: 'cannot say' response has been excluded from the analysis

Figure 5.8b: Change in expenditure in the last 12 months by organisation size

Medium 9% 73%
Small 42% 55%

Micro 15% 41% 44%

. Decreased Remained the same Increased

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 83
Note: 'cannot say' response has been excluded from the analysis

Further analysis of the financial reserve levels reported by respondent organisations
provides an additional insight in to the financial health of the VCSE sector. Reserves
are important as they provide organisations with funds to fall back on in the short
term should other sources of funding reduce or be withdrawn. They also provide
organisations with the flexibility to develop new and innovative activity that might not
have attracted external funding from the outset. Organisations with low reserves
relative to expenditure are therefore more likely to be restricted in their ability to
adapt if key external funding is lost. In order to explore this issue in more detail
reserves (2014/15) were calculated as a proportion of expenditure (2014/15) for each
respondent. The results are shown in figure 5.9.

Page 163

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 25



Figure 5.9: Financial vulnerability of organisations in Tameside

Less than 1 month Less than 3 months
expenditure in reserve of expenditure in reserve

00

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 87

This shows that 28 per cent had reserve levels of less than one month's
expenditure, and a further 17 per cent had reserves that covered less than three
month's expenditure. This suggests that over two-fifths of all organisations in
the VCSE sector could be vulnerable should their funds be severely reduced or
withdrawn. In the 2012/13 survey a similar proportion reported less than three
months of reserves (42 per cent), but the number reporting less than one was much
lower (just 13 per cent). The figures for the Greater Manchester as a whole are
similar to those for Tameside.

Survey respondents were also asked how they thought the environment for
funding/income for the VCSE sector will change over the next year. Figure 5.10
shows the responses received to this question. This shows that over half (56 per
cent) of organisations in Tameside thought the environment will deteriorate
compared to just eight per cent who felt the environment is set to improve. One fifth
saw the environment for funding/income staying the same. These results were
similar across Greater Manchester as a whole where 56 per cent thought the
environment will deteriorate and just seven per cent saw the environment improving.

Page 164

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 26



Figure 5.10: Change in the environment for funding/income in the next year

Strongly improve

Improve

Stay the same

Deteriorate

Strongly
deteriorate

Don't know

2%

19%

46%

10%

17%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17

Base: 112

Page 165

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 27



Paid Employees

6.1.

This chapter looks at the paid workforce of the VCSE sector in Tameside.

How many FTE (Full-time equivalent) paid staff are employed in the
VCSE sector in Tameside?

Based on the average number of FTE paid staff employed by organisations
responding to the survey across Greater Manchester, and drawing on the
assumptions used to estimate the total number of organisations in Tameside, it is
estimated that:

1,300 FTE paid staff were employed in the VCSE
sector in Tameside in 2016/17

This represents 2,000 employees.

This was four per cent of the estimated total number of FTE paid staff working within
the VCSE sector in Greater Manchester. This is a higher figure than the 1,200 FTE
paid staff estimated to work in the sector in the 2013 study.

Gross Value Added (GVA), the value of goods and services produced, is a key
measure of the economic contribution of organisations or sectors. It can be
estimated for paid employees working in Tameside organisations by multiplying the
number of FTE paid staff by the estimated gross value added (GVA) per FTE
employee?2. From this calculation it is estimated:

£39.9m contributed to the economy per annum by
paid employees of Tameside VCSE sector organisations

Medium size organisations employed the largest proportion of FTE staff (43 per cent)
in Tameside. Small and micro organisations employed 35 per cent of FTE between
them, and large organisations, of which there are relatively few in Tameside,
accounted for 22 per cent. Staff appear to be generally less concentrated in medium
and large organisations in Tameside compared to other areas in Greater Manchester.
This also contrasts to the 2012/13 study, when 43 per cent of employees came from
large organisations.

22 This study used Greater Manchester GVA per employee averaged across the following two VCSE sectors:
education and human health and social work activities.

Page 166

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 28



6.2.

Figure 6.1 presents a breakdown of responding organisations by the number of FTE
paid staff they employed. Just over nine out of ten (92 per cent) organisations
employed less than five FTE paid staff members. Included in this figure were 76 per
cent of organisations that did not employ any paid staff. Further analysis reveals that
the majority of these were micro organisations with income of less than £10,000. At
the other end of the spectrum two per cent of organisations employed 20 or more
FTE paid members of staff, and two per cent employed 10 to 20. This pattern is
broadly equivalent to that identified in the 2012/13 survey, though the proportion with
between five and ten staff was previously lower (one per cent), and the proportion
with no FTE staff slightly higher (81 per cent).

Compared with the Greater Manchester sample as a whole, a lower proportion of
organisations within Tameside appeared to have FTE paid staff: 24 per cent in
Tameside compared with 49 per cent in Greater Manchester.

Figure 6.1: Organisations by numbers of FTE paid staff

[More than 20: 2%
10 but less than 20: 2%
\

5 but less than 10: 5%

Less than 5: 16%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 119

How has the VCSE sector's workforce changed in the last 12 months?

The survey asked respondents whether the number of staff in their organisation's
workforce had ‘increased’, ‘remained the same’ or ‘decreased’ this year compared to
the previous year. Figure 6.2 presents the results to this question, the key findings of
which are:

Paid employees:

e 73 per cent of organisations employed a similar number of paid employees to a
year ago

e 14 per cent of organisations reported an increase in paid staff, a similar
percentage to the percentage that reported a decrease (13 per cent)

Page 167

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 29



e very similar percentages reported an increase or decrease in paid employees in
2012/13 (13 per cent for both categories)

e across Greater Manchester there was slightly more of a discrepancy; 22 per
cent of organisations reported an increase in their number of paid employees;
while 16 per cent reported a decrease.

Figure 6.2: Change in aspects of the workforce (paid staff) in the last 12
months

Increased
Decreased

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 93

Note: 'cannot say' response has been excluded from the analysis

Page 168

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 30



Volunteers

71.

This chapter looks at the volunteers within the VCSE sector in Tameside.

How many volunteers are part of the VCSE sector workforce in
Tameside and what is their economic contribution?

Based on responses to the survey across Greater Manchester on questions
exploring the numbers of volunteers and committee/board members and the hours
which they contribute, and drawing on the assumptions used to estimate the total
number of organisations in Tameside, it is estimated there are:

34,000 volunteers or committee/board

members in the VCSE sector's workforce in Tameside
in 2016/17»

This includes:

26,000 volunteers in the VCSE sector’s workforce
in Tameside in 2016/17

8,000 committee/board members in the
VCSE sector's workforce in Tameside in 2016/17

This figure for volunteers represents 12 per cent of Tameside's total population
(221,700) and seven per cent of the estimated total for all Greater Manchester
organisations.

It is also estimated that:
83,400 hours of their time provided by these
volunteers and committee/board members per week

This represents eight per cent of the estimated number of volunteer and
committee/board member hours for all Greater Manchester organisations.

23 |t is possible in cases where a person is volunteering for more than one organisation they could have been
counted more than once; additionally, there will be residents from outside of Tameside volunteering within
Tameside; and conversely there will be Tameside residents volunteering for organisations outside of Tameside

Page 169

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 31



The 2012/13 study estimated there were 26,200 volunteers in Tameside who
provided 73,900 hours per week. The previous study did not ask for volunteers and
committee/board members to be recorded separately so caution should be applied
when making comparisons.

There are two broad approaches to valuing the contribution of volunteers. One
method, and this study's preferred approach, is to value the output that they produce.
In effect this is the value to society of the goods and services that volunteers produce.
This can be estimated by multiplying the number of FTE volunteers by the estimated
gross value added (GVA) per FTE employee.?* From this calculation:

£75.5 million per annum estimated as the

economic contribution of volunteers and committee/
board members in Tameside organisations

The use of estimated GVA per FTE employee to measure the value of the output
produced by volunteers assumes that paid employees would not be used in the
absence of volunteers to produce the same level of goods and services. In such a
situation the value of output is the value of the labour input (wages and benefits) plus
the value of the capital input (for example office space and computers). If paid
employees were to be used to produce the same level of goods and services then
the value of capital input would be borne whether or not volunteers were used.
Therefore the value of the output from volunteers would be just the value of the
labour input. This value would be roughly equivalent to the value estimated from the
input method of valuation which is outlined in the next paragraph.

In the second method, the value of the input of volunteers is used to value the
contribution of volunteers?®. This is the amount that it would cost to pay employees to
do the work carried out by volunteers. As such, this can be considered to be the
benefit to organisations?. However, this benefit might also be passed onto society
via lower prices for goods and services due to lower costs of production. The input
value of volunteers can be calculated by multiplying the number of hours that
volunteers give per week by an estimate of how much it would cost to employ
someone to do that work. There are a number of widely accepted hourly rates that
could be used to estimate this value; these include: the national minimum wage or
national living wage, the local median wage, the local mean wage and the
reservation wage. The preference in this study has been to provide a range using the
national living wage (low estimate) and the local median wage (high estimate). In
reality the true value of the input provided by volunteers will lie between the two
estimates. It is estimated that:

e assuming the national living wage for adults?” it would cost £31.2 million
annually to employ staff to do the work provided by volunteers in
Tameside organisations

e assuming the median gross hourly wage for full time employees in Greater
Manchester? it would cost £55.8 million annually to employ staff to do the
work provided by volunteers in Tameside organisations.

24 This study used Greater Manchester GVA per employee averaged across the following two VCSE sectors:
education and human health and social work activities.

25 This is the approach recommended by Volunteering England

26 This assumes that there are no additional costs faced by organisations in using volunteers: for example extra
management costs

271 £7.20 for 25 years and older in 2016

28 £12.86 for 2016

Page 170

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 32



7.2,

Figure 7.1 presents a breakdown of responding organisations by the number of
volunteers that they use. Just two per cent of respondents indicated they had no
volunteers, while 17 per cent had 50 or more. This pattern was largely representative
of the picture for organisations across Greater Manchester as a whole. In the
previous 2012/13 survey a slightly lower proportion of respondents had 50 or more
volunteers (14 per cent), and no respondents had zero volunteers.

Figure 7.1: Organisations by numbers of volunteers

) e o e o
2% 33% 27%
None ?w 1t09 10 to 19
) e o
21% 17%
20 to 49 50 or more

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 132

How has the VCSE sector's workforce changed in the last 12 months?

The survey asked respondents whether the number of volunteers in their
organisation's workforce had ‘increased’, ‘remained the same’ or ‘decreased’ this
year compared to the previous year. Figure 7.2 presents the results to this question,
the key findings of which are:

e 37 per cent of respondents reported increased numbers of volunteers now
compared to a year ago

e in comparison 15 per cent of organisations reported a decrease in volunteer
numbers

e just over two fifths (42 per cent) of Greater Manchester organisations reported
an increase in their number of volunteers over the previous year, compared with
13 per cent who reported a decrease, a reasonably similar picture to Tameside.

The 2012/13 survey found similar results, but with a larger proportion reporting no
change:

e 32 per cent of respondents reported increased volunteer numbers

o three-fifths (61 per cent) reported that volunteer numbers remained the same

e seven per cent reported that numbers of volunteers decreased.

Page 171

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 33



7.3.

Figure 7.2: Change in aspects of the workforce (volunteers) in the last 12

months

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 125
Note: 'cannot say' response has been excluded from the analysis

Decreased

Qualitative responses on volunteering

Focus group participants from registered charities and small VCSE organisations
were asked to discuss changes and challenges associated with volunteering in
recent years. Participants argued that volunteering is essential for what they do and
in general were very positive with regards to volunteering.

"We rely heavily on volunteers. Our output is around 15 hours a week. The vast
majority of our volunteering comes from internal recruiting, from people in the
church. Our faith encourages putting back into the community...There has been a
slight increase in that pot in the last 2 years, although it still remains quite small."”

However, participants did identify one recent development which was affecting
the way they worked with volunteers. This was when volunteers are referred to
the organisation from other voluntary groups or public bodies as part of an
employment programme or as a condition of benefits. Participants argued that
sometimes these potential volunteers got involved in activities without really wanting
to, which could undermine VCSE organisations' ability to function effectively.

"When you have volunteers referred here, there can be an ethical thing for us,
where you have to volunteer to keep your benefits, but our organisation wants to
make sure that you are not being forced to volunteer. Another scenario, is that
sometimes referrals come to volunteer as a route back to work, and then you
need a really competent volunteer to manage the less competent volunteer, which
in turn makes it harder to function as an organisation."

Linked to this was the ongoing challenge of recruiting and retaining skilled and

committed volunteers for the long term, which was something most
participants said their organisation struggled with.

Page 172

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 34



Partnership Working: the

Public Sector

8.1.

This chapter considers the relationship between the VCSE sector and the public
sector, exploring organisations experiences of partnership working with Tameside
Council and other public sector bodies.

Dealings with local public sector bodies

Survey respondents were asked about the extent of their dealings with each of the
main public sector bodies covering the borough of Tameside. An overview of their
responses is provided in figure 8.1, along with the local authority figure for Greater
Manchester combined.

This shows that survey respondents had dealings with a range of local public sector
bodies. The three most prominent were Tameside Council, Pennine Care and
Greater Manchester Police:

e Tameside Council: 74 per cent had some dealings with the Council; including
seven per cent who had a 'great amount' of dealings and 28 per cent who had a
'fair amount' of dealings

o Greater Manchester Police: 48 per cent had some dealings with Greater
Manchester Police; including one per cent who had a 'great amount' of dealings
and 15 per cent who had a 'fair amount' of dealings

e Pennine Care: 38 per cent had some dealings with Pennine Care; including two
per cent who had a 'great amount' of dealings and 18 per cent who had a 'fair
amount' of dealings.

Tameside Council was also the organisation respondents had the most dealings with
in the 2012/13 survey (69 per cent had some dealings). Greater Manchester Police
was also commonly identified in the previous survey (44 per cent).

Local authorities consistently emerged as the most prominent public sector contact
for respondents to this study across Greater Manchester. Overall, 16 per cent of
respondents said they had a 'great amount' of dealings with their local authority and
36 per cent said they had a 'fair amount'.

Page 173

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 35



Figure 8.1: Dealings with local public sector bodies?®

e — | | - |-

Greater Manchester Police _
T G mmanonta o e
e
R
P

D Don't know . None at all . Not very much . A fair amount . A great amount

Source: Tameside / Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 119-127 (Tameside), 1,080 (Greater Manchester)

Greater Manchester Fire and
Rescue Service

Greater Manchester Probation
Trust

Jobcentre Plus

Survey respondents were asked to indicate their most frequent public sector contact
other than their local authority. Figure 8.2 shows the responses received to this
question with Greater Manchester Police the most commonly cited (18 per cent)
followed by, Pennine Care (13 per cent), reflecting the picture from figure 8.1.

29 GMLAs combined = Greater Manchester local authorities' combined.

Page 174

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 36



Figure 8.2: Most frequent public sector contact other than local authority

Greater Manchester Police

Pennine Care (NHS Foundation
Trust - mental health 13%
services)

Tameside Hospital (NHS
Foundation Trust)

12%
Tameside College 12%

Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG)

12%
Jobcentre Plus 6%

Greater Manchester Probation

Trust 6%

Greater Manchester Fire and
Rescue Service

Other 15%

N
X

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 82

Respondents were also asked to consider the extent to which their organisation has
direct dealings with any emerging Greater Manchester structures (e.g. Greater
Manchester Combined Authority, The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner,
The Health and Social Care Devolution Team etc.). Figure 8.3 presents the results to
this question.

No respondents reported a 'great amount' of dealings with these structures, though
six per cent reported 'a fair amount' and a further 24 per cent reported 'not very
much'. The results were higher across Greater Manchester where 38 per cent
had some dealings, including two per cent who had a 'great amount' of
dealings and 10 per cent who had a ‘fair amount' of dealings.

Page 175

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 37



8.2.

Figure 8.3: Dealings with emerging Greater Manchester structures

None at all

56%
0,
Not very much _ 24%
27%
— L
A fair amount
10%
A great amount
2% .
B Tameside
. 4% Greater Manchester
Don't know
6%

Source: Greater Manchester / Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 124 (Tameside); 977 (Greater Manchester)

Relationships with local public sector bodies

Survey respondents were also asked two further questions about the extent to which
their organisations were satisfied with their ability to influence public sector decisions
of relevance to their organisation and the extent to which they thought local statutory
bodies influenced their success®. The results of these questions are summarised in
figure 8.4. A comparison with the Greater Manchester average is also provided.

Figure 8.4 shows that 23 per cent of respondents were satisfied with their ability to
influence Tameside Council decisions of relevance to their organisation and 27 per
cent said that the council had a positive influence on their organisation's success.
Results are similar to the Greater Manchester combined figures (30 per cent were
satisfied with ability to influence their local authority and 38 per cent agreed their
local authority has a positive influence on their success).

Results are very similar to 2012/13, when 23 per cent of respondents were satisfied
with their ability to influence Tameside Council decisions of relevance to their
organisation and 29 per cent said that the council had a positive influence on their
organisation's success.

In addition, 34 per cent of respondents said they were satisfied with their ability to
influence the key decisions of their most frequent other public sector contact and 56
per cent said this contact had a positive influence on their success. These are similar
to the Greater Manchester combined figures (36 per cent and 51 per cent
respectively).

30 This latter measure was used in 2008 and 2010 to provide evidence of local authority performance against
'‘National indicator 7: the environment for a thriving third sector'.

Page 176

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 38



8.3.

Figure 8.4: Proportion of organisations who said they were satisfied with their
ability to influence public sector decisions of relevance to their organisation
and who said local public sector bodies influence their organisation's success

56%

51%

36%

34%

Satisfied with their ability to Positive influence on their success
influence decisions

m Tameside Council

m Greater Manchester Local Authorities combined

= Most frequent other Tameside public sector contact
Greater Manchester most frequent other contact combined

Source: Tameside / Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: Tameside: 98/59 (ability to influence), 100/63 (positive influence); Greater Manchester: 897/570
(ability to influence), 889/605 (positive influence)

Funding from local public sector bodies

Respondents were also asked to reflect on their experiences of public sector funding
in terms of how successful they had been, how satisfied they were with bidding
arrangements, and how satisfied they were with the level of opportunity to bid for
long-term funding.

Figure 8.5 shows responses to the question which asked organisations to consider
how successful they had been in applying for funding or bidding for contracts.
Results are split between perceptions of Tameside Council and of other public sector
bodies. A comparison with the Greater Manchester average is also provided.

This shows that 37 per cent of respondents were successful in bidding for funding or
contracts with Tameside Council compared to a 36 per cent success-rate with other
public sector bodies. At the Greater Manchester level, a slightly higher proportion (45
per cent) had been successful in bidding for funding or contracts from their local
authority and from other public sector bodies (40 per cent).

Page 177

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 39



In 2012/13 a higher proportion indicated they had been successful in bidding for
funding or contracts from Tameside Council (48 per cent) but the figure for other
public sector bodies was lower (32 per cent).

Figure 8.5: Success bidding for funding and contracts

45%

40%

Successful in bidding for funding/contracts

m Tameside Council
m Greater Manchester Local Authorities combined
m Tameside other public sector bodies
Greater Manchester most frequent other contact combined

Source: Tameside / Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: Tameside: 126/124; Greater Manchester: 1,060/1,036

Respondents were asked specifically about Tameside Council and how satisfied they
were with their grant funding and contract bidding arrangements and opportunities
for funding and contracts lasting three years or longer. The responses are illustrated
in figure 8.6. A comparison with the Greater Manchester local authority average is
also provided.

One third (33 per cent) were satisfied with grant funding arrangements. Satisfaction
with contract bidding arrangements was lower at 19 per cent. Satisfaction with
opportunities for both funding and contracts lasting three years or longer was lower
still (both 12 per cent). The pattern was similar among the Greater Manchester
combined figures, though in all cases a slightly higher proportion were satisfied.

In 2012/13 respondents were not asked separately about grant funding and contracts.
Just over one third (35 per cent) of respondents were satisfied with Tameside
Council's funding/bidding arrangements in 2012/13 and 15 per cent were satisfied
with their opportunities for funding/contracts which lasted three years or longer.

Page 178

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 40



Figure 8.6: Experiences of bidding for funding and contracts with local
authorities

40%
33%
25%
19%
15% .
12% 129  13%
Satisfied with grant  Satisfied with contract Satisfied with Satisfied with
funding arrangements bidding arrangements opportunities for opportunities for

funding that lasts 3yrs+ contracts that last 3yrs+

m Tameside Council
Greater Manchester Local Authorities combined

Source: Tameside / Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17

Base: Tameside: 88 (grant funding arrangements), 52 (contract bidding arrangements), 73
(opportunities for funding), 50 (opportunities for contracts); Greater Manchester: 808 (grant funding
arrangements), 631 (contract bidding arrangements), 703 (opportunities for funding), 605 (opportunities
for contracts)

Survey respondents were asked to consider how satisfied they were with the grant
funding and contract bidding arrangements of their most frequent other public sector
contact. As figure 8.7 shows, 18 per cent indicated they were satisfied, lower than
across Greater Manchester as a whole (27 per cent).

They were also asked about their satisfaction with opportunities for funding and

contracts longer than three years. Just seven per cent were satisfied, lower again
than the Greater Manchester combined figure (11 per cent).

Page 179

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 41



8.4.

Figure 8.7: Experiences of bidding for funding and contracts with other public
sector bodies

27%
18%
11%
7%

Satisfied with grant Satisfied with
funding / contract opportunities for
bidding arrangements funding/contracts that

last 3yrs+

m Most frequent other Tameside public sector contact
Greater Manchester most frequent other contact combined

Source: Tameside / Greater Manchester State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: Tameside: 77 (funding/bidding arrangements), 76 (opportunities for funding/contracts); Greater
Manchester: 705 (funding/bidding arrangements), 687 (opportunities for funding/contracts)

Qualitative responses on relationships between the VCSE sector and
local public sector bodies

The focus groups discussed participants' views about and experiences of working
with public sector bodies in Tameside. Two key issues dominated these discussions:
the prospects of devolution for VCSE organisations, and issues associated with
developing effective relationships with the local public sector.

There was a general feeling amongst participants that they didn’t really know
what to make of devolution, but also a tendency to be sceptical about it, in
particular its implications for smaller voluntary organisations. Most VCSE
organisations reported good links with certain parts of the public sector, although
there was an overriding sense of frustration about not getting enough support and
information from the key public bodies.

"The voluntary sector in Tameside is doing a great job, because there are so
many gaps in health for example. But they have taken all the money from social
services and they expect us to fill the gap without support; without information or
consistent liaising and liaising with the community which are the people who need
the services. How will this work?"

Participants recognised the challenges facing the public sector as a result of
enforced spending cuts, but felt that it was vitally important for the two sectors
to have a dialogue so that they could be more efficient in coordinating efforts
to deal with problems in the area.

"l think everybody is working very hard in worse conditions; both the voluntary
sector and public bodies feel so stretched and so stressed. Everybody at
grassroots level knows that the overall figure of investment is now less and so the
output is less and people get angry and frustrated with agencies.”

Page 180

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 42



Partnership Working: the

Private Sector

9.1.

The previous chapter explored respondents’ experiences of partnership working with
public sector bodies. This chapter moves on to explore their experiences of working
with private sector organisations. Only 21 per cent of survey respondents received
any income through business donations. While this is an increase since the 2012/13
survey when just 17 per cent received this type of income, this area still appears to
be new territory for many VCSE organisations. Survey respondents were asked
about their direct dealings and experiences of working with private businesses in
Tameside.

Working with private businesses

Survey respondents were asked to indicate the extent to which they had direct
dealings with private businesses in Tameside. 57 per cent reported that they had
some direct dealings, with 15 per cent having a ‘great’ or ‘fair amount of contact
(figure 9.1). This is slightly lower than the average for Greater Manchester as a
whole (21 per cent 'great' or 'fair' amount of contact). The picture has changed from
the 2012/13 survey where a lower 46 per cent of respondents reported some direct
dealings, including 13 per cent having a ‘great’ or ‘fair’ amount of contact.

Figure 9.1: Extent of direct dealings with private businesses

A great amount I 3%

A fair amount

None at all 41%

Don't know I2%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 128

Page 181

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 43



9.2.

Just one respondent indicated they are members of a formal private sector-led
consortium out of a total of 21 across Greater Manchester. Five per cent (six
respondents) of respondents said their organisation is in formal partnership with
private sector organisation(s), slightly lower than the seven per cent of organisations
across Greater Manchester.

Respondents were asked to comment on the influence private businesses have on
their organisation's success. As figure 9.2 shows, taking all things into account, 27
per cent of survey respondents felt that the private business community in Tameside
was a positive influence on their organisation’s success. This is similar to the
proportion for Greater Manchester as a whole (31 per cent) and an increase since
the 2012/13 survey when just 16 per cent of survey respondents felt that the
private business community in Tameside was a positive influence on their
organisation’s success.

Figure 9.2: Private business community's influence on VCSE sector
organisations' success

Very negative influence

Negative influence

Neither positive nor negative influence
Positive influence -

Very positive influence

Don't know

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 77

Qualitative responses on working with private sector businesses

Focus group participants discussed their views about and experiences of working
with private businesses. Overall, their experiences of and relationships with private
businesses was mixed. A number of participants reported long-standing relationships
with local business while others received only occasional donations and not any sort
of formal partnership.

A key advantage of working with the private sector was that they could move things
more efficiently, in either one-off or longer collaborations, compared to working with
the public sector. However, concerns were expressed about the different aims and
culture of private business, which centre on the generation of profit, and that this is
not always a natural fit with the social aims of most VCSEs. However, participants
argued that when businesses are truly motivated by philanthropy and a
genuine intent to do some good in the community, working with the private
sector can be mutually beneficial.

Page 182

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 44



"A business is designed to make money and what we’ve found, is that sometimes
businesses want to be real generous... It all sounds really generous and it does
benefit us for what we are doing, but, invariably there would be a photographer
there. Also, | know that they would pay money to have these things removed so
we are basically removing their waste and they are getting the publicity of being
generous. We always take it because we need it of course, but you know it's not
so ethical. On other occasions, we find a genuine philanthropic attitude; so I've
had a mixed bag with businesses so far."

"You have to be very pragmatic with these people. If you do find a business which
is genuinely generous, then they are very pragmatic, they eschew the paperwork
when they trust you and they can be very efficient, and we can be more efficient in
what we do."

"We work with businesses for fundraisers and they are really matter of fact in their

attitude. We also have an arrangement with a business to receive building
materials, not money really.”

Page 183

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 45



Partnership Working: 10

Voluntary Community and Social
Enterprise Organisations

The previous two chapters have explored respondents’ experiences of working with
organisations from the public and private sectors. This chapter discusses survey
respondents' views on their work with other VCSE sector organisations.

10.1. Working with other VCSE organisations

Survey respondents were asked about the extent to which they had direct dealings
with other VCSE sector organisations in both Tameside and Greater Manchester.

The vast majority (91 per cent) had some direct dealings with other VCSE sector
organisations in Tameside, and as figure 10.1 illustrates, 53 per cent had a ‘great’ or
‘fair amount’ of contact. A very similar proportion of organisations across Greater
Manchester had some direct dealings with other VCSE sector organisations in their
local area (90 per cent), but a slightly higher proportion had a ‘great’ or ‘fair
amount’ of contact (67 per cent). A lower proportion had direct dealings in the
2012/13 survey (78 per cent) and a lower proportion had a 'great' or 'fair amount' of
contact (51 per cent).

The proportion of respondents reporting they had direct dealings with other VCSE
sector organisations in Greater Manchester was lower (65 per cent), along with the
proportion who had a ‘great’ or ‘fair amount’ of contact (31 per cent). Results were
similar at the Greater Manchester level (70 per cent direct dealings and 37 per cent
with a ‘great’ or ‘fair amount’ of contact). Survey respondents were only asked about
their dealings with other VCSE organisations across Greater Manchester in 2016/17.

Page 184

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 46



Figure 10.1: Extent of direct dealings with VCSE organisations

. A fair amount A great amount

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 125 (Tameside) / 108 (Greater Manchester)

Respondents were asked to reflect on the opportunities they had to work with other
VCSE sector organisations in terms of influencing local decisions, delivering local
services and networking. Figure 10.2 summarises the responses.

Figure 10.2: Satisfaction with opportunities to work with VCSE organisations

41%

Satisfied with opportunities
to work together to influence

decisions 35%

41%

Satisfied with opportunities
to work together to deliver

local services
33%

47%

Satisfied with opportunities
to network with other VCSE

organisations 41%

Tameside . GM Comparison

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 123 (influence decisions) / 121 (delivering services) / 124 (networking)

This shows that 35 per cent of respondents were satisfied with the availability
of opportunities to influence local decisions (40 per cent in 2012/13) and that
33 per cent were satisfied with the availability of opportunities to work together
to deliver local services (42 per cent in 2012/13). A higher proportion of
organisations across Greater Manchester were satisfied with opportunities to
influence local decisions (41 per cent), and with opportunities to work together
to deliver local services (also 41 per cent). 41 per cent of respondents were
also satisfied with opportunities to network with other VCSE organisations (47
per cent across Greater Manchester as a whole).

Page 185

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 47



10.2.

13 per cent of respondents said their organisation is a member of a formal
VCSE sector consortium, lower than the 22 per cent of organisations across
Greater Manchester.

Only five per cent indicated their organisation is in another type of formal partnership
with other VCSE organisations to deliver specific services (13 per cent across
Greater Manchester). A wide range of responses were received when organisations
were asked to specify which partnership they were members of, with a range of
services covered by partnerships.

Qualitative reflections on working with other VCSE organisations

The focus groups discussed participants' views about and experiences of working in
partnership with other VCSE organisations in Tameside and more widely. All
participants reported good relationships with other VCSEs but were rarely involved in
formal partnerships.

"We do work with other VCSEs, it's been very helpful; we have our ties in the
sector and try to use them."

"We have a lot of small connections, nothing which is really regular, or big, or
contractual. Basically just organising events in Christmas, day-trips with youth
groups, things like that."”

Most contact with other VCSEs took place informally at a local level through in the

form of mutual help and support, for example working together to co-organise events,
and the occasional sharing of resources.

Page 186

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 48



The Future

11.1.

This chapter details the responses received to questions about the future in the
survey of organisations.

Factors assisting or constraining delivery

Respondents were asked to consider the factors they anticipated assisting or
constraining their organisation over the next 12 months. Figure 11.1 illustrates that
over two-fifths of respondents thought the following factors would assist their
organisation over the next year:

e ability to employ staff with sufficient skills: 47 per cent anticipated this factor
assisting their organisation; including 19 per cent who saw this as 'greatly
assisting' and 28 per cent 'assisting'

¢ engagement with other VCSE organisations: 43 per cent anticipated this
factor assisting their organisation; including six per cent who saw this as 'greatly
assisting' and 37 per cent 'assisting'

¢ engagement with public sector bodies: 42 per cent anticipated this factor
assisting their organisation; including six per cent who saw this as 'greatly
assisting' and 36 per cent 'assisting'.

Engagement with other VCSE organisations was the most common factor selected
across Greater Manchester, with 50 per cent of organisations envisaging this factor
assisting their organisation over the next 12 months.

In contrast over one third saw the following factors as constraining their organisation
over the next 12 months:

e ability to recruit volunteers with sufficient skills: 36 per cent anticipated this
factor constraining their organisation; including 10 per cent who saw this as
'seriously constraining' and 26% per cent 'constraining'

o the local economy: 34 per cent anticipated this factor constraining their
organisation; including 11 per cent who saw this as 'seriously constraining' and
23 per cent 'constraining'.

The local economy was the most common factor selected across Greater

Manchester as a whole, with 38 per cent anticipating this factor constraining their
organisation over the following year.

Page 187

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 49



Figure 11.1: Factors anticipated as assisting or constraining organisations
over the next 12 months

Ability to employ staff
with sufficient skills | 147 14% 28% 19%
Engagement with other 5 o o
VCSE organisations 16% II 37% 6%
Engagement with public 5 q
sector bodies 22% 27% 36% 6%
Ability to retain staff /
Ability to retain
volunteers/ volunteer 6% 31% 22% 19%
turnover
e T
Engagement with the
Ability to secure grant
funding from public 22% 22% 15%
sector bodies
Ability to recruit
volunteers with b 21% 20% 16%
sufficient skills
Ability to secure
contracts from public 22% . 28% 13% | 13%
T

sector bodies
. Seriously - . . . . Greatly
Don't know . constraining . Constraining Neutral Assisting assisting

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 42-97

Ability to secure other 14%
sources of incomes °

The local economy 29%

Following on from quantitative questions regarding the factors that organisations
anticipated assisting or constraining their organisation over the next vyear,
respondents were also asked to provide further qualitative (i.e. written) information
about these factors.

Unsurprisingly some organisations were concerned with accessing public sector
funding or resources:

"There is little or no money available for which we can apply, since we cannot
specify that we are assisting one particular sector of the community”

"Lack of funding and inability to pay for a team of staff is a constant worry"

Page 188

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 50



11.2.

The most common concern, however, was with volunteer recruitment and
retention:

"Ongoing difficulties with recruiting new and retaining existing volunteers”
"Experienced and dedicated volunteers are hard to recruit”
"We have difficulty in finding volunteers with the necessary skills"

"We really struggle to get any volunteers to come and stay long enough to be
trained and effective”

Some also stressed the importance of local economic conditions to their future
success:

"We are dependent financially on our social enterprise which is affected by the
local economy”

“Local and national economics impacts the most on voluntary sector ability to
deliver services"

Not all comments on these issues were negative, however. There was some
optimism from organisations on their future prospects:

"We are increasingly confident that we will be able to secure funding from public
sector bodies that will enable us to deliver services"

"We have sufficient dedicated volunteers to carry out the aims of the Charity"”

Current and future strategies

Survey respondents were asked what strategies they are actively pursuing or
planning to pursue. Figure 11.2 summarises the responses received and shows that
almost half or more of respondents were already doing or planning to do the
following:

e increasing earned income: 57 per cent were already pursuing or planning to
pursue this strategy; including 22 per cent who are doing this now and 35 per
cent who are planning to do this

e working more closely with another voluntary/not-for-profit organisation:
53 per cent were already pursuing or planning to work more closely with other
VCSE organisations; including 19 per cent who are doing this now and 35 per
cent who are planning to do this in the future

e increasing individual donations: 48 per cent were already pursuing or
planning to increase individual donations; including 21 per cent who are doing
this now and 26 per cent who are planning to do so.

Results across Greater Manchester followed a broadly similar pattern, but

organisations were in general more likely to be currently pursuing each of the listed
strategies or planning to do so.

Page 189

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 51



Figure 11.2: Strategies being planned or pursued

Increasing earned income

Working more closely with
another voluntary/not-for-
profit organisation

Increasing individual
donations

Working more closely with a
public sector organisation

Changing the way you run your
services or activities

Working more closely with a
private sector company

Merging with one or more
similar organisations

Borrowing money to increase
the volume of activity/enter
new areas of work

Not doing this now and not
planning to do this

43%

47%

52%

SR

93%

96%

. Doing this now . Planning to do this

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17

Base: 104-107

Page 190

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 52



Conclusions

1. The VCSE sector in Tameside continues to occupy an important strategic
position between policy development, service provision and everyday life.

There are an estimated 1,167 organisations working in the VCSE sector in Tameside
who are involved in many areas of activity.

As in the 2013 study, the local area is a main focus for the majority of organisations;
43 per cent identified particular neighbourhoods or communities in Tameside as their
highest main geographic focus, and a further 28 per cent identified the whole of the
Tameside local authority area as their highest main geographic focus.

The thematic areas with the greatest proportion of organisations working in them are:
health and wellbeing; sport and leisure; community development; and education,
training and research (which includes information, advice and guidance); the same
four areas selected most frequently in 2012/13.

The VCSE sector plays a key role in fostering strong and cohesive communities
within Tameside and is an essential part of the social fabric of the borough. Two-
thirds of respondents felt they were improving people's mental wellbeing (66 per cent)
and 58 per cent claimed they were improving people's physical wellbeing.

2. The sector in Tameside remains an important economic player, contributing
significantly to GVA3', but patterns in income, expenditure and the level of
reserves suggest that, as in 2013, the sustainability of many organisations may
be under threat.

Valuing the contribution of both paid employees and volunteers and committee/board
members to Tameside organisations by the expected value of the output that they
produced gives an estimated contribution overall of £115.4 million.

Total income of the VCSE sector in 2014/15 is estimated to be £53 million. This
represents an increase of one per cent compared to 2013/14 when the total income
of the VCSE sector was an estimated £52 million. The majority of organisations are
micro or small although the majority of income is concentrated in large and medium-
sized organisations.

The picture is more positive overall than in the previous 2013 study which identified
year-on-year reductions in income. However analysis of income data across Greater

31 Gross Value Added (GVA), the value of goods and services produced, is a key measure of the economic
contribution of organisations or sectors.

Page 191

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 53



Manchester by organisation size revealed micro and small organisations
experienced year on year reductions in total income between 2012/13 and 2014/15.
By contrast medium and large organisations saw a reduction in total income between
2012/13 and 2013/14 but then an increase between 2013/14 and 2014/15.

Almost half (47 per cent) of respondents reported increasing their expenditure but
only 35 per cent had experienced an increase in income and only 20 per cent report
an increase in reserves.

In addition, 25 per cent of respondents reported a decrease in income but only 12
per cent reduced their expenditure.

30 per cent of respondents provided an expenditure figure for 2014/15 that was
greater than their income. These results indicate a sizeable number of organisations
spent more money than they received in the last 12 months and that a considerable
number of organisations are using their reserves to supplement their income,
potentially leaving them in a fragile financial position.

3. The VCSE sector in Tameside continues to provide significant social value.

It is estimated that the VCSE sector in Tameside made 1.5 million interventions with
clients, users or beneficiaries in the previous year.

VCSE organisations work with a range of different people, especially children and
young people and older people, but also people from vulnerable groups (for example
those with health problems).

4. The VCSE sector continues to be a significant employer.

In 2016/17 there were an estimated 1,300 FTE paid staff. In addition the sector was
supported by 26,000 volunteers and 8,000 committee/board members who combined
donated 83,400 hours per week.

Valuing the contribution of paid employees to Tameside organisations by the
expected value of the output that they produced gives an estimated annual
contribution of £39.9 million. Doing the same for volunteers and committee/board
members gives an estimated contribution of £75.5 million.

5. Volunteering is essential to what VCSE organisations do however there are
challenges associated with volunteering across the borough.

Almost two-fifths (37 per cent) of organisations responding to the survey reported
increased numbers of volunteers compared to the previous year, while just 15 per
cent of organisations reported a decrease in volunteer numbers.

Focus group participants argued that volunteering is essential for what they do and in
general were very positive with regards to volunteering. However, participants did
identify one recent development which was affecting the way they worked with
volunteers. This was when volunteers are referred to the organisation from other
voluntary groups or public bodies as part of an employment programme or as a
condition of benefits. Participants argued that sometimes these potential volunteers
got involved in activities without really wanting to, which could undermine VCSE
organisations' ability to function effectively.

Linked to this was the ongoing challenge of recruiting and retaining skilled and

committed volunteers for the long term, which was something most participants said
their organisation struggled with.

Page 192

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 54



6. There is a mixed picture in Tameside regarding relationships between the
VCSE sector and public sector bodies.

Overall, 74 per cent of respondents in Tameside had some dealings with Tameside
Council (69 per cent in 2012/13): seven per cent had a great amount of dealings with
the Council and 28 per cent had a fair amount of dealings.

Around one quarter (23 per cent) of respondents were satisfied with their ability to
influence Tameside Council decisions of relevance to their organisation while 27 per
cent said Tameside Council had a positive influence on their organisation's success.
Results are very similar to those in 2012/13.

Most focus group participants reported good links with certain parts of the public
sector, but there was an overriding sense of frustration about not getting enough
support and information from the key public bodies.

There was also a general feeling amongst participants that they didn’t really know
what to make of devolution, but also a tendency to be sceptical about it, in particular
its implications for smaller voluntary organisations.

7. Engagement with private businesses remains relatively low but perceptions
of the private business sector appear to have improved.

57 per cent of organisations had some direct dealings with private businesses, with
15 per cent having a ‘great’ or ‘fair’ amount of contact. This is a change from 2012/13
when 46 per cent reported some direct dealings and 13 per cent had a ‘great’ or ‘fair
amount of contact.

Over one quarter (27 per cent) felt that the private business community in Tameside
was a positive influence on their organisation’s success. This is an increase since
2012/13 when just 16 per cent agreed private businesses were a positive influence.

Overall, focus group participants had mixed experiences of and relationships with
private businesses. A number of participants reported long-standing relationships
with local business while others received only the occasional donation and no formal
partnership.

8. The VCSE sector in Tameside continues to be well connected internally
although most contact appears to be informal.

As in the 2013 study, the majority of organisations had some direct dealings with
other VCSE sector organisations in their local area, including 53 per cent who had a
‘great’ or ‘fair amount’ of contact.

Just 13 per cent of respondents said their organisation is a member of a formal
VCSE sector consortium.

All focus group participants reported good relationships with other VCSEs but were
rarely involved in formal partnerships.

9. The sector still faces an uncertain future.
With austerity measures set to continue for the foreseeable future and public sector

funding for the sector continuing to be squeezed, there are still reasons for caution
within the sector.

Page 193

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 55



Respondents appear to recognise this uncertainty and are pursuing a range of
strategies to ensure their sustainability, in particular, generating earned income from
other sources, partnership working and organisational change.

Page 194

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 56



Appendix 1

Methodology
Survey of organisations

At least partial responses were received from 65 of the 735 organisations that were sent a
survey questionnaire: this represents a response rate of nine per cent. Another web-based
version of the survey was also distributed by Action Together in Oldham and Tameside,
reaching organisations also included in the original sample and beyond. Action Together
played a key role in boosting the response rate to the survey by utilising their relationships
with the sector to encourage organisations to complete a questionnaire. In addition GMCVO
distributed a version of the survey via their networks. A further 75 responses were collected
via these methods, meaning a total of 140 responses were collected overall during
September 2016 - January 2017, giving a higher overall response rate.

The survey was undertaken as part of a wider study in six other Greater Manchester
boroughs: Bolton, the City of Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Stockport and Salford.

The questionnaire was based on the one originally developed for the 'State of the Voluntary
Sector Survey' undertaken in Salford in 2010. The questionnaire was revised for the 'Greater
Manchester State of the Voluntary Sector' research undertaken in 2012/13 and again for this
wave of the survey following input from the Research Steering Group. The Greater
Manchester Chief Officers Group also provided additional oversight regarding the survey
design and implementation.

The questionnaire provided data on various aspects of the VCSE sector including:

o the scale and scope of its activity, including the roles organisations undertake, the
people they support, and the areas they benefit

e the economic impact of its work, including income and expenditure, sources of
funding, the role of paid staff and volunteers, and financial sustainability

o relationships with the public sector, including Tameside Council, public sector health
bodies, and a range of other local statutory bodies

o relationships with other local organisations, including VCSE organisations and
private businesses.

Where possible the report compares results from the latest survey and the 2012/13 study.
Revisions to the questionnaire mean that comparisons are not always possible or
appropriate. It is also worth noting that in 2012/13 a large postal survey was the main
method of data collection which was supplemented with a web based survey. This is
different to the latest study when a web based survey was the primary method of data
collection.

Page 195

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 57



When reading the report it is important to acknowledge two key points. First, the results
reported are based on the survey responses received. Therefore it is possible that if a
different sample of organisations had taken part in the survey different results may have
emerged. It is estimated that the results reported are within +/- 7.8 percentage points of the
true value.

Secondly, on a number of occasions the analysis in this report has used extrapolations from
the survey responses to provide estimates of totals for all organisations that work in the
VCSE sector including:

e the number of clients, users and beneficiaries of the sector
e the total income of the sector

e and the number of FTE paid staff and the number of volunteers and committee/board
members that are part of the sector's workforce; including the hours per week that
volunteers contribute.

In each case the same three stage method has been used for calculating the sector wide
totals:

o stage one: calculate the Greater Manchester averages for each of the four size bands
of organisations: 'micro’, 'small’, 'medium' and 'large': column (a) in table A1

e stage two: multiply the average for each size band (column (a) in table A1) by the
estimated number of organisations within that size band (column (b) in table A1) to give
the total for each size band of organisations (column (c) in table A1)

o stage three: sum the estimates from stage two (column (c) in table A1) to give a sector
wide total estimate (cell (d) in table A1).

This was necessary to take account of noticeable differences in the response rates by
organisation size. A failure to do this would lead to upwardly biased estimates: a small
number of mainly 'large' organisations create a high mean value that is not representative of
the majority of organisations. This is an important point given that we estimate that a large
proportion of the sector is made up of 'micro' organisations which tend to have far lower
values and not taking into account difference by size of organisations would produce
estimates that are much higher.

Table A1: Extrapolations: a worked example (total annual income)

Average income by  Estimated number Total income
size of organisations (thousands)
(a) (b) (c)
Micro (under £10k) £2,438 792 £1,930,426
Small (£10k to £100k) £38,844 290 £11,271,991
Medium (£100k to £1m) £320,581 78 £25,010,280
Large (over £1m) £2,201,023 7 £14,436,849
Total (b) £52,649,546

Please note it has been assumed here that the estimated averages for Greater Manchester
organisations are representative for organisations within Tameside. So, for example, it is has
been assumed that the estimated average income of approximately £320,600 for medium
sized organisations across Greater Manchester is representative of the income for medium
sized organisations within Tameside.

Page 196

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 58



Using the Greater Manchester averages improves the reliability of the estimates.
Focus groups

A focus group was conducted to provide a further depth of understanding to some of the
themes covered in the State of the Sector Survey. The group was held midway through the
survey administration and undertaken by Action Together who recruited local organisations
to participate in the groups.

A topic guide was devised to help guide discussions and ensure a standardised approach
across all local authority areas conducting focus groups. The topic guide was created in
partnership between CRESR and the Research Steering Group with CRESR providing
advice and guidance on best practice in undertaking this type of research.

The focus group lasted approximately 1 hour - 1 hour 30 minutes and was digitally recorded
with consent obtained from all participants. The recording was then provided to CRESR who
analysed the discussion. Analysis of the discussion is included in the relevant chapters of
this report.

The topics discussed in the focus group concentrated on four key themes: volunteering,
working with the public sector, working with other VCSE organisations and working with the
private business sector.

The focus group took place with small VCSE groups/registered charities.

Legal status of responding organisations

Respondents to the questionnaire were asked to identify the legal status of their organisation.
For this question it was possible for organisations to select registered charity in addition to
identifying their legal form. Figure A1 below shows that 34 per cent were a group with a
constitution, but not registered charities and 18 per cent of organisations were a company
limited by guarantee and that separate to identifying their legal status half of respondents, 49
per cent, identified that their organisation was a registered charity.

These results are slightly different to those in the 2012/13 survey when:

e 45 per cent of organisations were a group with a constitution, but not registered
charities (noticeably higher than the latest survey)

e 13 per cent were companies limited by guarantee
e four per cent of organisations had no legally constituted form

e 43 per cent of respondents identified that their organisation was a registered charity.

In the latest survey, however, six per cent of respondents indicated their organisation was a
Community Interest Company; double the proportion in 2012/13 (three per cent).

Across Greater Manchester:

e 30 per cent of organisations were a group with a constitution - but not a registered
charity

e 28 per cent were a company limited by guarantee

o four per cent of organisations had no legally constituted form

e 49 per cent of organisations were registered charities.

Page 197

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 59



Figure A1: The legal status of responding organisations

Registered Charity

Group with a constitution but
not a registered charity or 34%
company

Company Limited by Guarantee 18%

Charitable Incorporated 79%
Organisation ¢

Community Interest Company 6%

No legally constituted form 5%

Source: Tameside State of the VCSE sector survey 2016/17
Base: 138

Page 198

Centre for Regional Economic and Social Research | 60



Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Item 10b

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Angela Hardman, Director of Public Health

Liz Windsor-Welsh, Chief Executive Officer, Tameside
Action Together
COMPACT: RELATIONSHIP WITH PEOPLE,

COMMUNITIES AND THE VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY,
FAITH AND SOCIAL ENTERPRISE SECTOR (VCFSE).

This report introduces new work that is about to commence
to establish a new, and progressive way of working between
statutory organisations and the voluntary, community, faith
and social enterprise sector. This is key to the success of
our ambitions for both health and social care reform and
wider public sector reform.

It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board
take note of the work and:

e Endorses the ambitions of the work.

e Agrees for the relevant senior personnel from their
organisation will participate in the development of the
‘Principles’ that will detail our commitments.

e Ensure there is a commitment from senior personnel
across key agencies to join the Leadership Group to
ensure progress is made and system blockers identified
and resolved.

This work has cross cutting relevance to the Health and
Wellbeing strategy and in particular the implementation of
Care Together and its ambitions for increased Self Care.
This also links to emerging work with regard to Public
Sector Reform, ‘Forward Five’ and the re-development of
the Early Help Strategy.

None immediately but will have significant relevance to the
following once the commitments are developed, particularly
in relation to;

- Citizen and patient engagement
- Commissioning strategies and plans
- Care Together implementation

There are no direct financial implications arising from the
report at this stage.

Achieving this ‘new relationship’ will
leadership, governance and accountability.
helpful to set out expectations in a MOU.

require clear
It would be

Page 199



Risk Management : There are no risks associated with this report.

Access to Information : The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Anna Moloney

&3 Telephone: 0161 342 2189

G e-mail: anna.moloney@tameside.gov.uk

Page 200



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

INTRODUCTION

At a meeting on 22nd March 2017, there was a joint commitment from the Single
Commissioning Function (SCF), Integrated Care Foundation Trust (ICFT) and
representatives of Action Together to establishing a new, and progressive way of working
between statutory organisations and the voluntary, community, faith and social enterprise
sector (VCFSE). This is key to the success of our ambitions for both health and social care
reform and wider public sector reform.

Subsequently, senior leadership from these organisations have proposed the development
of a ‘Compact’ to underpin a new and progressive relationship with the VCSFE. Historically
‘Compacts’ have often been viewed as passive agreements between the state and the
VCFSE. We have agreed that this agreement should detail our shared ambitions and
agree how we will actualise this new relationship in our joint work together by identifying
joint priorities where change is required and key workstreams to begin to implement these
changes.

It is also important to note that a number of the transformation programmes associated with
Care Together rely heavily on the VCFSE (e.g. social prescribing, asset based approaches)
and as such their success will be enabled by a consistent set of principles, values and
ultimately actions that traverse the approach taken by all agencies in Tameside and
Glossop.

DEVELOPING A PROGRESSIVE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN STATUTORY AGENCIES
AND THE VCFSE

The development of a Compact with the VCFSE will enshrine a set of key principles that all
organisations should adhere to. This process will require collaborative leadership and
accountability to ensure that all partners are aware of it; its principles and how it should
influence the way we work.

We should be clear what success looks like and identify a set of metrics that are indicative
of working differently with the VCFSE, people and communities and assure ourselves of
progress against them. Therefore the Single Commission and Tameside and Glossop
Integrated Care Foundation Trust are to work with Action Together, The Bureau Glossop
and High Peak CVS and their members to develop and publish a new Compact with the
VCFSE. It will embed awareness and understanding of the way we do things as any
Compact has to be on the basis of equal partnership and co-leadership. It is not a
document that outlines how statutory agencies will engage with the VCFSE.

The Compact should be orientated around a set of key principles and underpinned by an
expectation of partnership and collaboration, these principles could be:

* Respect — with statutory and VCFSE organisations both being accountable in different
ways. Relationships need to be underpinned by integrity and transparency, built on a
mutual understanding of the differences between partners;

* Honesty — successful relationships must be underpinned by honest, full and frank
conversation;

* Independence — many VCFSE organisations will have a remit to represent the views of
a population — their independence must be maintained and protected, irrespective of
whatever other relationship exists;

» Diversity — partners involved in the Compact must demonstrably value a thriving civil
society that brings a multitude of voices to the fore;

» Citizen Empowerment — working together, the statutory sector and the VCFSE can
deliver change that is built around people and communities, meeting their needs and
reflecting their choices;

Page 201



3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

41

4.2

5.1

» Volunteering — The significant role played by volunteers for the benefit of the public and
a vibrant society should be recognised, appreciated and built upon.

LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE

Achieving this ‘new relationship’ will require clear leadership, governance and
accountability. In order to do this we will establish a Leadership group that will be cross
sectoral and made up of senior representatives from across a wide range of public sector
agencies and VCFSE organisations. This should be jointly chaired by a representative
from the VCFSE and a representative from the statutory sector. The group will drive
forward work relating to the ambitions and agreed principles and seek to uncover and
resolves blockers in this new way of working. Where appropriate groups don't already
exist, workstreams should be established to ensure we address key areas including (but
not exclusively):

The commissioning relationship with the VCFSE;

The role of the VCFSE as strategic influencers;

The role of the VCFSE in supporting public engagement and co-production;

The VCFSE as a route to support a new relationship with people and communities;

This work should feed appropriately in to the governance of the local health and care
economy, Tameside’s Voluntary Influencing Group and critically including the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

NEXT STEPS AND KEY MILESTONES

The following key actions and milestones will ensure this work progresses and achieves
stated aims;

o Establish the Leadership Group and agree Terms Of Reference, scope and activity
milestones (October 2017);

e Facilitate engagement from across public agencies and the VCFSE (Tameside and
Glossop) to establish the shared ambitions and agree principles (by December 2017);

e Agree workstreams and begin work in practice to address priority areas (January 2018);

e Leadership Group meets bi-monthly to review progress, identify and resolve system
blockers;

¢ Report back progress to identified governance forums including Health and Wellbeing
Board.

The two accountable officers for this work are; Angela Hardman, Director of Population
Health, and Liz Windsor-Welsh (Chief Executive Officer, Action Together, also on behalf of
High Peak CVS and The Bureau).

RECOMMENDATIONS

As stated on the front of the report.

Page 202



Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Iltem 11a

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Angela Hardman, Director of Population Health
Gideon Smith, Consultant in Public Health Medicine

GREATER MANCHESTER CANCER PLAN - TAMESIDE
AND GLOSSOP STOCKTAKE

The Greater Manchester Cancer Plan was received by the
Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2017. The Tameside
and Glossop Cancer Board, which is led by Tameside and
Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust with membership
from the Single Commission, have developed a
comprehensive implementation plan.

A detailed working action plan has been developed by the
project manager to support the work of the local working
group, and progress is reported to Tameside and Glossop
Cancer Board.

Appendix 1 and 2 provide an update on the current local
position and next steps required to deliver the contributions
required in the locality specific plan.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to :

1. Note the progress to date with local implementation of
the Greater Manchester Cancer Plan;

2. Endorse the local action summaries outlined in
Appendix 1 and 2.

3. Receive further progress reports.

Cancer is the most common cause of death in Tameside for
males and females, and there are significantly more deaths
than there should be given the population age and gender
profile, so improving cancer outcomes delivers against all
life course priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Strategic
Partnership Board approved the Greater Manchester
Cancer Plan for implementation on 24 February 2017.

This paper summarises the local actions required to realise
the ambitions of the Greater Manchester Cancer Plan.

There are no direct financial implications arising from the
report at this stage.

However, the financial implications within further update
reports on the associated plan will be considered and
reported accordingly to Health and Wellbeing Board
members.

It is important that decisions regarding resources are made
on an evidence based approach. This report sets out the
evidence of the challenges and how we tackle improving
cancer outcomes.

Page 203



Risk Management :

Access to Information :

The Greater Manchester Cancer Plan contains a substantial
amount of work, much of which requires contributions from
all parts of the cancer system. The proposed accountable
cancer network model as part of cancer vanguard
programme requires further substantial Greater Manchester
system debate and engagement. Transformation funding
will be sought to deliver some of the signature proposals in
the plan, including lung health check (if pilot successful) and
delivery of the recovery package.

The actions detailed in this local stocktake are extensive,
but within the scope of existing service and clinical
development and improvement expectations.

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Gideon Smith, Consultant, Public
Health Medicine, by:

&3 Telephone: 0161 342 4251

Be -] Gideon.smith@tameside.gov.uk

Page 204



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

INTRODUCTION

The Greater Manchester Cancer Plan was received by Tameside Health and Wellbeing
Board on the 9 March 2017. The Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board, which is led by
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust with membership from the Single
Commission, had develop a comprehensive implementation plan.

The Greater Manchester Plan sets out the ambitions for Greater Manchester Cancer, the
cancer programme of the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership. It is set
out in eight domains reflecting a combination of the five key areas for change set out in
Taking Charge and the six key workstreams of the national cancer strategy.

Much of the work set out in the plan will be delivered by the current and proposed Greater
Manchester Cancer infrastructure. A substantial part of the plan in 2016/17 and 2017/18 is
part of the vanguard innovation programme and funded by NHS England’s New Care Models
Team.

Greater Manchester Transformation funding will be sought to deliver other key parts of the
programme and, if appropriate, to roll out successful pilots from the vanguard innovation
programme beyond 2017/18.

GREATER MANCHESTER CANCER PLAN: “ACHIEVING WORLD-CLASS CANCER
OUTCOMES: TAKING CHARGE IN GREATER MANCHESTER 2017-2021”

Vision and key objectives:

1)  We will reduce adult smoking rates to 13% by 2020;

2)  We will increase one-year survival to more than 75% by 2020;

3)  We will prevent 1,300 avoidable cancer deaths before 2021;

4) We will offer class-leading patient experience, consistently achieving an average
overall rating of 9/10 in the national survey from 2018;

5)  We will consistently exceed the national standard for starting treatment within 62 days
of urgent cancer referral;

6) We will ensure that the Recovery Package is available to all patients reaching
completion of treatment by 2019.

Domains:

There are eight domains within the Greater Manchester plan; reflecting a combination of the
five key areas for change set out in ‘Achieving world-class cancer outcomes: Taking
charge in Greater Manchester 2017-2021’ and the six key work streams of the National
Cancer Strategy.

Living with and
beyond cancer and
supportive care

Earlier and better Improved and

Prevention diagnosis standardised care

Commissioning, provision and accountability

Patient experience and user involvement

Research

AYC: L\




3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

CANCER IN TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP

A detailed summary of local cancer experience received by T&G Single Commissioning
Board in June 2017 is included as appended.

In 2016 Cancer was the main cause of death in 15.6% of the population in Tameside and
Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group (331 out of 2,119 total deaths).

Maln Causes of Death In Tameslde & Glossop 2016

Eoures: FOAD (Numbeor includ=d ams bosed om gmimany mwas gf deathy

i bActal B Behavloural D sorders
T

jast OTHER 22
Bleed DIGESTIVE
OTHER 25 72
26

Bowel Alcoholic
DD“;‘:""" Liver Diseass

11

101 \

ventricular Failure

REMAL
54

Total Deaths
Tameside &
Glossop
2,119

17 Disease s of the Nervous System

RESPIRATOR

657

EMTERMAL CALSES

\ PROSTATE

SELF HARIM FaLLS BOWEL

Live f Pancreas)
OTHER Gall BEladder

EREAST

In Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group all of the following were higher than
the NHSE average:

e incidence of cancer;

mortality rates;

under 75 years of age mortality;

number of deaths from cancers considered preventable;

adult smoking rates.

The majority of the time we are achieving the operational waiting times standards (93%
within 2 week waits, 96% within 31 days and 85% within 62 days).

NHS Right Care data highlights areas for improvement where we were worse than our
average 10 Clinical Commissioning Group equivalents including:

e Screening uptake;

Smoking;

Spend on primary care prescribing;

Waiting times for endoscopy;

Liver disease.

The report to Single Commissioning Board concludes that the following areas need to be
considered as part of an ongoing improvement process and incorporated into the local
response to cancer:

e What else can we do to detect Cancer earlier and raise public awareness through
national and local campaigns?

Page 206



¢ How do we reduce emergency presentations (impact on non-elective admissions)?
e Role of Primary Care e.g. Use of e-referrals and EMIS templates.
e Improve access e.g. Straight to Test Colonoscopy, new lung pathway, bowel prep issued
within primary care .
e Ensure access to services is equitable.
¢ Planning, demand and Capacity.
- Impact of Locum staff e.g. new rules IR35.
- How do we reduce the number of DNAs?
- Learning from breach analysis.
- Support within the community.
- Data shows Length of Stay in hospital is greater than comparative CCGs.
- Care planning, data shows we only prepare 32.5% of after care plans
- How do we improve patient experience?

4.0 TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP RESPONSE

4.1 Vision and key objectives

GM Cancer Plan key objective | Tameside and Glossop current

position
1. We will reduce adult smoking Current downward trend of up to 2% per
rates to 13% by 2020 year. 22.1% in 2016.

2. We will increase one-year survival | One year survival from cancer is improving
to more than 75% by 2020 year on year but is lower that the NHSE
average (70.2%) at 67.6% in 2013. When
comparing to 10 similar CCGS two were
lower than T&G CCG.

3. We will prevent 1,300 avoidable 331 cancer deaths in T&G in 2016. Aim to
cancer deaths before 2021 avoid 130 deaths in T&G by 2021.

4. We will offer class-leading patient | Cancer patient experience rating 8.9 for
experience, consistently achieving T&GICFT and 8.8 for T&GCCG for 2016
an average overall rating of 9/10 in (England 8.7).

the national survey from 2018

5. We will consistently exceed the Better than the NHSE average (82.2%) for

national standard for starting GP referral to first definitive treatment within
treatment within 62 days of urgent 62 days in Q1 16/17. When comparing to 10
cancer referral similar CCGS all were lower.

6. We will ensure that the Recovery | T&G ICFT made a successful bid to
Package is available to all patients Macmillan for 2 year funding for a 3 member
reaching completion of treatment by | team to support local implementation of the
2019 Recovery Package.

4.2 To date the Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board has:

e audited local working position and outlined actions required to meet the Locality
Specific actions;

o Agreed terms of reference and membership of Greater Manchester Cancer Plan local
working group to further progress the plan that will meet on a monthly basis;

Page 207



4.2

4.3

3.3

3.4

4.0
4.1

4.2

e assigned a Care Together Project Manager who started to develop a project plan;

e progressed the development of the Locality specific plan;
established Task and Finish Groups for each of the work streams identified within the
plan to oversee the implementation of Locality Specific actions with these work streams:

Prevention and Earlier & Better Diagnosis (lead - Gideon Smith)

Living With and Beyond Cancer (lead - Carol Diver )

Improved & Standardised Care (lead — Susi Penney)

Patient Experience & User Involvement (lead - David Banks)

Commissioning & Accountability (lead - Alison Lewin)

Research & Education — (lead Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board)

O O O O O O

Going forward the Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board will be kept informed of progress
by the Steering Group with any areas of concern escalated as appropriate.

Greater Manchester and Tameside and Glossop governance for Greater Manchester
Cancer Plan implementation:

Care Together
Programme Board

Joint Management
Team

Greater Manchester Cancer
Board

Programme Leads meeting

Cancer Steering Group

Preventlon f Earller Uvin g with & Improved & Patlent experlence
& better dlagnosks beyond cancer standardised care & uzer Involvement Commissloning & Research &
WiorkstreamLead — WarkstresmLaad — ‘Workstr=am Lesd — WorkstresmLaad — accountablity Educatlon
Gidean Smith Suzannsh Pennsy Susannah Penney Did Banks

A detailed working action plan has been developed by the project manager to support the
work of the local working group, and progress is reported to T&G Cancer Board.

Appendix 1 and 2 provide an update on the current local position and next steps required to
deliver the contributions required in the Locality specific plan.

LOCAL HIGHLIGHTS

Prevention and Earlier and Better Diagnosis

Tobacco Control: Smoking is a significant challenge locally, but good progress is being
made with year on year reductions for adults, young people and pregnant women. And the
Tameside Tobacco Alliance is an effective partnership driving the HWBB Turning the Curve
ambition to reduce local smoking prevalence.

Page 208



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

412

4.13

5.0

5.1

Cancer Champions Social Movement: The GM lead for this programme is Ben Gilchrist,
Deputy Chief Executive of Action Together in Tameside and a HWBB member, and this
connection provides additional impetus to local activity. Action Together and Be Well
Tameside have previously worked together on a Macmillan funded project to recruit and
support community volunteers, and there is strong local expertise and commitment to
enable this vision.

Promoting Screening: the Bowel Cancer Screening Programme for Tameside, Stockport
& Trafford includes a shared Health Improvement Practitioner for Tameside and Glossop
who leads and coordinates the local promotion of bowel cancer screening. T&G Primary
Care Delivery and Improvement Group have an Quality Improvement Initiative for cancer
screening.

T&G Cancer Early Detection Network: This group links local stakeholders including:
Public Health, Be Well Tameside, Bowel Cancer Screening Team, Cancer Research UK,
workplace health, Macmillan GP, CCG commissioner, Tameside Macmillan Centre and
Action Together. It enables coordination and joint working, and its members will be key to
the development of the social movement, symptom awareness and improving screening
uptake.

Cancer Waiting Times: Local good performance is built on sustained concerted effort of
clinical teams to continuously improve pathways and protocols. Plans for further
developments to reduce waits for complex and high volume pathways in step with GM
pathway work is in hand locally.

Living With and Beyond Cancer

Recovery Package: T&G ICFT made a successful bid to Macmillan for 2 year funding for a
3 member team to support local implementation of the Recovery Package.

Improved and Standardised Care

Lymphoedema service: T&G has had an award winning service in place for several years,
and is very well placed to extend this in line with GM aspiration.

GM Clinical Pathways: T&G cancer patients receive much of their care from a range of
providers across GM, and efficient pathways are critical for good outcomes. Local clinicians
are actively involved in the development and local implementation of these pathways.

Patient Experience and User Involvement

T&G Macmillan Unit: This recently opened facility at Tameside Hospital includes a
dedicated team member with a remit for user and community engagement, as well as an
information centre. The Unit is very well placed to support the development of the Recovery
Package, patient engagement and Cancer Champion recruitment and support.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2021
By 2021 in Tameside and Glossop, in line with the GM vision we will have:

o reduced smoking in adults, young people and pregnant women
o increased one year survival

Page 209



reduced the number of preventable deaths from cancer
improved patient experience

improved waiting times

introduced the Recovery Package

o O O O

52 In addition the Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board will have overseen and coordinated a
programme of developments and transformation that addresses the actions for CCGs and
Provider Trust prioritised in the GM Cancer Plan, including:

growth of a GM Cancer Champions Social Movement
increased uptake of screening

expanded lympoedema service

adoption of standard GM system-wide pathways

optimised multi -disciplinary team processes

adoption of optimal GM tumour specific service specifications
7 day specialist palliative care advice and assessment
choice in end of life care

shared digital palliative and end of life care records

patient self-referral

stratified follow pathways of care

service user involvement in continuous development of services
access to clinical nurse specialists

integrated acute oncology service

primary care education platform

O 0O 000 OO O O o0 O o0 O O O

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 As detailed on the front of this report.

Page 210



The table below provides an update on the contributions

APPENDIX 1

TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS AND ACTION PAPER

required from Clinical

Commissioning Groups to meet the level of ambition across Greater Manchester; these will
be developed further and incorporated into the Locality specific plan.

What do we need to do? - Update on the local position and next steps | When

required.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis

1 Strengthen existing tobacco controls and smoking cessation services, | By March
in line with reducing smoking prevalence to below 13% nationally 2020

¢ Implement locality requirements outlined in the Greater Manchester
tobacco control plan (expected April 2017).

o Ensure effective and accessible locality based smoking cessation
services are in place.

Local Actions required

e Raise awareness of lifestyle risk factors and change behaviour.
e Help people to understand their individual risk of cancer.
o Deliver lifestyle-based secondary prevention.

Local Current Position

o Be Well Tameside provides a person-centred, holistic service which
is flexible and responsive to the needs of local people. The service
operates on 3 levels.

o Support for multiple lifestyle issues (e.g. improving the quality of
diet and nutrition, stopping smoking, reducing alcohol intake,
increasing physical activity).

o Community Liaison, outreach and capacity building. The
service works with residents, groups and organisations to
promote Health and Wellbeing and encourage greater access to
Be Well Tameside services.

o Training and Learning and Development. Be Well Tameside
offers a health and wellbeing training programme to enhance
and develop the competencies and skills of the wider public
health workforce across organisations and the community. The
training programme this year will include, Making Every Contact
Count, Brief Advice/lntervention, Stop Smoking, Weight
Management, Oral Health and other health related subjects.

e Glossop has a newly commissioned Smoking Cessation service run
by Derbyshire County Council/ Public Health.

e Tameside are in their first year of a 3 year contract with Be Well
(Pennine Care) who provides smoking cessation services for
Tameside.

Next Steps

e Delivery model of lifestyle-based secondary prevention developed
as part of new aftercare pathways by April 2018

¢ Identify areas for Improvement.

e Social care assessments for all age groups (lifestyle interventions
that would impact positively on a family/individual) Youth and young

Page 211




APPENDIX 1

adults 16+ (12 years + for smoking support)
e Consider innovative ideas to use Apps, software and website design
for an interactive experience.

e Greater Manchester population health plan produced by January
2017

e Greater Manchester tobacco control plan produced by April 2017
e Online tool for the assessment of individual risk of cancer available
to people in Greater Manchester by September 2017.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis

2 Work in partnership with local Voluntary Community and Social | By March
Enterprise (VSCE) sectors to test a GM wide social movement | 2019
focused on cancer prevention

Local Actions required
¢ Create a citizen-led social movement

Local Current Position

e The local Cancer Early Detection Network links local stakeholders
including: public health, Be Well, Bowel Cancer Screening Team,
Cancer Research UK, workplace health, Macmillan GP, CCG
commissioner, Tameside Macmillan Centre.

e Be Well Tameside provide a training package on cancer symptom
awareness for staff and volunteers in Tameside. Be Well are also
recruiting and supporting volunteers, including some who are
trained in cancer symptom awareness.

e The Be Well service is a legacy from the Macmillan funded
Community Cancer Awareness Project.

Next Steps
o Early Detection Network to oversee implementation plan.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis

3 Oversee roll out primary care prescribing of drugs to prevent | By May
breast cancer, subject to GM business case agreement 2017

Local Actions required
e Prescribe drugs that are effective in preventing cancers.

Local Current Position

¢ Medicines Management Committee has had oversight of prescribing
to date and this role will be picked up by the new Joint Medicines
Optimisation Committee.

Next Steps

e Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group Joint
Medicines Optimisation Committee carry out Assessment of
evidence of effectiveness of drugs to prevent breast cancer and
business cases agreed by May 2017.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis

4 Improve access to, and uptake of, three national cancer screening
programmes (bowel, breast, and cervical) and ensure a locality
contribution to the overall GM targets of:

Page 212




APPENDIX 1

e Achieve bowel cancer screening uptake (FIT and scope) of 75% By March
¢ Increase cervical screening coverage to 80% 2020
e Increase breast screening coverage by 10% to 75% Eggl\famh

Local Actions required

e Enhance cancer screening

¢ Increase public awareness of screening, and cancer signs and
symptoms

e Make the Manchester Cancer Improvement Programme lung health
check available to all if successful

¢ Pilot patient self-referral.

Local Current Position

e The local Cancer Early Detection Network links local stakeholders
including: public health, Be Well, Bowel Cancer Screening Team,
Cancer Research UK, workplace health, Macmillan GP, CCG
commissioner, Tameside Macmillan Centre.

e Be Well Tameside provide a training package on cancer symptom
awareness for staff and volunteers in Tameside. Be Well also recruit
and support volunteers, including some who are trained in cancer
symptom awareness.

e The Be Well service is a legacy from the Macmillan funded
Community Cancer Awareness Project.

¢ Pilot for Lung Cancer screening programme within Manchester
Macmillan Cancer Improvement Partnership provided by University
Hospital of South Manchester.

Next Steps

e FIT in use in bowel screening programme by April 2018

e HPV testing in cervical screening programme implemented by April
2018

e Bowel scope programme for 55 year old in place by April 2020

e Breast screening improvement trial reports findings in May 2017

e Bowel and cervical screening improvement trials report findings in
October 2017

e Health equity profiles to identify areas of low screening uptake
produced by July 2017

e Be Clear on Cancer branded campaign to promote bowel screening,
January-March 2017

e Decision on implementation of MCIP lung health check across
Greater Manchester by May 2017.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis, Improved and standardised Care,
Commissioning, provision and accountability and Patient experience and user
involvement.

5 Improve one-year survival rates to achieve 75%. By March

e Deliver a year-on-year improvement in the proportion of cancers 2020
diagnosed at stage one and stage two — )
o Agree data collection trajectories with providers to ensure | April 2017
robust and timely staging data collection onwards
o Work in partnership with local Voluntary Community and
Social Enterprise (VSCE) sectors to raise awareness of the | By March
signs and symptoms of cancer and encourage earlier 2020

Page 213




APPENDIX 1

presentation and advice seeking

By
e Reduce the proportion of cancers diagnosed following an | December
emergency admission 2017

o Contribute towards a GM reduction in the proportion of
cancers that are diagnosed as an emergency to below 18%

o Implement strategies for all patients diagnosed as an | By March
emergency to have their cases looked at through a | 2018
Significant Event Audit

Drive earlier diagnosis by:

¢ Implementing NICE referral guidelines
o Ensuring primary care adherence to use of updated
standardised suspected cancer referral process and forms
o Support a GM approach to training and education for
primary care professionals on cancer symptoms and referral
processes
o Ensuring local provision of GP direct access to key investigative
tests for suspected cancer

Local Actions required

o Greater Manchester Cancer Volunteers — Raising awareness and
Changing Behaviour

o Implement the NICE suspected cancer referral guidelines

Improve adherence to NICE suspected cancer referral guidelines

Support pathway-specific efforts to deliver earlier and better

diagnosis

Encourage Serious Event Audits (SEA)

Develop rapid cancer investigation units

Pilot patient self-referral

Reduce diagnostic waiting times

Contribute to regional improvements in diagnostic services

Agree data collection strategies to ensure robust and timely staging

data collection.

Local Current Position

o GP TARGET sessions held in 2016 and 2017 .

e Support available to Practices to reduce any variation

o New GM wide referral proformas developed by ST & Macmillan GP
colleagues in collaboration with MC pathway board clinical leads.

¢ New e-referral templates installed on practice systems.
SEA of all emergency presentations to identify any key themes

o ACE wave 2 Pilot of one-stop-diagnostic clinic for patients with non-
specific symptoms at UHSM and PAHT from Jan 2017.

Next Steps

e GP use of updated standardised suspected cancer referral process
and forms audited by June 2017 (Brain and sarcomas to follow)

e Use of standardised suspected cancer referral process extended to
other referrers by January 2018

e Study into the impact of feedback on GP referral behaviour reports
findings by September 2017

Page 214




APPENDIX 1

¢ Regional haematological malignancy diagnostic service in place by

January 2018

¢ Regional jaundice pathway for pancreatic cancer in place by
January 2018

o Regional optimal lung cancer pathway implemented by January
2018

e Standardised approach to prostate cancer diagnosis agreed and
implemented by January 2018

o Standardised approach to one-stop unexplained vaginal bleeding
clinics by August 2018

¢ Pilot of straight-to-test pathway for colorectal cancer by October

2017

o Sector MDT model in colorectal cancer fully implemented by
September 2017

¢ Pilot of streamlined oesophago-gastric cancer diagnostic pathway
by January 2018

e Current provision of breast one-stop triple assessment clinics
audited and plan developed by September 2017
Non-specific but concerning symptoms clinic pilots start March 2017

e Faster pathways in Bolton for lung, colorectal and oesophago-
gastric cancers by May 2017

e Share learning on faster pathways locally and nationally by
December 2017

o Workshop to commence regional radiology development
programme by March 2017

e Proposal for regional cellular pathology development programme
produced by September 2017.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis, Improved and standardised Care, Living
with and beyond cancer, and supportive care, Commissioning, provision and
accountability and Patient experience and user involvement.

7 Work with providers, clinical pathway boards, people affected by cancer | By June
and other stakeholders to develop and agree a co-produced cancer | 2107
patient access charter

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis, Improved and standardised Care,
Commissioning and provision and accountability.

8 Commission sufficient capacity to ensure 85% of patients continue to | By March
meet the 62 day cancer waiting time standard. 2018

Work towards achievement of the 28-day faster diagnosis standard.
Ensure sufficient capacity for timed pathways for lung and HPB to | By March

deliver a 2019
¢ 50-day standard 0 b
42- tandard ecember
. ay standar: 2017
_ _ December
Local Actions required 2018

e Reduce diagnostic waiting times
e Contribute to regional improvements in diagnostic services
o Speed up pathways to treatment

Local Current Position
e Consistently achieving the 62 day standard.

Page 215




APPENDIX 1

Next Steps

e Faster pathways in Bolton for lung, colorectal and oesophago-
gastric cancers by May 2017

e Share learning on faster pathways locally and nationally by
December 2017

o Workshop to commence regional radiology development
programme by March 2017

o Proposal for regional cellular pathology development programme
produced by September 2017

e 50-day pathway in place in identified tumour types by December
2017

e 42-day pathway in place in identified tumour types by December
2018

e System in place to report average and range of waiting times for all
pathways by April 2017

o Identify priority pathways by April 2017

Improved and standardised Care and Commissioning, provision and accountability.

9 Work collaboratively to develop a commissioning plan for an integrated | By October
acute oncology service for implementation in 2018 2017

Local Actions required

o Deliver an integrated acute oncology service
o Lead oncology patient safety translational research

Next Steps

¢ Commissioning plan for integrated acute oncology service by
October 2017

o Agreed model for integrated acute oncology service implemented
by October 2018

Improved and standardised Care and, Commissioning, provision and accountability.

10 | Work collaboratively to develop and commission comprehensive | By March
lymphoedema services 2020

Local Actions required
¢ Commission a comprehensive lymphoedema service

Local Current Position
o T&G ICFT lymphoedema service available

Next Steps

e Sustainable lymphoedema service by March 2020

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis, Improved and standardised Care, Living
with and beyond cancer, and supportive care, Commissioning, provision and
accountability and Patient experience and user involvement.

11 | Work with clinical pathway boards, hospital providers, people affected | To a
by cancer and other stakeholders to develop and agree an optimal | timetable to

Greater Manchester specification for each tumour type. be set by
Greater

GM Led approach. Manchester
Cancer

Page 216




APPENDIX 1

Local Current Position

¢ Living With and Beyond Cancer group and End Of Life Strategy
Group progressing.
e Annual Dying Matters events organised.

Local Actions required

e Ensure access to seven-day specialist palliative care advice and
assessment

o Deliver choice in end of life care

¢ Ensure that shared digital palliative and end of life care records are
rolled out

Next Steps

e A detailed map of specialist palliative care provision against
national standards and competencies by March 2018

¢ An innovative economic modelling proposal for the delivery of a
seven-day specialist palliative care advice and assessment by
March 2018

¢ Qualitative and quantitative evaluation tools to measure the impact
of seven-day specialist palliative care advice and assessment
services agreed by March 2018

¢ Dying Matters Coalition events across Greater Manchester by May
2018

Improved and standardised Care, Living with and beyond cancer, and supportive
care, Commissioning, provision and accountability and Patient experience and user
involvement.

12 | Lead the implementation of the Recovery Package through: Toa
A. A contribution to the development of a standard Greater | timetable to
Manchester approach, and be set by
B. Building the delivery of each of the Recovery Packages | Greater
elements into commissioning specifications Manchester
Cancer

GM led approach

Ensure all parts of the Recovery package are available to patients
including:
A. Holistic Needs Assessment and Care Plan at diagnosis and end
of treatment
B. Treatment Summary is sent to GP at end of treatment
C. Cancer Care Review completed by GP within 6 months of
cancer diagnosis

Local Actions required

Commission the Recovery Package

Develop new aftercare pathways

Explore supported patient decision-making in progressing disease
Improve access to psychological support

Support people with long-term consequences of treatment

Earlier integration of supportive care into cancer care

Local Current Position

e Actively support Greater Manchester Recovery Package
Implementation Group to agree standardised approach within

Page 217




APPENDIX 1

region by August 2017

o Facilitate a scoping exercise to understand what treatments are
provided locally

e Explore the introduction of an electronic holistic needs assessment.

Next Steps

e Standardised Greater Manchester approach to the Recovery
Package agreed by August 2017

o Full Recovery Package available to all patients reaching completion
of treatment by March 2019

e All patients receive a care plan at the point of diagnosis and
treatment decision, and at the end of their treatment, based on
holistic needs assessments, by December 2017

¢ Health and wellbeing events in place for all breast, colorectal and
prostate cancer patients to support new aftercare pathways by
March 2018, with models for other pathways developed by March
2019

e All patients receive a care plan at the point of diagnosis and
treatment decision, and at the end of their treatment, based on
holistic needs assessments, by December 2017

¢ Health and wellbeing events in place for all breast, colorectal and
prostate cancer patients to support new aftercare pathways by
March 2018, with models for other pathways developed by March
2019

e Full Recovery Package available to all patients reaching completion
of treatment by March 2019

¢ New aftercare pathways defined and implemented for all breast,
colorectal and prostate patients by March 2018

¢ New aftercare pathways pilots begin in further tumour types by
March 2019

e (Goals of Care tool tested in appropriate clinics at The Christie from
March 2017
Goals of Care tool pilot extended to other sites by March 2018

¢ Role of regional psychological support clinical group formalised by
June 2017

e Psychological support clinical group to produce plan for improved
access to psychological support by October 2017

¢ Potential consequences of treatment mapped by pathway by June
2017

o Assessment of current consequences of treatment expertise in
Greater Manchester by June 2017

e Action plan to address any gap in support for consequences of
treatment by September 2017

o Enhanced supportive care outpatient clinic piloted at the Christie
centre at the Royal Oldham by April 2018.

Prevention, Earlier and better diagnosis, Improved and standardised Care, Living
with and beyond cancer, and supportive care, Commissioning, provision and
accountability and Patient experience and user involvement.

13 | Ensure patients have access to Greater Manchester Cancer agreed
stratified follow up pathways of care for

o Breast cancer By March
o Prostate and Colorectal cancer 2018

Page 218




APPENDIX 1

Next Steps

Current provision of breast one-stop triple assessment clinics
audited and plan developed by September 2017

Health and wellbeing events in place for all breast, colorectal and
prostate cancer patients to support new aftercare pathways by
March 2018, with models for other pathways developed by March
2019

New aftercare pathways defined and implemented for all breast,
colorectal and prostate patients by March 2018

New aftercare pathways pilots begin in further tumour types by
March 2019

Goals of Care tool tested in appropriate clinics at The Christie from
March 2017

By March
2019

Improved and standardised Care, Living with and beyond cancer, and supportive
care, Commissioning, provision and accountability and Patient experience and user
involvement.

14 | Work with providers, clinical pathway boards, people affected by cancer

and other stakeholders to develop and agree system-wide follow-up
protocols and create a timetable for offering stratified follow up
arrangements dependent on risk.

Greater Manchester approach.
Refer to point 12 above.

By
September
2017

Improved and standardised Care, Living with and beyond cancer, and supportive
care, Commissioning, provision and accountability and Patient experience and user
involvement.

15 | Ensure all patients have access to a clinical nurse specialist or other

key worker

Local Cancer Nurse specialists working across all Tumour pathways.

By
December
2017

Page 219




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

TAMESIDE AND GLOSSOP INTEGRATED CARE ORGANISATION INTENTIONS AND
ACTION PAPER

The table below provides an update on the contributions required by provider trust (T&G
ICO) to meet the level of ambition across Greater Manchester; these will be developed
further and have been incorporated into the Local Delivery Plan.

What do we need to do? - Update on the local position and next steps | When
required.

1 Deliver a year-on-year improvement in the proportion of cancers | By June
diagnosed at stage one and stage two — 2017

o Work with commissioners to agree data collection
trajectories to ensure robust and timely staging data
collection

Local Actions Required

e Greater Manchester Cancer Volunteers — Raising awareness and
Changing Behaviour

Implement the NICE suspected cancer referral guidelines

Improve adherence to NICE suspected cancer referral guidelines
Support pathway-specific efforts to deliver earlier and better diagnosis
Encourage Serious Event Audits (SEA)

Develop rapid cancer investigation units

Pilot patient self-referral

Reduce diagnostic waiting times

Contribute to regional improvements in diagnostic services

Agree data collection strategies to ensure robust and timely staging data
collection.

Local Current Position

e Work in progress within the Trust to improve access times and
introduction of straight to test referral pathways

e Local Be Clear on Cancer roadshows promoted within T&G

¢ In additional to existing performance management mechanisms within
the Trust, a dashboard has been developed to track and monitor
performance against 6 KPIs of the GM Cancer Plan

¢ New straight to test pathway in place for Lung Cancer — SOP being
tested and refined

Next Steps

o Refine new straight to test lung pathway and incorporate lessons learnt
e Introduce more straight to test pathways into endoscopy
e Implement straight to test for breast cancer pathway

Reduce the proportion of cancers diagnosed following an | By
emergency admission December

e Support primary care implementation strategies for all | 2017
patients diagnosed as an emergency to have their cases
looked at through a Significant Event

Page 221




APPENDIX 2

Local Actions Required

e Audit of patients diagnosed with CA following an emergency
presentation, including data from across the whole clinical pathway.

e Analysis of the data provided from the Diagnosed with CA following
Emergency presentation audit, assess the key reasons for the late
presentation in to the specialist services.

e Establishment of cross care working group to develop an Action Plan and
implement.

Encourage the use of the Gateway C programme throughout the ICO FT.

e In cooperation with local community and religious leaders develop a
stagey for highlighting of the cancer agenda to the harder to reach
communities, including symptom awareness.

Local Current Position

e Information has been gathered to allow for the audit of patients
diagnosed with CA following Emergency presentation

e Gateway C has been developed and is being fed out through GP forums.

Next Steps

e Full Audit to take place of the patients diagnosed with CA following
Emergency presentation

e Establishment of a cross care working group.

o |dentification of the local and religious leaders and establishment of the
cross cutting group.

Enable the delivery of the system-wide pathways to diagnosis | By
and treatment set by clinical pathway boards, with a focus on | December
streamlining the patient journey. 2017

Local Actions Required

e Adoption of the timed tumour site specific pathways provided by the GM
Cancer Pathway Boards.

Introduce direct access for relevant pathways i.e. Breast lumps.

Introduce Straight to diagnostics where clinically appropriate.

Introduce ‘One Stop’ models where clinically appropriate.

Develop a capacity and demand model for all events in a cancer pathway
to ensure that diagnostics can be performed and reported within the time
frames expected.

Local Current Position

e Development work started on direct access to the Breast Service.

e Straight to test colonoscopies are in place for patients referred with a
suspicion of colon cancer.

e Straight to test is in place for patients referred with a suspicion of lung
cancer.

e One stop model is in place for patients referred with a suspicion of breast
cancer.

Next Steps

e Develop working groups for each tumour site where STT or one stop
model in not in place to assess the appropriateness of introducing one or
the other.

Page 222




APPENDIX 2

e Development of a capacity and demand tool for all events in each cancer
pathway.

Support pathway board efforts to review the pathway MDT | By
processes and standardise the approach to streamline the MDT | December
discussions in routine cases and create more time for complex | 2017
case discussion. Explore sector based and GM based MDT
approaches.

Local Actions Required

o Identify the Tumour site specific MDT’s that would benefit from a sector/
specialist MDT model.

o Develop working relationships with other Providers to establish what links
are required for sector/ specialist MDT’s.

e Develop and implement a model for ‘Paperlite’ MDT’s with the use of
electronic systems for all information required for discussions.

Local Current Position

e Number of MDT’s are linked to specialist MDT’s i.e. UGI, HPB and Lung

e Work underway to link LGI to Stepping Hill in line with the Healthier
together programme.

Next Steps

o Development of the plans for ‘Paperlite’ MDT’s with clinical teams and
exploration of the electronic solutions to provide relevant data.

e Review of all local MDT’s to assess for opportunities to join specialist
MDT’s where possible.

Ensure 85% of patients continue to meet the 62-day cancer | By March

waiting time standard. 2018
Work towards achievement of the 28-day faster diagnosis | By March
standard. 2019
Ensure sufficient capacity for timed pathways for lung and HPB | December
to deliver a 2017
e 50-day standard December
e 42-day standard 2018

Local Actions Required

¢ Reduce diagnostic waiting times
o Contribute to regional improvements in diagnostic services
e Speed up pathways to treatment

Local Current Position

e Trust consistently achieves the 62 day standard of 85% (91.3% for Qtr 1
of 16/17)

o New Lung cancer pathway introduced in June 2017 — performance data
to be validated

Next Steps

o Working with relevant stakeholders from across the health economy
consider pathway redesign work to meet new standards for speedier

Page 223




APPENDIX 2

diagnosis and pathway delivery

Work with commissioners, clinical pathway boards, people | Toa
affected by cancer and other stakeholders to develop and agree | timetable to
an optimal Greater Manchester specification for each tumour | be set by
type. Greater
Manchester
GM led approach - awaiting progress and update prior to further local | Cancer
actions
Local Actions Required
¢ Living With and Beyond Cancer group and End Of Life Strategy Group
progressing.
¢ Annual Dying Matters events organised.
Local Current Position
e Ensure access to seven-day specialist palliative care advice and
assessment
e Deliver choice in end of life care
e Ensure that shared digital palliative and end of life care records are rolled
out
Next Steps
e A detailed map of specialist palliative care provision against national
standards and competencies by March 2018
e Aninnovative economic modelling proposal for the delivery of a seven-
day specialist palliative care advice and assessment by March 2018
e Qualitative and quantitative evaluation tools to measure the impact of
seven-day specialist palliative care advice and assessment services
agreed by March 2018
e Dying Matters Coalition events across Greater Manchester by May 2018
Support the implementation of the Recovery Package through: Toa
e A contribution to the development of a standard Greater timetable to
Manchester approach, and be set by
¢ Enabling all clinical teams to deliver each of its elements Greater
Manchester
Cancer

Local Actions Required

o Consolidate current local practises in order to be ready for full
implementation of the Recovery Package: written care plans based on
holistic needs assessment; treatment summaries; cancer review in
primary care and offer of health and wellbeing events.

Local Current Position

e  Successful bid for Macmillan funding secured to recruit transformation
team to steer, drive and deliver Recovery Package by GM timetable (yet
to be agreed)

o Active engagement in GM Recovery Package Implementation Group with
two representatives from the Trust

e Await agreed standardised GM approach to inform local implementation
(standards expected by August 2017)

e Data sharing and hosting agreement signed for the implementation of
eHNAs based on the Macmillan model

Page 224




APPENDIX 2

Next Steps

¢ Recruitment process initiated to recruit living with and beyond cancer
transformation team. Forecast for 3 team members to be in post by
December 2017

¢ Implementation of eHNAs within the Trust

o Meeting with clinical nurse specialists planned for early Sept to assess
readiness and enablers required to support the full roll out of eHNAs

e  Once Tramformation Manager in post a detailed project plan will be
developed to drive full implementation

e Continue to support GM’s Recovery Package Implementation Group

7 Ensure Greater Manchester Cancer agreed stratified follow up | By March

pathways of care are in place for 2018
o Breast cancer By March
2019

e Prostate and Colorectal cancer

Local Actions Required

e Stratified breast cancer pathway
e Stratified prostate and colorectal cancer pathway

Next Steps

e Current provision of breast one-stop triple assessment clinics audited
and plan developed by September 2017

e Health and wellbeing events in place for all breast, colorectal and
prostate cancer patients to support new aftercare pathways by March
2018, with models for other pathways developed by March 2019

o New aftercare pathways defined and implemented for all breast,
colorectal and prostate patients by March 2018

o New aftercare pathways pilots begin in further tumour types by March
2019

e Goals of Care tool tested in appropriate clinics at The Christie from
March 2017

Improved and standardised Care and Commissioning, provision and accountability.

8 Work with commissioners, clinical pathway boards, people | By
affected by cancer and other stakeholders to develop and agree | September
system-wide follow-up protocols and create a timetable for | 2017
offering stratified follow up arrangements dependent on risk.

GM led approach

Local Actions Required
e See point (6) above

Next Steps
e See point (6) above

9 Work with commissioners, clinical pathway boards, people | By June
affected by cancer and other stakeholders to develop and agree | 2107
a co-produced cancer patient access charter

Local Actions Required

Page 225




APPENDIX 2

e Co-produced cancer patient access charter in place

Local Current Position

e Work on this action is behind schedule - draft patient access charter to
be developed and shared with stakeholder by September 2017

Next Steps
e Draft cancer patient access charter for discussion with service users in
September 2017

e Draft cancer patient access charter to be ratified by Cancer Steering
Group and Cancer Board October 2017

10

Ensure access to a CNS or other key worker for all cancer
patients through identifying gaps in access by pathway and
developing access improvement plans

Local Actions Required
o Ensure all cancer patients have access to a CNS or other key worker

Local Current Position

e 2016 Patient Survey results:-
e Patient given the name of the CNS who would support them through their
treatment — 97%

e Patient found it easy to contact their CNS 91%
e Get understandable answers to important questions all or most of the
time — 93%
e CNS present at diagnosis — 45% in 2016 against 34% in the same year
for Greater Manchester

Next Steps
e Audit current position to inform potential improvement work

By
December
2017

11

Maintain oversight and facilitate recruitment to the 100,000
Genome Project in appropriate eligible pathways.

Local Actions Required

e Development and implementation of local protocols for patient
recruitment
e Engagement with GM development

Local Current Position
¢ New initiative requiring engagement with GM development process

Next Steps
e GM development workshop scheduled

By March
2017

Page 226




Report to:
Date:

Officer of Single
Commissioning Board

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

How do proposals align with
Health & Wellbeing Strategy?

How do proposals align with
Locality Plan?

APPENDIX 3

SINGLE COMMISSIONING BOARD

28 June 2017
Clare Watson, Director of Commissioning

Angela Hardman, Director, Public Health
CANCER UPDATE

The purpose of this report is to inform the Board about a review of
cancer data to help inform the development of locality specific
actions to ensure we contribute to the ambitions set out within the
plan for Greater Manchester.

The Single Commissioning Board are asked to note the contents
of the report

Budget Allocation (if
Investment Decision)

No direct budget implications in
paper

CCG or
Allocation

TMBC Budget | N/A

Integrated Commissioning | N/A
Fund Section - 875,

Aligned, In-Collaboration

Decision Body - SCB
Executive Cabinet,

Governing Body

SCB,
CCG

Value For Money | N/A
Implications — e.g. Savings
Deliverable, Expenditure
Avoidance, Benchmark

Comparisons

Additional Comments

We note the data contained within this report. There are no
immediate direct financial implications in the report. But over
the longer term if we are able to improve outcomes for patients
without significant additional investment, there would be clear
alignment to the aspirations and goals of the Care Together
programme.

The purpose of this report is to ensure that the Board has
sufficient data and performance information to ensure that it is
allocating resources appropriately.

The proposals align with Starting Well, Developing Well, Living
Well, Working Well, Aging Well and Dying Well.

The proposals are consistent with Healthy Lives (early
intervention and prevention), Community development, Enabling

Page 227



How do proposals align with
the Commissioning
Strategy?

Recommendations / views of

the Professional Reference
Group:

Public and Patient
Implications:

Quality Implications:

How do the proposals help
to reduce health
inequalities?

What are the Equality and
Diversity implications?

What are the safeguarding
implications?

What are the Information
Governance implications?
Has a privacy impact
assessment been
conducted?

Risk Management:

Access to Information :

self-care, Locality based services, Urgent Integrated Care
Services and Planned care services strands of the Locality plan.

The work contributes to the Commissioning Strategy by:

e Empowering citizens and communities;

e Commission for the ‘whole person’;

e Create a proactive and holistic population health system.
In light of the information within this report the Board are asked to
endorse the approach taken in ensuring better outcomes for our
patients in terms of contributing to the level of ambition set for

preventing avoidable deaths, reducing variation and improving
experience.

The implications for Public and Patients are to aim to develop a
local plan that aims to prevent avoidable deaths, reduce variation
and improve experience.

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council is subject to the duty of
Best Value under the Local Government Act 1999, which requires
it to achieve continuous improvement in the delivery of its
functions, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.

This report will help us to understand the impact we are making to
reduce health inequalities to incorporate into the local plan.

The proposal will not affect protected characteristics groups
within the Equality Act.
Safeguarding will be central to the review /plan.

There are no information governance implications as part of the
review. No privacy impact assessment has been conducted.

No current risks identified

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Louise Roberts

&3 Telephone: 07342056005

fii e-mail: Louise.roberts@nhs.net

Page 228



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

BACKGROUND

NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group in partnership with Tameside
and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust are developing locality specific actions to
ensure we contribute to the ambitions set out within the plan for the Greater Manchester
Cancer Board and the cancer programme of the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership Strategic Partnership Board.

There are eight domains within the Greater Manchester plan; reflecting a combination of the
five key areas for change set out in ‘Achieving world-class cancer outcomes: Taking
charge in Greater Manchester 2017-2021° (each part of the system will be expected to
contribute and will be held to account) and the six key work streams of the National Cancer
Strategy.

icer and
supportive care

P i Earlier and better Improved and
Teyenton diagnosis standardised care

Commissioning, provision and accountability

Patient experience and user involvement

A substantial part of the plan in 2016/17 and 2017/18 is part of the vanguard innovation
programme and funded by NHS England’s New Care Models Team; this may be funded by
Transformation funding going forward. At a Greater Manchester and local level, work is
ongoing to meet the level of ambition with the aim of preventing avoidable deaths, reducing
variation and improving experience. Refer to Appendix 1 for the level of contribution
required from Provider Trusts and Appendix 2 for Clinical Commissioning Groups).

This report uses National, Greater Manchester and Local data to inform areas for
improvement which can be incorporated into the locality-specific actions that are currently
being developed within NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group.

The Greater Manchester Cancer Plan was received by Tameside Health and Wellbeing
Board on the 09 March 2017. The Tameside and Glossop Cancer Board, which is led by
T&G ICFT with membership from SCF, are currently developing a comprehensive
implementation plan. The contributions of the SCF to the plan are outlined in the timeline at
5.1 below.

Reporting into Board currently includes the Better Care Measures:
e One-year survival from all cancers;
e Proportion of people with Cancer diagnosed at an early stage;
e Cancer Patient experience;
e Cancer 2 week wait (2ww), Cancer 31 day wait and Cancer 62 day wait.

These need to be considered alongside measures that prevent incidence of cancer (e.g.
reducing smoking prevalence, lifestyle and activity), cancer screening programmes and
access to diagnostics along the pathway for patients.

Patients often have co-morbidities and we need to consider how we work across pathways in
partnerships; for example Right Care data shows that of 187 patients admitted for Cancer, 54
patients were admitted for Gastro Intestinal conditions, 48 for Respiratory Conditions, 39
Genito Urinary, 43 Poisoning and adverse effects and 31 for circulation.

Page 229



2. OVERVIEW

2.7 In 2016 Cancer was the main cause of death in 15.6% of the population in Tameside and
Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group (331 out of 2,119 total deaths).

Maln Causes of Death In Tameslde & Glossop 2016

Zoiree: FTAT [Mumbisns inslutieslsrs bnsssl n s rimany muas o SeaTh]

Bloed DIGESTIVE
72

RESPIRATOR

2.8 1n 2012/14 1,756 children in England were newly diagnosed with Cancer (less than 1% of all
cancers were in children) of these 257 died, 82% surviving five years and 91% one year. The
commonest childhood cancer is leukaemia. Other than age and genetics, there is very little
good evidence on risk factors that contribute to cancer in childhood. Statistics for childhood
cancers are not routinely published for Greater Manchester, the North West or Tameside.
Local data will be requested from the North West Local Cancer Intelligence Network and an
analysis of data will be incorporated into the developing plan.

2.9 In Tameside and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group all of the following were higher than
the NHSE average:
e incidence of cancer;

mortality rates;

under 75 years of age mortality;

number of deaths from cancers considered preventable;

adult smoking rates.

2.10 The majority of the time we are achieving the operational waiting times standards (93%
within 2ww, 96% within 31 days and 85% within 62 days).

2.11 We have a higher than average number of 2ww referrals than the NHS average for
suspected cancers per 100,000 of the population.

2.12 The conversion rate into diagnosed cancer is lower than the NHSE average but 2015/16 data
shows that we are starting to reduce the gap.

Page 230



2.13 While survival rates from cancer are increasing we have a relatively high number of cancers
detected late, with 20% of all cancers identified through emergency presentation (slightly
higher than NHSE average), and consequently reduced survival rates, compared to the
England average and other CCGs across Greater Manchester.

2.14

Therefore it is important to focus on prevention and early diagnosis of cancer and offer

support to reduce any variation across Tameside and Glossop CCG, for example screening
uptake within Tameside is lower than High Peak for Breast and we are outliers across
Greater Manchester for cancer screening for people with Learning disabilities.

3. HOW DO WE COMPARE?

3.1

NHS England Clinical Commissioning Group Improvement and Assessment Framework:

One year survival from cancer is improving year on year but is lower that the NHSE
average (70.2%) at 67.6% in 2013. When comparing to 10 similar CCGS two were lower
than T&G CCG.

Fewer cancers (45.2%) are detected at an early stage compared NHSE Average 50.7%
in 2014. When comparing to 10 similar CCGS one was lower.

Better than the NHSE average (82.2%) for GP referral to first definitive treatment within
62 days in Q1 16/17. When comparing to 10 similar CCGS all were lower.

Cancer patient experience is slightly lower than the National average in 2015.

3.2 Public Health NHSE Dashboard and trends :

Higher Incidence rate of cancers per 100,000 in 2014 at 647.82 compared to NHSE
608.3.

20.7% of Cancers are diagnosed through an emergency presentation (higher than
average and a good proxy measure).

Achieve the operational performance standards (2ww, 31 days and 62 days standard)
and better than the NHSE average; however our average 2ww for breast, lower Gl and
lung is higher than the NHSE average.

Worse than the NHSE Average (608.3) for Cancer Incidence and Mortality at 647.82 per
100,000, < 75 mortality, from cancers considered preventable and adult smoking rates
(21.7% 2015).

Breast Bowel Lung

Incidence rate per 100,000 -

NHSE 173.38

NHSE 70.43

NHSE 78.34

High Peak 77.4

High Peak 60.02

2014 (CCG) Tameside 148.52 | Tameside 78.43 | Tameside 121.8
Incidence rate per 100,000 — NHSE 21.21 NHSE 11.9 NHSE 33.26
<75 Mortality, 2014 (CCG) Tameside 25.35 Tameside 13.03 | Tameside 46.82
Screening uptake NHSE 75.4 NHSE 57.1

2015 (LA) % Tameside 68.4 Tameside 52 X

e Alignment to Local Authority level shows variation across tumour sites.

e Clinical Headline Data is also available by provider for Breast, Colorectal and Cervix.
e Higher than the NHS and GM average for In patient day case colonoscopy, upper Gl

endoscopy and sigmoidoscopy.

Page 231




In-patient or day-case colonoscopy procedures (Number per .
100,000 population) - NHS Tameside And Glossop CCG In-patient or day-case sigmoidoscopy procedures (Number per
100,000 population) - NHS Tameside And Glossop CCG In-patient or day-case upper Gl endoscopy procedures (Number per
100,000 population) - NHS Tameside And Glossop CCG

00,000
<

o000 o
cc—O""‘““"‘""A .——0—4/

009/10 2013/14 2015/16 3/1 2011/12 2013/14 2015/16 2009/1 2011/1 2013/14 2015/16

|

4@ England & England & England

Key: Light blue — Higher then NHSE and GM and Dark Blue — Lower than NHSE
and GM

3.3 Cancer Outcomes: Stage at Diagnosis and Emergency Presentations

Cancer metrics in NHS Tameside and Glossop (E38000182) compared to England

CCG population {201 5): 254 869

Proportion di d at ystage: NHS ide and Proportion of first hospital jiszions that are
Glossop, reference :England NHS Tame side and Glossop, refe rence :England

Select CCG ofinteresthere:
NHS Southwark o
MNHS 5t Helens. T8 TO%
NHS Staford and Sumounds
MNHS Stockport
MNHS Stoke on Trant B0% 60%
NHS Sunderland
NHS Sumey Downs.
NHS Sumey Hesth
NHS Sutton
NHE SA=|=

S0 8 & o °

g — .,

5

NHS Tdiord and \M=k|r

MG Thocos
Select reference areahere:

Proportionof pesors diagnosed

Pmportionof fist hos pitalad missions

iale, Wharkdale and Craven

- N 10% 10%

MNHS Aydesbuny Vale

MNHS Barking and Degenham

NHS Bamst 0% [ —_— — v

NHE Bamsley & T S oG & > oS o o -

NHS Basildon and Brentwood Qw\:é\ \-,“"’\ \:;5> _ﬁ-."\»\-\’g a“xo:s‘..’» Qgro' \-.“? \v&_&x"\’g\m‘) a”’fm\"’y &1.":\;\-0_ “;-.ip's;) “c.[ip?nbﬁ.;f" 0&-0(0\59’“;-.‘}@»%9 \S‘Q&w*&“‘i“n

NHS Ba;s:n,a\“m cartse LT T T & P AP P T

st meset
:g gﬂ dshire OQuarterly proportion —m=—1 year average —e— Reference proportion Quarteriy proportion —s—1 year average —e— Reference proportion
=

ne o Cocecrin

Guidance Quarer N; = Mo. Cases *® 1 yearaerage Quarter No. EF N M' ® 1 year avemEge

The CCG of interest can be selected above, along with a

refe rence CCG [orEngland as a whole)to compareit to. FYiiod 1z 258 4% - Frzotaad n 244 1% 2%
Fraomzan 123 275 &% - FY201321 # 343 24% 2%

The dlan.."tdileonﬂleleft shows the pmpnmonof FY2012-02 105 248 47% - Fy2013-Q02 ] 3am 24% 23%

cancer di [seedoc | that FrazQ3 11 240 £ LT FY201303 % 333 6% 4%
are diagnosed at stage 1or 2. Froizod 122 270 5% 5% Fyzoiiod & 323 25 6%
The dlarh'tdileonme right shows the proponwn of dl e e = < <3 HheE & sl 2 s
cancerdi +that are di dasan FYamaQz 130 283 % % FY201402 @ 384 26% %

emergency. FramaQ: 118 265 % % FY201403  ® 82 25% 26%
FY23Q4 128 2 % % FY201404 8 82 25% 25%

Finandal years are used throughout,ie. FY 201104 is FY201401 108 242 455 A% FY2015Q1 ol 219 25% 25%

lan-mar2012 Froi4Qz 108 250 43 5% Fyapisez & 327 18% 23%

* Exduding non-melnoma din ncer FYam4Q: 107 258 a% @ FY201503 I 20% 2%
FYon4Qd 142 284 % &% FY201504 8 3. 21% 21%
FY2015Q1 FY201621 @0 346 23% 21%

3.4 Health and care of people with learning disabilities:
e Data shows the number of eligible adults with Learning disabilities screened for cancer is
poor in Tameside and Glossop CCG compared to those with no Learning Disability and
we are outliers across Greater Manchester. Cervical 25%, Breast 33% and Bowel 48%.

3.5 NHS Right Care data highlights the following areas for improvement as we were worse than
our average 10 CCG equivalents in the following
e Breast cancer screening, emergency presentation of breast cancer and <75 Mortality
from breast cancer.
¢ Bowel cancer screening, < 75 mortality from colorectal cancers and cases of C.diff.

Page 232



3.6

41

o Number of successful 16+ quitters, Non elective spend on lung cancer, detection of lung
cancer at an early stage, lung detected at an early stage and <75 mortality from lung
cancer.

e Spend on Primary Care Prescribing.

e Lower Gl - 6 week waits for colonoscopy and rate of emergency colonoscopies.

e Upper Gl - 6 week waits for Gastroscopy and number of alcohol related hospital
admissions.

e Liver Disease Pathway — Alcohol specific hospital admissions, non-elective spend on
liver disease, alcoholic liver disease - emergency admissions, Liver cancer incidence and
<75 mortality from liver disease.

e The Right Care Focus data pack published in May 2016 suggested the additional
improvements areas: Cervical screening, LOS, Detecting bowel cancers at an early
stage, diagnostic and surgical procedures and Information provided following discharge.

e The Cancer focus pack was updated in April 2017 to include further possible
improvement areas: spend on non-elective admissions, total spend on Cancer, detecting
breast cancer at an early stage, rate of bed days and average number of days spent in
hospital as a result of an emergency admission for patients in their last year of life.

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care Foundation Trust presents a cancer performance
report to the Cancer Board. The report provides assurances that standards are being met,
includes exception reporting of any breaches, highlights any area of concerns and how they
will mitigate these. Information is available by tumour site and directorate pathways. The
December 2016 / January 2017 Board report showed 38 breaches year to date on the 62
day pathway, 24 were due to complex cases with co morbidities; 5 patient dis engagement, 4
Internal diagnostics, 2 multiple MDTs and treatment delays. The Trust will continue to review
capacity and demand.

CONSIDERATIONS

The development of locality-specific actions, currently being developed within NHS Tameside
and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group will support achievement of all the measures
identified in within ‘Achieving world-class cancer outcomes: Taking charge in Greater
Manchester 2017-2021’ and the six key work streams of the National Cancer Strategy. The
following areas need to be considered as part of an ongoing improvement process and
incorporated into the plan:

e What else can we do to detect Cancer earlier and raise Public awareness through
National and Local Campaigns?
¢ How do we reduce emergency presentations (impact on non-elective admissions)?
¢ Role of Primary Care e.g. Use of E Referrals and EMIS templates.
e Improve access e.g. STT Colonoscopy, New Lung pathway, Bowel prep issued within
Primary care etc.
e Ensure access to services are equitable.
¢ Planning, demand and Capacity.
- Impact of Locum staff e.g. new rules IR35.
- How do we reduce the number of DNAs?
- Learning from breach analysis.
- Support within the Community.
- Data shows LOS in hospital is greater than comparative CCGS.
- Care planning, data shows we only prepare 32.5% of after care plans
- How do we improve Patient experience?

Page 233



5. TIMELINE

5.1 The following Timeline details the development of the locality specific action plan.

DATE

PROGRESS OR ACTIONS REQUIRED

Early 2017

Greater Manchester (GM) Plan ratified on 24 February 2017.

March 2017

Introduction to GM plan to Health and Wellbeing Board on the 09 March 2017.

March 2017

Outcomes from local Cancer Board discussions on 29 March 2017:

Ongoing development of locality specific actions

Audit of Local working position and develop actions required to meet the
Locality Specific actions

Identified membership of GM Cancer Plan local working group to further
progress the plan.

March 2017

On 07 March 2017 established a GM Cancer Plan local working group that will
meet on a monthly basis.

April 2017

Review of Cancer data to highlight areas for consideration for inclusion within
the plan.

May 2017

GM Cancer Plan local working group:

O O O O O O

agreed Terms of Reference and governance process agreed by Cancer
Board on 19 May 2017
assigned a Care Together Project Manager who started to develop a
project plan
progressed the development of the Locality specific plan
Established Task and Finish Groups for each of the work streams
identified within the plan to oversee the implementation of Locality
Specific actions.
The work streams are:
Prevention and Earlier & Better Diagnosis (lead - Gideon Smith)
Living With and Beyond Cancer (lead - Carol Diver )
Improved & Standardised Care (lead — Susi Penney
Patient Experience & User Involvement (lead - David Banks)
Commissioning & Accountability (lead - Alison Lewin)
Research & Education — (lead Tameside and Glossop Cancer
Board)
Appendix 3 provides an update on the current local position and next
steps required to deliver the contributions required in the Locality specific
plan.

June 2017

Present update at Chairs Brief on 13 June 2017 and 28 June 2017

July 2017

Present update at Single Commissioning Board on 11 July 2017

July 2017 to
March 2021

GM Cancer Plan local working group
Board will be kept informed of progress with any areas of concern escalated as
appropriate.

6. RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 As set out at the front of the report.

Page 234




Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Iltem 11b

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Debbie Watson, Interim Assistant Director of Population
Health

TOBACCO FREE GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY

The Tobacco Free Greater Manchester Strategy sets out
our ambition to reduce smoking in our population by one
third by 2021. This will result in 115,000 fewer smokers,
supporting a tobacco free generation and ultimately helping
to make smoking history.

Ambitions within the strategy take account of targets within
the newly published Towards a smoke-free generation:
tobacco control plan for England. This will allow us to close
the gap with smoking prevalence in England, reducing
inequalities and saving thousands of lives and millions of
pounds.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to endorse the
Tobacco Free Greater Manchester strategy.

Tobacco Control links to all priority areas in the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy, in particular Living Well.

Tobacco is the leading preventable cause of cancer
worldwide. It is important to prioritise policy to ensure that
the Greater Manchester tobacco control implementation
plan is implemented in the Tameside.

The Public Health resource envelope within the Council
supports existing investment of £0.483m per annum in a
range of smoking cessation services. Any additional costs
arising from the implementation of the Tobacco Free
strategy will also be financed via this existing resource
envelope.

The cost of Non-Elective Admissions for respiratory related
illness is £2.2m per year in Tameside. A significant
proportion of this cost is linked to smoking related disease.

It is essential that the Tobacco Free Strategy is stringently
monitored to ensure cost reductions materialise as these
will also contribute towards the reduction of the existing and
projected financial gap across the local health and social
care economy.

The Council has a statutory duty in respect of public health
and to deliver any services which are value for money in line
with the NHS Constitution. It is important that any
interventions are evidence based and performance
monitored in order that resources can be fixed and directed
to priorities. It will be key that all agencies, including the
Council, update and review existing policies to ensure fit for
purpose and provide consistent approach.

Page 235



Risk Management : There are no risks at this stage.

Access to Information : The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Debbie Watson

3 Telephone:0161 342 3358

G e-mail: debbie.watson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 236



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

BACKGROUND

The development of the strategy has been led by the Population Health Transformation
team of the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership on behalf of the
Greater Manchester Cancer Board, and has been co-produced with input from a wide
range of partners across Greater Manchester localities and many system and subject
matter experts. This follows on from work undertaken with the Greater Manchester
Tobacco Control Leaders’ Network, starting in December 2015, led by Steven Pleasant.

The strategy has been informed by the best international and as well as local evidence and
has been subject to an extensive consultation and engagement period running from
November 2016 to March 2017, including an expert stakeholder development group and a
key leaders workshop.

The following groups and bodies have been involved in its development or are part of its
sign off: Action on Smoking and Health; Association Governing Group of Clinical
Commissioning Groups; Cancer Education Manchester; Cancer Research UK; Directors of
Public Health Group; Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership; Greater
Manchester Combined Authority Executive; Greater Manchester Population Health
Programme Board; Greater Manchester Cancer VCSE Advisory Group; Greater
Manchester VCSE Devolution Reference Group; Greater Manchester LGBT Foundation;
Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service; Greater Manchester Tobacco Control
Commissioners Group; Fresh Smokefree North East; HMRC; Healthier Futures CIC; Public
Health England; Trading Standards North West; Wider Leadership Team.

GREATER MANCHESTER APPROACH

The changes underway under Taking Charge create a golden opportunity for a new and
focussed approach to tackling tobacco harms across Greater Manchester. The tobacco
control strategy graphically illustrates the human and financial costs incurred by a product
which kills more than 1 in 2 long-term users and debilitates many more. Greater
Manchester will reduce smoking at a pace and scale faster than any other major global city
with an ambition to reduce smoking by around a third to 13% by 2021, closing the gap with
England, saving thousands of lives and millions of pounds.

A new tobacco control programme supports the aims of the wider Population Health Plan
and the Greater Manchester Cancer Plan, as well as contributing to the far wider public
service reform agendas. A transformative programme of work delivered in collaboration
across the system will include a range of innovative and evidence based interventions as
outlined below.

Page 237



3.0

3.1.

4.0

4.1

GREATER
G M CA MANCHESTER

COMBINED

AUTHORITY

NHS|

in Greater Manchester

Our Greater Manchester vision is for a tobacco free future where together we make smoking
history for all our children. Our transformation programsmme delivered in collaboration with all
partners will include a range of innovative and evidence based interventions delivered at scale:

A public conversation with the whole population Local insight to drive
on smoking and health and measures that . . targeted campaigns
will bring about this change with the Greater : . and communications
Manchester or and Local Authority Lt at community level
FEsEsEEE s and region-wide

* Advancing a fully Smokefree NHS including

. Innovative E-cigarette

STnP mBER : friendly policies,

services and offers

- standardised primary and secondary care stop A new Smokefree Pregnancy

g journeys for all smokers 5 programme that transforms whole
: system support for interventions to

providers and their tenants for
smokefree homes and tenancies

support quitting and keeps mums
Extending Smokefr: ces across the city- and babies smokefree, including

region to create family friendly spaces to help o o those women identified as most
make everyone healthier o o vulnerable to relapse to smoking

A crackdown on illegal tobacco will
tackle demand and supply safeguarding
. children and tackling crime

Greater Manchester
Health and Social Care Partnership

NEXT STEPS

Taking charge

2017-2021

To turn this strategy into action, a delivery plan for the potential initiatives outlined in
section 4.1 to 4.7 of the strategy will be developed in sufficient detail to enable a
stakeholder supported and implementable programme of work. The partnerships are

learning from what’s working well in Greater M

anchester, the UK and globally to bring the

very best evidence and innovation to our delivery. Further stakeholder consultation and
engagement is being undertaken to facilitate this during May-September 2017. A
transformation funding proposal will also be developed including full cost benefit analysis

and matched/alternative funding proposals.
September 2017.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As set out on the front of the report.

Page 238

This phase of work will be completed by



RRRRRRR
EEEEEEEEEE
CCCCCCCC

TTTTTTTTT in Greater Manchester

Greater Manchester
Health and Social Care Partnership

Making Smoking
History

A Tobacco Free
Greater Manchester

Taking charge

- inGreater Manchester
2G17-2021



Contents

Making smoking history in Greater Manchester . . ........... ... .. ... ... ..... 3
Grow a social movement for a tobacco free Greater Manchester . ............... 4
Monitor tobacco use and prevention policies. . . . ....... .. . i )
Protect people from tobaccosmoke. . . ... ... ... 6
Offerhelpto quit. . ... e 8
Warn about the dangers of tobacco .. ... ... .. .. .. . . . . 9
Enforce tobacco regulation. . .. ... .. . . 10
Raise the real price of tobacco . . ... ... ... . 11
What happens next. . . ... . 11

Taking charge
 inGreater Manchester

2017-2021

Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership



Making smoking history in

Greater Manchester

This is a summary of our plan to reduce smoking prevalence in Greater
Manchester by a third by the end of 2021. It is an unprecedented ambition
and at a pace and scale greater than any other major global city. If we
achieve it, there will be 115,000 fewer smokers in Greater Manchester,

a key part of delivering our commitment to achieving the greatest and
fastest improvement to the health, wealth and wellbeing of the population.
We’ll also be on our way to delivering a tobacco free generation.

We need to do things differently
because each year there are still 4,500
deaths caused by smoking in Greater
Manchester and it is estimated that
every hour, one child starts to smoke.
That’s a whole classroom of smokers
every day! The plan looks at seven key
ways in which we are going to tackle
smoking, both by ensuring young people
don’t start smoking and encouraging
more people than ever to quit.

Lots of people and organisations —
including hospitals, local councils, GPs,
charities, housing providers and Greater
Manchester Fire and Rescue Service,
have been involved in developing our
tobacco control plan to make sure our
targets are achievable and that we

have included everything to make it
successful.

What we need to do

Our vision is simple. We want fewer
people to smoke in Greater Manchester,
which will lead to fundamental
improvements to the health, wealth

and wellbeing of some of the poorest
residents, as well as save Greater
Manchester an average of £1,800 a year
per smoker that quits. To achieve this
we will focus on MPOWER, a system
recognised worldwide to help reduce
tobacco use, and add in our own ‘G’ to
reflect that we want to involve as many
people as possible in helping to achieve
our ambitions.

row a social movement for a Tobacco Free Greater Manchester

rotect people from tobacco smoke
ffer help to quit

arn about the dangers of tobacco
nforce tobacco regulation

aise the real price of tobacco

000000

onitor tobacco use and prevention policies

Page 241

- A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017 — 2021



Grow a social movement for a
Tobacco Free Greater Manchester

To achieve our ambition we need everyone in Greater Manchester to get behind
our plans and support them. This is when social movements can happen:

Social movements happen when people come
together to fight for their rights, solve problems,
shift how people think, support each other and

demand what they need.

We’ve already got some great examples
where the community have got involved
with health improvement campaigns in
Greater Manchester such as ‘The Wigan
Deal’ and ‘People Powered Health’ in
Stockport. We are also recruiting 20,000
cancer champions who will use their
experience, knowledge and passion

to support those at risk of developing
cancer and those recently diagnosed
with the disease.

With this experience plus help from local
charities, and partners such as Cancer
Research UK, Action on Smoking and
Health and Macmillan Cancer Support,
we are confident we can grow a new
social movement to help people quit
smoking and take a stand against

the tobacco industry to ensure young
people never start smoking in Greater
Manchester. The tobacco industry needs
to recruit new smokers to replace the
more than 1 in 2 who die early from
smoking related disease. Most start
smoking as teenagers so smoking is

an addiction of childhood, not an adult
choice.

V' Straight away we are going to
start working with the cancer
champions social movement
programme to kick-start citizen-
led involvement in and support for
our plan.

V" We will work with the Greater
Manchester Mayor, Andy
Burnham to start a conversation
with people across the city
region to engage everyone in
the health and wellbeing of their
communities and families and to
tackle smoking.

/" We will use lots of different ways
to communicate our messages so
everyone will be able to support
us and find out how important it is
to quit smoking or never start.

Page 242

Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership



Monitor tobacco use and
prevention policies

We will use experts to help us keep an eye on how many people are quitting,
who they are and where they are from. This enables us to make decisions about
how and when we spend money on tobacco control to make sure the work we
are doing is as effective as it can be. We will look at everything from how many
adults and children are smoking to how many people use e-cigarettes and other
measures such as how many people have successfully quit and how much
people spend on tobacco including illegal tobacco.

How will we do it

¥ Develop and maintain a robust
data set on smoking prevalence,
attitudes and behaviours

¥ Commission a boosted sample
for the Smoking Toolkit Study
to track Greater Manchester
smoking prevalence and quitting
behaviours

Page 243
- A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017 — 2021



Greater Manchestens . and

S

Protect people from tobacco smoke

Second hand smoke is harmful for everyone and being exposed to tobacco
smoke can cause death, disability and disease. New-born babies are more likely
to be born prematurely and have a low birth weight if their mum smokes and
children are more likely to have breathing difficulties and development problems.

We want to consider extending the
smokefree laws in Greater Manchester
by introducing smokefree parks,
entrances to public buildings and family
friendly spaces to help make everyone
healthier. Hospitals will be stricter in
enforcing no smoking rules in their
grounds and we will work with housing
providers and their tenants to increase
the number of smokefree homes.

We believe e-cigarettes have the
potential to help people to quit smoking
completely without encouraging children
or non-smokers to start smoking and
we will work with Public Health England
guidelines to develop policies around
vaping.

Young people can be powerful
ambassadors and we want to equip
them with the confidence to address
smoking in their family, social circles
and beyond through healthy schools
programmes.

Smoking related fires also cost the
Greater Manchester tax-payer an
average of £20m per year and cause
40% of accidental fire deaths. We will
work with the fire service to promote
positive quit and smokefree messages
across Greater Manchester during home
and workplace safety checks.

Partnership




How will we do it

@ Straight away the NHS in Greater

Manchester will start delivering a
fully ‘smokefree NHS’.

We will work with housing providers
to identify opportunities to make
their estates and homes smokefree
in partnership with residents, as
well as offering support to quit.

We will look at delivering a
smokefree homes campaign to
protect children and families.

We will support prisoners and
prison staff to quit and implement
smokefree prison estates.

We will create more smokefree
spaces with the help of the Mayor.

We will ensure the council and
the police have enough resources
to ensure people adhere to the
smokefree laws, including in cars.

We will work with Transport for
Greater Manchester and the Fire
and Rescue Service to promote
smokefree spaces and smokefree
homes.

We will work with Public Health
England to promote the benefits of
vaping over continuing to smoke,
recognising that people need to
stop smoking completely.

We will deliver a more consistent
approach to involving young
people in smokefree initiatives.

Page 245

- A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017 — 2021




\ T

S

Offer help to quit

Smoking costs the NHS a lot of money so we will continue to invest in stop
smoking services. When smokers are told about how much smoking harms
their health and those around them, the vast majority want to quit. Not everyone
wants face-to-face support though so new ways of digital and self-support need
to be developed that can be accessed 24/7.

Patients, including pregnant women,
people with mental health challenges,
smokers with long term health
conditions and people recovering
from drug and alcohol misuse should
also have stop smoking treatments
incorporated into their healthcare so
that it becomes a routine part of their
treatment, wherever that is happening.

E-cigarettes could be suggested as
alternatives to those who are unwilling or
unable to completely quit their nicotine
habit immediately as current evidence
shows it is far less harmful than
smoking.

Workplaces can also better promote
stopping smoking by offering incentives
to staff for reductions in sickness
absences.

How will we do it

v We will develop an e-cigarette
friendly plan that will offer a range
of stop smoking services including
self-support options and digital
support that will be accessible to all
smokers.

v NHS providers in Greater
Manchester will work out whether
it is financially viable to provide
hospital stop smoking services and
will make it compulsory to know
the smoking status of patients.

v We will work with experts to
improve ‘Very Brief Advice’,
maximising opportunities for
professionals to offer the right
advice to people at the right
moment.

v We will explore ways to work with
employers to promote the benefits
of quitting and understand how
incentives can play a role.

Page 246

Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership



Warn about the dangers of tobacco

Evidence has found that mass marketing campaigns are one of the best ways
to educate the public around the dangers of smoking tobacco, motivate quit
attempts and signpost people to stop smoking support.

There are lots of ways to make sure the
right messages reach the right people
at the right time. This includes adapting
campaigns to reach different sections of

the population such as LGBT (lesbian,
gay, bisexual and transgender) and BME
(black, minority, ethnic) populations.

How will we do it

v We will implement a mass media
and social marketing campaign
that will carry through until 2021
to increase the number of people
quitting and further change how
people think and feel about
tobacco use.

v We will support national campaigns
such as Stoptober and New Year
Quit to further raise awareness.

v We will learn about the needs of
specific groups and communities
from specialist research to find out

the best way to support them to
quit smoking.

v We will tackle shisha and other
niche products to educate and
inform smokers and make sure
businesses that sell them are better
regulated and managed.

¥ Other public services will work
with us to sign up to a new GM
Declaration on Tobacco Control.

¥ Schools and colleges will work with
us to reduce the uptake of smoking
and support young smokers to quit.

STOP TOBER

Page 247

Making Smoking History - A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 2017 — 2021




10

Enforce tobacco regulation

Despite killing 1 in 2 consumers tobacco products can be sold by anyone in
England. Currently, a very low percentage of retailers are ever convicted for

selling tobacco products to young people despite 44% of young smokers saying

they get cigarettes from shops. There is now growing public support for a
licensing scheme that would make shopkeepers have a licence to sell tobacco
products making it cheaper and easier to enforce the law if they are found to be

breaking it.

Each year, the tobacco industry
internationally spends billions of
pounds to market its products using
sophisticated and covert forms of
tobacco advertising, promotion

and sponsorship (TAPS). It is subtly
promoted on TV, films, music videos,
video games, the internet, at concerts,
sporting events and even at Manchester
Pride. Evidence has proven that the
more children and young people see
smoking on screens, in music videos
or in online games they play, the more
likely they are to take the habit up.

YOUR SMOKE

For help to quit: 0300 123 1044
quitnow.smokefree.nhs.uk

>y

il

How will we do it

¥ We will work towards a licensing
scheme for tobacco retailers that
may allow Greater Manchester to
raise the age of sale for tobacco
from 18 to 21.

¥ We will be a lot stricter with
shopkeepers that sell tobacco,
making sure their sales and age
restrictions are constantly enforced.

¥ We will look for ways to further
reduce point of sale displays in
shops and options for fewer outlets
selling tobacco.

¥ We will consult on ways to introduce
anti-smoking adverts to be shown in
Greater Manchester cinemas before
films that have smoking in them.

¢ We will also consider whether
to ban real cigarettes during

.go ‘ — theatrical productions, but allow
ggga‘ /J ‘ { fake products in case of dramatic
agal LY necessity.
gl
0350
0950
0d e
1580 Brand
832% Variant
N

§od

Page 248

Health and Social Care Partnership



Raise the real price of tobacco

Increasing the tax on tobacco is proven to be the single and most effective way of
reducing smoking. People who have less money are more likely to be affected by
price rises and if they don’t quit are more likely to suffer ill health in the long term
so it is important that they are offered stop smoking support at the same time.

Nationally, more people are smoking
hand rolled tobacco because it’s
cheaper than normal cigarettes.
People with less money are also
more likely to turn to illegal tobacco
which is cheaper, more accessible to
children and young people and linked
to organised crime and anti-social
behaviour.

vellkypenue llkyPervE | KYPEHM
ETlysuBaeT llysueacT || VEnBAE

i
- o
&

How will we do it

¥ We will work to tackle the supply and
demand for illicit tobacco in Greater
Manchester with new targets and
campaigns that will reduce demand
by focussing on harm to children and
links to crime.

¥ We will talk to the Government about
increasing the price of tobacco through
duty and making sure cigarette and
hand rolled tobacco rates are the
same. We will also talk to them about
introducing a charge on tobacco
industry profits which will raise money
to help people quit. In the meantime,
we will investigate to see if we are able
to do this in Greater Manchester.

What happens next

@ To make our plan a reality needs contributions from everyone in Greater
Manchester. We need the public to become advocates of our work to help
friends, families and everyone in our communities quit smoking. We also need
organisations such as councils, educational establishments, the NHS, Transport

for Greater Manchester and Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service to work
with us and make our plans become a reality.

We’ve got a specialist team to start working on the plan straight away and to
implement it we will be enlisting the help of a lot more community champions,
professionals and experts in the field to deliver our ambitious target of reducing
smoking prevalence by a third in Greater Manchester by 2021.

11

Making Smoking History - A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester 201 4023



GREATER
MANCHESTER
COMBINED

AUTHORITY in Greater Manchester

For more information contact:

Email:
Tweet:
Call:
Address:
Website:




Report to:
Date:

Executive Member / Reporting
Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Links to Health and Wellbeing
Strategy:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:

(Authorised by the Section 151
Officer)

Legal Implications:

(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Risk Management :

Access to Information :

Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21 September 2017

Angela Hardman — Director of Population Health

Debbie Watson — Interim Assistant Director of Population
Health

HEALTH AND WELLBEING FORWARD PLAN 2017/18

This report provides an outline forward plan for

consideration by the Board

The Board is asked to agree the draft forward plan for
2017/18.

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy to address needs, which
commissioners will need to have regard of in developing
commissioning plans for health care, social care and public
health. The Forward Plan ensures coverage of key issues
associated with the Board’s duties to deliver improved
outcomes through the strategy

The Forward Plan has been designed to cover both the
statutory responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board
and the key projects that have been identified as priorities
by the Board.

There are no direct financial implications for the Council
relating to this report

Local Authorities are obliged to publish a forward plan
setting out the key decisions and matters they will consider
over a rolling 4 months.

There are no risks associated with this report.

The background papers relating to this report can be
inspected by contacting Debbie Watson, Head of Health
and Wellbeing by:

3 Telephone:0161 342 3358

i e-mail: debbie.watson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 251


mailto:debbie.watson@tameside.gov.uk

TAMESIDE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PLAN 2017/18

Strategy / policy and Board Priorities and performance Integration
process
21 September 2017 | » Intermediate Care in e Mental Health and Wellbeing e Care Together Update e Forward Plan
Tameside and Glossop e Health and Working Well e GM State of the
o Tameside and Glossop | ¢ Greater Manchester Cancer Plan VCSE Sector 2017
Care Together Economy - o stocktake for Tameside & and Compact
Financial Monitoring Glossop
o GM Tobacco Strategy
¢ Influenza Update and system
response
gb November 2017 | Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session
(@]
® ¢ Refresh of the Locality plan / Health and Wellbeing Strategy
8 e System wide approach to tackling inequalities
N
25 January 2018 e Tameside Safeguarding e System Wide Self Care e Care Together Update e Forward Plan
Children Annual Report programme update /
¢ Tameside Adult Safeguarding Strengthening Communities
Partnership Annual Report e Public Health Annual Report
¢ Pharmaceutical Needs e Locality Plan / HWB Strategy
Assessment — review and sign Action Plan sign off
off
¢ Physical Activity Strategy
o Live Well Active Tameside
o Tour of Tameside
8 March 2018 e Tameside & Glossop System e Care Together Update e Forward Plan
Wide Outcomes Framework




Strategy / policy and Board
process

NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE

Priorities and performance

Integration

(011,1:14

Items to include:

JHWS — approval, alignment
with other strategies

JSNA — updates and approval
of arrangements

GM HWB and other strategy
updates

National policy updates
Updates from linked
governance processes — eg
Health Protection Forum,
Healthwatch.

Items to include:

JHWS Performance
monitoring (outcomes)
JSNA updates

PH annual report
HWB performance

Items to include:

Regular public service
reform updates

Integrated Commissioning
Programme — Care Together
Partner member business
planning updates (including
CCG operating plan)

Iltems to include:

e Forward Plan

e Consultation on key
issues and
developments

€Ge abed




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Intermediate Care in Tameside and Glossop
	ITEM 4 - Intermediate Care Booklet
	ITEM 4 - Intermediate Care Consultation Questions v8
	ITEM 4 - Intermediate Care fact sheet
	ITEM 4 - Intermediate Care FAQs

	5a 2017/18 Financial Monitoring Report at 31 July 2017
	ITEM 5(a) - Care Together Economy Month 4 1718 Financial Monitoring Statement - 210917
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14


	5b 2017/19 Better Care Fund Plan
	6 Care Together Update
	ITEM 6 - Appendix A governance structure
	ITEM 6 - Appendix B clinical leadership structure

	7 Influenza Update and System Response
	8 Tameside Health and Employment
	ITEM 8 - Presentation Health & Employment GMCA
	�	Working Well�	�     
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	�A whole population approach to work and health


	9 Mental Health and Wellbeing
	10a Tameside State of the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector Research 2017
	ITEM 10(a) - Tameside SoS Research

	10b COMPACT: Relationship with People, Communities and the Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social Enterprise Sector
	11a Stocktake for Tameside and Glossop
	ITEM 11(a) - Appendix 1 CCG Cancer Stocktake
	ITEM 11(a) - Appendix 2 ICFT Cancer Stocktake
	ITEM 11(a) - Appendix 3  Review of Cancer Data

	11b Greater Manchester Tobacco Strategy
	ITEM 11(b) - Making Smoking History -A Tobacco Free Greater Manchester - Summary

	12 Health and Wellbeing Board Forward Plan 2017/18

